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We always ask, “Why, and why not?”

“Why” holds us back, makes us ponder the commonly accepted routines and long established practices. Why we and
others do it this way? What purpose do the routines or practices serve? Are they even right?

“Why not” pushes us to innovate, to make changes, to do different, to become extraordinary.

Market Open Ceremony
hosted by Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited
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Stock Code: 1073

Y

For instance, why go for a new listing?
And, why not go for an RTO (reverse takeover)?

We are not the best, not the biggest, not the most profitable, but we are moving ahead.



Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Business and Financial Review

Biographical Details of Directors

Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Independent Auditor’'s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five Year Financial Summary

RAER
ERHmE

ES e p el

=
B AZ AR E

fre B L EA
2EKEE

fRA M BARNE
RAEaEER
HERTRER
A BRAME
hFEMHHRE

Contents
B &

19
25
38
55
61

68

70
72
73
74

152

it A



Corporate Information

RAEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EE®

Executive Directors: HITES .

Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren (Managing Director)  (appointed on 25 July 2019) FTEGIE (EFLLE)  CE-NFEAZTREEZT)
Mr. Lam Chi Shing (appointed on 25 July 2019) MR S (CE-NFLtA-+RBEZMD
Ms. Li Ming (appointed on 25 July 2019) Pt (ZE-NFLAZTHBEESRD
Non-Executive Directors: FHITESE :

Mr. Li Chi Kong (Chairman) (appointed on 25 July 2019) FERLE(FE) (CE-NFLtA-+HBEZMD
Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao (appointed on 23 December 2019) PARIE (ZE-NF+ZAZ+=HEZD)
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIUFEHTES

Mr. Chan Sze Chung (appointed on 26 July 2019) PREBIAL A (ZE-NFLAZ+BEZD)
Mr. Suen Chi Wai (appointed on 26 July 2019) BREELEE (ZE-NFEAZHBEZE)
Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred (appointed on 26 July 2019) BEERERE (ZE-NFLAZ+BEZD)
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

Mr. Lee Hon Sang (appointed on 26 July 2019) FEESRE (ZE-NFEAZTRBEERD
MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREEBHRE

Mr. Chan Sze Chung (Chairman) (appointed on 26 July 2019) PRBIRSL A (FE) (ZE-NFEAZTRBEERD
Mr. Suen Chi Wai (appointed on 26 July 2019) BREELEE (ZE-NFEAZHBEZE)
Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred (appointed on 26 July 2019) BEERESE (ZE-NFLAZ+BEZD)
Mr. Li Chi Kong (appointed on 23 December 2019) ZFEMIGAE (ZE-NF+ZAZ+=HEZMD
Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao (appointed on 23 December 2019) PARIE (ZE-NF+ZAZ+=HEZMD
MEMBERS OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEBHKE

Mr. Li Chi Kong (Chairman) (appointed on 26 July 2019) FEREE(FE) (ZE-NFEAZTRBEERD
Mr. Chan Sze Chung (appointed on 26 July 2019) PREIAL A (ZE-NFLAZ+BEZD)
Mr. Suen Chi Wai (appointed on 26 July 2019) BREELEE (ZE-NFEAZ+BEZE)
Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred (appointed on 26 July 2019) BEERESE (ZE-NFLAZ+BEZD)
MEMBERS OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEEERE

Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred (Chairman) (appointed on 26 July 2019) BEESE(EE) (ZE-NFLAZ+BEZD)
Mr. Chan Sze Chung (appointed on 26 July 2019) PREIAL A (ZE-NFLAZ+BEZD)
Mr. Li Chi Kong (appointed on 26 July 2019) FERIEE (ZE-NFEAZTRBEERD
Mr. Suen Chi Wai (appointed on 26 July 2019) BREELEE (ZE-NFEAZ+BEZE)
Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao (appointed on 23 December 2019) PARIE (ZE-NF+ZAZ+=HEZMD
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR B EED

BDO Limited BBV EERETMEHAAER AR
COMPLIANCE ADVISER SHRER

Emperor Capital Limited EMEBERA

Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited Annual report 2019



AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Li Chi Kong
Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

HEADQUARTER AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1801, 18th Floor
Allied Kajima Building
138 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

1073 (listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited)

WEBSITE

www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinaagrotech/

Corporate Information (Continued)
PrAIER (E)

REAX

FERIEE
FEREL

FEEREBLT

ERKFRITERAA
EBERERITE B NTT

HMREEREBTEEREME

BEET
H4TiE 1385
HERERE
18121801=

AMMER

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

FERDBFETE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

BEERNBFERIE

EEBEETERAF
BEET
ERREFR183

A R0
17R1T712-171658 48

BRAD SR
1078 (REBHE A ZPHERAAER L)
A8k

www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinaagrotech/

ABRERERERAS

20194 4§

3



Chairman’s Statement
FRHE

| am pleased to present the first annual results of Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively the “Group”) for the six-month
period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 (“the 2019 year end results”) post
completion of the successful restructuring of the Company, which brought the
Company out of a provisional liquidation through the reverse takeover of Yu Ming
Investment Management Limited (“Yu Ming”) as approved by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC”), and sanctioned by the courts of Hong Kong and Cayman
Islands. It is noted that, as announced by the Company on 10 October 2019, the
financial year end date of the Company has been changed from 30 June to 31
December. The present management took over from the liquidators on 25 July
2019, followed by the resumption of listing on the Stock Exchange on 26 July 2019.
The 2019 year end results of the Group reflect its performance and financial position
after resumption and acquisition completion of the wholly-owned subsidiary, Yu
Ming, as well as the one-off impact from the completion of the restructuring.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Group’s
revenue was approximately HK$46.8 million (year ended 30 June 2019: Nil). Profit
attributable to the owners of the Company in the six-month period from 1 July 2019
to 31 December 2019 was approximately HK$842.3 million (year ended 30 June
2019: loss of approximately HK$13.9 million). The net profit contributed by Yu Ming
of approximately HK$17.6 million began a new chapter of the Group, bringing the
Group back to profitability for the first time since 2013. Earnings per share amounted
to HK$83.92 cents, as compared to loss per share of HK$13.89 cents in year ended
30 June 2019.
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It should be noted that due to the historical mishaps of the Company before
completion of the restructuring, significant books and records of the Company and
its past subsidiaries (excluding Yu Ming) were missing and could not be located.
As a consequence, and as common for listed companies coming out of a debt
restructuring, auditors would issue disclaimer of opinion or qualified opinion in
the first auditors’ report after the completion of restructuring. In the case of the
Company, the substantial one-off gain of approximately HK$844.9 million arising out
of the debt restructuring (because a substantial portion of the Group’s past debts
was extinguished through the legal process) compelled the auditors of the Company
to issue a disclaimer. Shareholders should note that the disclaimer of opinion is not
related to the financial reporting of the existing business and activities of the Group,
which are undertaken solely through Yu Ming, a corporation licensed by the SFC to
provide, inter alia, asset management and corporate finance services in Hong Kong.

DIVIDEND

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) does not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December
2019 (year ended 30 June 2019: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(“AGM”)

The forthcoming AGM of the Company is scheduled to be held on Friday, 29 May
2020. The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 26
May 2020 to Friday, 29 May 2020, during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited of Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 25 May 2020.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The “Business and Financial Review” by the Managing Director, which immediately
follows this statement, incorporates the Group’s business outlook for the future.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
IREHE (&)

APPRECIATION

The Board is proud of Yu Ming and the professional advisers for successfully re-
listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange on 26 July 2019 which recovered
significant value for its past shareholders and creditors, and is excited about the
future of the Group in the financial services sector, being one of the pillars of Hong
Kong'’s foundation.

The Group expects there will be various challenges arising from the trade war
between China and USA, the protests and unrests in Hong Kong in the past months,
as well as the ongoing global coronavirus outbreak, which is unprecedented and
is causing the world economy to slow down. We believe that with our competitive
strengths, and the dedication and professionalism of its staff, the Group is well
prepared to meet these challenges.

| would like to express the Group’s appreciation for the efforts of our staff and
look forward to their continued support. 2019 was particularly challenging in view
of the additional workload generated by the final pursuit of the Company’s listing
resumption after a few attempts in the past few years. | would also like to thank my
fellow Directors, including Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao, who joined the Board in December
2019, our professional advisers and our shareholders for their support.

Li Chi Kong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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Business and Financial Review

B R HEE

“Our team is proud not just because of the listing of Yu Ming via the
reverse takeover of the Company, but the benevolence bestowed upon
the Company’s past shareholders and creditors as a result. Yu Ming
demonstrated to the capital market that the Stock Exchange and the
Securities and Futures Commission do accommodate reverse takeovers so
long as they are properly structured and implemented.

| feel particularly accomplished when people congratulated me,
“Congratulations! So, now you are listed on the GEM Board?” No, Yu
Ming is listed on the Main Board, but would never be possible without
the devotion of our elite team, and the unflinching professionals, and the
over 3,000 amazing new shareholders who subscribed our new shares.
Our team will treasure their support and strive to achieve greatness with
unremitting courage and creativity”.

SHMABBZEIESN  TMEEARIRHFBBLRNRAKER LT - M
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3,000 B FBERBER MO - BETAELERY - RAIWEKRRSHE
IR R - W REEA MR BRIABED - RRAE

Warren Lee, Managing Director

TR BRELE

“At Yu Ming, the philosophy is “Learn details, master details, and forget details”.
Only then can we be more than just another adviser, look beyond the letters of
rules and codes, and tell right from wrong. Corporate finance is an art, and artists
put away instruction books after they have mastered the techniques, they start
using hearts instead of books to make great things in life”.

(B MESRIBEME - ZRAEH - TIRAM] - RBEER - BRI 8ESK
B—ETLER - BEEFBEEPIAT G - D EIFEHE - PERBEE—
FIZ0T - BRMREE TRIDRESEEYGE - B AL IRAIERST -

Fiona Li, Executive Director

T MITES
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Business and Financial Review (Continued)

FBRMBEE(E)

e ] “Very few know that our asset management client is the first investment company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange as early back as in 1990. That’s before | joined
the industry, and probably before many in the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange. Our
client’s founding shareholders and directors included the who’s who in Hong Kong and
China at the time.

Our philosophy is to manage our client’s money like our own, but with added care and
conservatism”.

RONMBRMNEEEREFPEFEI990FE—REBZAERETHRERES A
Al e BEBAITERRSS - WFFFZEEB A EHENREFFIHERINABZARE - &
FrRIRERNERBEERAEREMTENBEHAA -

HMESEENLERYEFPNESMBECH —FAL - (EEFIREMERT -

Gavin Lam, Executive Director

MEK MITES

“If your child is taken hostage and held at gunpoint, do you ask the odds of success
to decide whether to attempt the rescue? No, you go in with all you have, because
there can only be one outcome if you don't.

In Yu Ming, we do not stop at being bold, innovative and out of the box, we do
everything legally permissible, treating our client’s problems like our own.”

RINEHNZTFHAERRESR  CEERARMBREMRENEEAEH ? TE
B SRAIEHREN - GRGRRATRZS - BERIRTER - RE—EBER -

EIBE] RO TEBERER - BB UIE  RERSZEN  HEZE - K
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Raymond Tam, Business Director
BRI EBESR
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Current
Reporting Period”), Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiary (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of corporate
finance advisory services and asset management services through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Yu Ming Investment Management Limited (“Yu Ming”).

Yu Ming is a financial services provider engaged in the provision of corporate finance
advisory services and asset management services. Yu Ming is licensed to carry out
Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Corporate Finance Advisory

During the Current Reporting Period, the corporate finance advisory services
provided by Yu Ming mainly included the following:

(i) acting as financial adviser to advise listed issuers, shareholders and investors
of listed issuers and entities on specific transactions in respect of the Listing
Rules, the GEM Listing Rules and/or the Takeovers Code;

(i) acting as independent financial adviser to listed issuers to provide
independent advice required under the Listing Rules, the Takeovers Code or
other specific circumstances; and

(iii) acting as financial adviser to listed issuers on retainer basis to advise listed
issuers on corporate strategies and compliance with the Listing Rules, the
GEM Listing Rules and the Takeovers Code.

Asset Management

During the Current Reporting Period, Yu Ming provided asset management services
solely to SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited, the first investment company listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Revenue

Revenue for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 mainly
consisted of income from corporate finance advisory services of approximately
HK$37.4 million and asset management services of approximately HK$8.1 million.

Employee Benefit Expense

The Group’s employee benefit expense mainly consisted of salaries, bonuses
and mandatory provident fund for the employees as well as fees for the Directors.
Salaries, bonuses, mandatory provident fund and Directors’ fee amounted to
approximately HK$4.0 million, HK$9.7 million, HK$0.2 million and HK$0.2 million
respectively during the Current Reporting Period.

Business and Financial Review (Continued)
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Business and Financial Review (Continued)

EBRMBEOE(E)

Administrative and Other Expenses

Apart from the Group’s administrative expenses, other expenses for the Current
Reporting Period included the amortisation on intangible assets of approximately
HK$6.3 million.

Gain on Debt Restructuring and Restructuring Expenses

During the Current Reporting Period, the Group recorded a gain on debt
restructuring under the Creditors’ Scheme of approximately HK$844.9 million
and restructuring expenses (mainly legal and professional fees) of approximately
HK$20.1 million. Details regarding the debt restructuring, please refer to the “Debt
Restructuring and Resumption” section below and Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

On 14 June 2019, the English name of the Company was changed from “China
Agrotech Holdings Limited” to “Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited” and the Chinese
name “AHE BT BRAR)” was adopted and registered as dual foreign name
of the Company to replace the Chinese name “& @ E%:RIBEBAR AR (for
identification purpose only) and both the new English and Chinese names of the
Company were registered in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) with effect from 28 June 2019.

The English and Chinese stock short names of the Company for trading in the
shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange were changed
from “CHINA AGROTECH” to “DA YU FIN” in English and from “Y& @ 2%l to “XS
& &” in Chinese with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 17 July 2019.

CHANGE OF YEAR END DATE

The Company announced on 10 October 2019 that the financial year end date of
the Company has been changed from 30 June to 31 December. For details, please
refer to that announcement.

Accordingly, this annual report covers a reporting period for only six months from 1
July 2019 to 31 December 2019 while the last annual report covered the 12 months
from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019.

DEBT RESTRUCTURING AND RESUMPTION

Reference is made to the public offer prospectus of the Company dated 28 June
2019 (the “Prospectus”). Unless otherwise stated, capitalised terms used in this
report shall have the same meanings as those defined in the Prospectus.

During the Current Reporting Period, the Company completed a series of corporate
exercises including, but not limited to, the Capital Reorganisation, the Creditors’
Scheme, the YM Subscription, the New Placing, the Public Offer and the Acquisition.
In addition, the Creditors’ Scheme was effective on 25 July 2019 and the joint and
several liquidators (the “Former Liquidators”) were discharged on the same date.
Accordingly, the resumption conditions of the Company were fulfilled on 25 July
2019 and the trading of shares of the Company was resumed on 26 July 2019.

Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited Annual report 2019
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Business and Financial Review (Continued)

FBERMBOEE)

FINANCIAL REVIEW A 75 [0 R
Overall Results BEXS
The financial results of the Group are highlighted as follows: AEEB S EER AT
Yu Ming’s Gain on
Yu Ming Results Debt Restructuring  Group Level The Group
(Full Year) | Consolidated Restructuring Expenses Items | (Six Months)
%74 BHESRE &% £8 rEE
(%) EUE EF L6 E LR EBEEE (RBA)
Notes
HizE A B c D E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue and other income Yz R ELAZIA 68,639 47,428 - - 4 47,432
Employee benefit EEEF (9,306) 4,179 - - (183) (4,362)
Administrative and other  7THUR EAh
expenses X (4,931) (3,006) - - = (3,006)
Gain on debt restructuring  Ei5E AU - - 844,894 - = 844,894
Restructuring expenses BHRY - - - (20,132) - (20,132)
Amortisation on intangible LA E
assets By - - - - (6,303) (6,303)
Expenses of the Company AR &]F% - - - - (3,022 (3,022)
Profit before staff bonus FRE T &R FTEHAT
and income tax SHA 54,402 40,243 844,804 (20,132) (9,504) 855,501
Staff bonus for full year BETI2FHe (9,743) (9,743) - - = (9,743)
Profit after staff bonus ~ BRETH#SE KSR
and before income tax AIER 44,659 30,500 844,894 (20,132) (9,504) 845,758
— ]
Notes: Bi5E
A. Whole-year performance of Yu Ming recorded a total revenue of approximately HEZZT-NF+ZA=1+—"HLFE BHMNE2FEX

HK$68,639,000 and a profit before income tax of approximately HK$44,659,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As the Company acquired Yu Ming on 25 July 2019, only the results of Yu
Ming since that date to 31 December 2019 were consolidated. However, staff
discretionary bonus, if any, would only be determined at financial year end, so bonus
amount of full year instead of half-year apportionment was consolidated.

Gain on debt restructuring represented the gain arising from the implementation of
the Creditors’ Scheme.

Restructuring expenses were mainly legal and professional fees incurred in respect
of the debt restructuring.

Group level items represented mainly amortisation on intangible assets, share
registration fee, listing fee and professional fees incurred by the Company after
Resumption.

REIFHEIRE 468,639,000 7T & B AT 15 B A& F 49
44,659,000/ 7T °

HRARFARZE-AFLA-THERKERNK  Za6
BZAREZT-AFT-_A=+-RHILBENEE - &
i BEIEBERS (B BENMRFEREE - 0EH
EFEMIEFFENENRSDHE -

A ERR SRR TERAGTBIPTES 2 s

ERRX T ERMEBEMELE D AEREEER -

SEEMAEEIERBREERHANARTRERRE
ERRHERLE  EHERREEEM -

Yu Ming is the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Its own financial
statements recorded a profit before income tax of approximately HK$44.7 million or
a profit before staff bonus and income tax of approximately HK$54.4 million for the

12 months ended 31 December 2019.

BRB/ADFZEEMBAR - HMBWEN T - F+=
A=+—H I+ = EA RS AEHATET4144,700,0008
TUSkRR B T8 RS AT M 454,400,000/ 7T °
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Business and Financial Review (Continued)

EBRMBEOE(E)

The Company acquired Yu Ming in July 2019. Yu Ming’s results were consolidated
into the Group’s financial statements since then. For the Current Reporting Period,
Yu Ming contributed a profit before income tax of approximately HK$30.5 million.

It should be noted that a provision of staff bonus had been made during the Current
Reporting Period. Since the staff bonus is discretionary in nature and will only be
determined at the end of the financial year, staff bonus based on performance of
12 months had been finally consolidated. If not counting the staff bonus, Yu Ming
contributed a profit before income tax of approximately HK$40.2 million.

Gain on debt restructuring net of restructuring expenses amounted to approximately
HK$824.8 million. These were one-off exceptional gain and expenses on debt
restructuring.

Excluding the gain and expenses on debt restructuring, the Group recorded a profit
before income tax of approximately HK$21.0 million or a profit before staff bonus
and income tax of approximately HK$30.7 million for the Current Reporting Period.

Notwithstanding that the independent auditor has issued a disclaimer of opinion
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the six-month period from
1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) would like to state that the disclaimer of opinion is due to the gain on debt
restructuring (which was completed on 25 July 2019), convertible bonds, warrant
reserve and certain liabilities (all of them were either disposed of or eliminated in the
debt restructuring on 25 July 2019) as well as the historical figures of the companies
deconsolidated and excluded from the existing Group in the group reorganisation
completed on 25 July 2019. As stated in the last section of the Report of the Directors
on page 37, the Board agrees with the view of BDO Limited, the independent auditor
of the Company, that these have no on-going effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in future reporting periods.

Lost of Control in Subsidiaries and Deconsolidation

Since the winding up of the Company, the official receiver and Former Liquidators
were unable to contact, or obtain relevant information from, any of the previous legal
representatives, directors and management of the subsidiaries of the Company. Due
to absence of information and the non-cooperation of the previous directors and
management of the subsidiaries of the Company, both the official receiver and the
Former Liquidators were unable to obtain and access to the books and records of
the subsidiaries of the Company despite the fact that they had taken all reasonable
steps and had used their best endeavors to resolve the matter.

As a result, the Company no longer had the power to govern the financial and
operating activities of those subsidiaries.

Before the Former Liquidators were appointed, the last financial results published
by the Company were the interim report for the six-month ended 31 December
2013. Since the books and records of most of the Company’s subsidiaries were not
available to the Former Liquidators after their appointment, the Former Liquidators
could not ascertain the financial position of those subsidiaries after 31 December
2013. Together with the fact that the Company had lost control over those
subsidiaries, the Former Liquidators were of the view that those subsidiaries should
be deconsolidated from the Group with effect from 1 January 2014.

Details of the deconsolidated subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Revenue and Financial Resources

Given the liquidation and restructuring of the Company during this financial period,
deconsolidation of subsidiaries as mentioned above and based on the books and
records available, for the Current Reporting Period, the Group had revenue of HK$46.8
million (year ended 30 June 2019: Nil) and the Group’s net profit was approximately
HK$842.3 million (year ended 30 June 2019: loss of HK$13.9 million), representing an
increase in profit of approximately HK$856.2 million as compared to the Group’s net
loss of approximately HK$13.9 milion for the year ended 30 June 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$39.9 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$3.0 million). As at 31
December 2019, the Group’s current ratio (current assets to current liabilities) was
approximately 192.3% (as at 30 June 2019: 0.3%).

For the Current Reporting Period, the Group had no material exposure to fluctuations
in exchange rates.

Indebtedness and Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no bank and other borrowings (as at
30 June 2019: bank and other borrowings of approximately HK$84.3 million).

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had unsecured bank borrowings and other
borrowings (excluding corporate bonds) of approximately HK$7.4 million and
HK$31.9 million respectively.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had eight unlisted straight bonds to eight
independent investors in an aggregate principal amount of HK$45.0 million (the
“Bonds”). The Bonds are unsecured, arranged at fixed interest rates of 6% to 7%
per annum and were immediately due because of the liquidation of the Company.

The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated by reference to the ratio of total borrowings
to total equity attributable to the owners of the Company as at 31 December 2019,
was 0%.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio could not be determined because
there was a deficit of equity attributable to owners of the Company. The gearing ratio
was calculated based on the division of the total amount of bank borrowings and
other loans and convertible bonds (liability components) by total equity attributable
to owners of the Company.

Assets and Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total assets of approximately HK$465.5
million (as at 30 June 2019: approximately HK$3.2 million) and total liabilities of
HK$49.0 million (as at 30 June 2019: approximately HK$963.9 million). The net
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019 were approximately HK$416.5 million
(as at 30 June 2019: net liabilities of approximately HK$960.8 million).
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Business and Financial Review (Continued)

EBRMBEOE(E)

Capital Structure

As part of the group restructuring, the Company completed a series of capital
restructuring, including capital reduction, share consolidation, share premium
cancellation and increase in authorised share capital during the six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019.

YM Subscription, New Placing and Public Offer

As part of the group restructuring and after the capital restructuring, the Company
completed the YM Subscription, the New Placing and the Public Offer by issuing
284,750,000 shares, 512,698,586 shares and 241,705,083 shares of HK$0.52
each respectively and raised a gross proceeds of fund totalling approximately
HK$540,360,000 in July 2019.

As a result, as at 31 December 2019, there were 1,139,330,190 ordinary shares (as
at 30 June 2019: 1,001,765,216 ordinary shares) in issue. Details of the movements
in share capital of the Company during the Current Reporting Period are set out in
Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no significant outstanding contracted
capital commitments (as at 30 June 2019: Nil).

Charges on Group Assets
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no assets under pledge.

There is insufficient information available to the Company to ascertain whether there
were any charged assets at a Group level as at 30 June 2019.

Significant Investments and Acquisition

On 24 August 2016 and 7 February 2017, the Vendor, the Company and the
Former Liquidators entered into the Acquisition Agreement and the Supplemental
Acquisition Agreement respectively in relation to the Acquisition. Pursuant to the
agreements, the Company would acquire the entire issued share capital of Yu Ming,
now a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, free from all encumbrances, at the
Acquisition Consideration of HK$400.0 million.

All the conditions to the agreements have been either fulfilled or waived and the
Acquisition Completion took place on 25 July 2019.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at the date of this report and as at 31 December 2019, the Board is not aware of
any material contingent liabilities.

There is insufficient information available to the Company to ascertain whether the
Group and the Company had any significant contingent liabilities as at 30 June
2019.

Upon the completion of the resumption proposal and the scheme of arrangement
taking effect on 25 July 2019, all the creditors’ claims against the Company
as at that date on which the Creditors’ Scheme became effective (which were
assigned and transferred to a special vehicle held and controlled by the Scheme
Administrators) had been discharged and compromised in full.

Remuneration Policies and Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2019, the Group, including its subsidiary but excluding
associates, had 19 staff including Directors (as at 30 June 2019: Nil). The
remuneration policy of the Group is to ensure that all staff, including Directors,
are sufficiently compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the Group and
remuneration offered is appropriate for their duties and in line with market practice.
No Director, or any of his associates, or executive is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

During the Current Reporting Period, no share option was granted (year ended 30
June 2019: Nil).
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Business and Financial Review (Continued)
XHBRUHEE(E)

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company intended to utilise the net proceeds of
approximately HK$123.2 million from the Public Offer as follows:

(0] approximately HK$68.0 million for the settlement of the Acquisition
Consideration;

(i) approximately HK$46.0 million for the repayment of the Cash Advance;

(iii) approximately HK$4.3 million for settlement of professional fees relating to
the Resumption; and

(iv) approximately HK$4.9 million for general working capital of the Enlarged
Group.

As at the date of this report, the intended usage of net proceeds from the Public
Offer (i) to (iii) above had been utilised as planned.

The legal actions brought against the Company by its previous substantial
shareholder, Perfect Gate Holdings Limited, as announced before and subsequent
to the publication of the Prospectus, required the Company to appoint legal
counsels both in Hong Kong and Cayman Islands to defend them in order to resume
trading of shares of the Company on 26 July 2019.

The legal costs finally agreed with the legal advisers were in excess of those
budgeted for in the Prospectus. As such the HK$4.9 million earmarked for working
capital in respect of (iv) above has been reallocated wholly for settlement of
additional professional fees relating to the Resumption.

The Board considered that there would be no material adverse effect on the
working capital of the Enlarged Group and the reallocation under the circumstance
was appropriate and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The key risks and uncertainties to which the Group is exposed to are summarised as

follows:

Vi.

Vii.

Viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

Goodwill impairment could negatively affect reported results of operations of
the Group;

Intangible assets impairment could negatively affect reported results of
operations of the Group;

The revenue of the Group’s corporate financial advisory service is on a
project-by-project basis and non-recurring in nature;

The Group derives a significant portion of its revenue from its asset
management services under which it only has one client;

Delay in or termination of transactions may have an adverse impact on the
Group’s financial performance;

The Group derives a significant portion of its revenue under its corporate
finance advisory services from some major clients;

Revenue derived from commission based services may be uncertain;
The Group is reliant on key management personnel to conduct business.
Failure to retain them or to attract suitable replacements would have an

adverse impact on operations;

Potential employee misconduct could damage the Group’s reputation,
financial position, and business relationships with clients;

Potential exposure to professional liability and litigation;

The Group is subject to extensive regulatory requirements, including under
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance, non-compliance with
which, or changes in these regulatory requirements, may affect the Group’s
business operations and financial results;

The Group is subject to credit risk;

The Group’s internal control system may be subject to failures and limitations;
and

The Group may experience failure in its information technology system.

For further elaboration of the risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, please

refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.
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Business and Financial Review (Continued)
XHBRUHEE(E)

PROSPECT

Yu Ming has been active in its corporate finance and asset management business
since its inception in 1997. Though Yu Ming has secured significant mandates in
January and February, the repercussions of the PRC travel restrictions caused by
the coronavirus create low visibility to our corporate finance advisory operations:—

1. Since face to face meetings have been the common interface with clients,
the challenges Yu Ming faces in 2020 will be the difficulties of meeting PRC
clients in the corporate finance business, where client instructions and
professional parties’ discussions are most effective in physical meetings.

2. Some of our works involve reviewing recommendations or decisions of the
Stock Exchange where we and clients physically attend to make effective
representation at listing committee hearings. The imposition of a 14-day
quarantine on PRC clients travelling to Hong Kong with a standard seven-day
stay permit make it impossible for them to attend those hearings physically.
If hearings are postponed, the income recognition of such mandates would
likewise be postponed. If the hearings are held with a conference call, the
clients would not be able to make an effective representation face-to-face
with the listing committee members. Therefore, the travel restrictions are
expected to affect revenue, but the extent is too early to conclude.

Other than the coronavirus, the aggressive regime adopted by the Stock
Exchange in the past two years in delisting listed companies created new business

opportunities for Yu Ming. We will continue to maintain our presence in assisting
listed companies to minimise procedural abuses in the delisting process.

Lee Wa Lun, Warren
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren (“Mr. Warren Lee”), aged 56, was appointed as
an executive Director on 25 July 2019 and acts as the Managing Director of
the Company. He was one of the founding directors of Yu Ming Investment
Management Limited (“Yu Ming”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in
August 1996 and has worked in Yu Ming ever since. Mr. Warren Lee is responsible
for overseeing business development of Yu Ming, maintaining client relationship,
monitoring industry developments and supervising corporate finance advisory and
asset management teams on the provision of services to clients.

Mr. Warren Lee is currently the chairman of the board of directors and an executive
director of SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited (“SHK”), a company listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 666). He was appointed as SHK’s director in September 2004.

Mr. Warren Lee is appointed as an independent non-executive director of Wise
Ally International Holdings Limited (“Wise Ally”) in December 2019. Wise Ally is the
company listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9918).

From December 2008 to November 2013, Mr. Warren Lee was a director of
First Natural Foods Holdings Limited (now known as Imperial Pacific International
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1076). From June 2010 to June 2013, Mr. Warren Lee was an executive
director of Viva China Holdings Limited, a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8032).

From December 2006 to May 2007, Mr. Warren Lee was the chief executive officer
of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc. (now known as Nam Tai Property Inc.), an electronics
manufacturing services provider listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE:
NTP). Between March 2004 and February 2006, he was an independent non-
executive director of Nam Tai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited (“NTEEP”),
a company formerly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (former stock
code: 2633, which was privatised on 13 November 2009). Between February
2006 and April 2007, he was re-designated as a non-executive director of NTEEP.
Between January 2007 and April 2007, he was also a non-executive director of J.I.C.
Technology Company Limited (now known as China Renewable Energy Investment
Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
987).

Mr. Warren Lee graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree from The University of
East Anglia in England in 1986 and obtained a Master of Science degree from The
City University Business School, London in 1988.

Mr. Warren Lee is licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”)
to act as a Responsible Officer to carry on Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4
(advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”).
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Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
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Mr. Lam Chi Shing (“Mr. Lam”), aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director
on 25 July 2019. He is a functional director and the portfolio manager of Yu Ming.
He joined Yu Ming in 2005 and is a Responsible Officer for Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO. Mr. Lam mainly
supervises the asset management business of Yu Ming. He is responsible for
formulating investments ideas, identifying different investment opportunities both
in listed and unlisted securities and execution of investment decisions. He is also
involved in the provision of corporate finance services by Yu Ming.

Mr. Lam has over 13 years of experience in asset management and corporate
finance gained in Yu Ming. Prior to joining Yu Ming, Mr. Lam worked in corporate
lending and syndication department of the Bank of East Asia, Limited.

Mr. Lam graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2002 with a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree, and is accredited with Chartered
Financial Analyst since September 2009.

Ms. Li Ming (“Ms. Li”), aged 42, was appointed as an executive Director on
25 July 2019. She joined Yu Ming in October 2007 and was appointed as an
associate director and a corporate finance director of Yu Ming since January 2010
and January 2014 respectively. She is a Responsible Officer in Type 1 (dealing in
securities) and Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities as well
as a Licensed Representative in Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO and is responsible for supervising
and leading execution of corporate finance projects of Yu Ming. She is also involved
in the provision of asset management services by Yu Ming.

Ms. Li has over 17 years of experience in corporate finance. Prior to joining Yu
Ming, she worked with Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) Limited (whose business
was listed under ZZ Capital International Limited (formerly known as Asian Capital
Holdings Limited) on the GEM of the Stock Exchange in 2010 with stock code:
8295) from April 2001 to October 2007.

Ms. Li obtained Master of Finance (Investment Management) degree from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2010 and Bachelor of Arts degree in Business
Administration awarded by the University of Hertfordshire of the United Kingdom
in 2000 (under a programme offered in conjunction with Beijing Inti Management
College and INTI International University & Colleges).
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Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Chi Kong (“Mr. Li”), aged 66, was appointed as a non-executive Director on
25 July 2019. Mr. Li is the chairman of the board of directors of the Company, the
chairman and member of nomination committee and member of audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company. He joined Yu Ming in 2008 as a
director. He is responsible for overseeing the corporate strategy and development
of Yu Ming. Mr. Li has extensive experience in finance and accounting and was
an executive director of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 56), from October 1999 until
redesignation as a non-executive director in July 2018. He is also general consultant
of Allied Group Limited (“Allied Group”), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 373), since July 2018 when he retired from the
position of the group financial controller.

From December 2011 to March 2014, Mr. Li was an executive director of Tongfang
Kontafarma Holdings Limited (formerly known as Allied Cement Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1312). Prior
to joining Allied Group in 1996 as the group financial controller, Mr. Li worked for
Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Company (now known as KPMG) and Price Waterhouse
& Company (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers) and acted as the group
financial controller of Hopewell Holdings Limited (former stock code: 54, which was
privatised in May 2019), Century City International Holdings Limited (“Century City”,
stock code: 355) and Paliburg International Holdings Limited (the listing of which was
replaced by Paliburg Holdings Limited, stock code: 617), as well as two other listed
companies which were disposed of by Century City, known at the time as Richfield
International Holdings Limited and Cathay City International Holdings Limited.

Mr. Li graduated from the University of Edinburgh in Scotland, United Kingdom in
1975 with a Bachelor of Science degree and obtained a Postgraduate Diploma in
Accounting from Heriot-Watt University in Edinburgh in 1976. He is a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland and a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao (“Mr. Kuo”), aged 43, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 23 December 2019. He is also a member of audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Kuo is the chairman and the
general manager of First Steamship Co. Limited (“First Steamship”), a substantial
Shareholder. He is also a director and the chairman of Grand Ocean Retail Group
Limited, a subsidiary of First Steamship. Both companies listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation. In addition, Mr. Kuo is a director of Taiwan Environment
Scientific Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Taipei Exchange, and a non-executive
director of Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (“Sandmartin”), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability with its shares listed on the Main board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 482). He was a non-executive director and
chairman of the board of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 102), for a period from December
2017 to April 2019. He was also a director of IRC Properties Inc., a company listed
on the Philippine Stock Exchange, for the period from July 2017 to May 2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
EEBEERAR(E)

A winding up petition dated 5 July 2017 was filed by a petitioner against Sandmartin
(the “Petition”), which was prior to the appointment of Mr. Kuo as a non-executive
director of Sandmartin, and the Petition was dismissed by an order granted by the
High Court of Hong Kong on 7 January 2019.

Mr. Kuo has several years of work experience in investment advisory, financial
advisory and corporate finance at PricewaterhouseCoopers, Bank of America
Merrill Lynch and Private Equity Management Group and held various key roles
at several private and listed companies engaging in (i) the administrative and
corporate business; (i) corporate finance; and (i) general management in real estate
development business, shipping business, retailing business and logistics business.
Mr. Kuo has a wealth of experience in business strategy development and innovation
management.

Mr. Kuo graduated with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from
Aletheia University in Taiwan and holds a master degree of business administration
from Pace University in 2003 in the United States. Mr. Kuo is an inactive certified
public accountant of the New Jersey State Board of Accountancy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Sze Chung (“Mr. Chan”), aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 26 July 2019. He is the chairman and member of audit
committee and member of remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Company. He has over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr.
Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Tongfang Kontafarma
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1312).

From December 2009 to August 2010, Mr. Chan was the chief financial officer of
Coolpoint Energy Limited (now known as Viva China Holdings Limited), a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8032).

Mr. Chan became financial controller of Nam Tai Group Management Limited in April
2001, and was promoted in September 2008 as chief financial officer of NTEEP, a
company formerly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (former stock
code: 2633, which was privatised on 13 November 2009) and also as acting chief
financial officer of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc. (now known as Nam Tai Property, Inc.),
a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: NTP).
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Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)

Before joining Nam Tai Group Management Limited, Mr. Chan was employed as the
financial controller of J.I.C. Enterprises (Hong Kong) Limited, a company engaged
in manufacturing and trading of liquid crystal display panels, and was employed by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu during the period from January 1993 to August 1997 and
served as a senior accountant at the time of his resignation.

Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Wales with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting and Finance in 1991 and obtained a Master of Arts degree in Accounting
and Finance at the University of Lancaster in December 1992. Mr. Chan is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and that he is also
recognised as a chartered financial analyst by the CFA Institute of the United States
of America.

Mr. Suen Chi Wai (“Mr. Suen”), aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 26 July 2019. He is also a member of audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the Company. He is
a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and a partner of Withers. Mr. Suen has
approximately 20 years of experience in corporate finance and with area of practice
principally in initial public offerings on the Stock Exchange, mergers and acquisitions,
corporate reorganisations and Listing Rules compliance, and he has advised clients
from various industries such as clean energy, pharmaceutical, medical, retails,
manufacturing, entertainment and biological.

Mr. Suen has served as an independent non-executive director of Xin Yuan
Enterprises Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1748) since September 2018, and Venus Medtech
(Hangzhou) Inc., a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2500) since July 2019.

Before joining Withers, Mr. Suen was an associate and later a partner of DLA
Piper Hong Kong from June 2007 to May 2012 and May 2012 to February 2018,
respectively, and served as a manager in the investment products department of
the SFC from October 2005 to July 2006, responsible for reviewing applications of
collective investment schemes and monitoring continuing compliance of authorised
schemes. Mr. Suen was an assistant solicitor at Woo Kwan Lee & Lo from
September 2000 to March 2005.

Mr. Suen received a bachelor of science degree from the University of East Anglia
in the United Kingdom in July 1987 and a postgraduate certificate in laws from the
University of Hong Kong in June 1998. Mr. Suen was admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong in October 2000 and in England and Wales in December 2003. Mr. Suen has
also been a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
since May 1998 and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since April 1993.

EEEESKE (&)

RIMAEASBEERERARN MRELASEEEREHNET
B5 (EB)BRAR(KEREREERMABERF) NI B4R
& YN —hh=F—A=—WhtF N\ AHEREERREE.
BRI BRTENTT - REBHERSEES RS -

REER—NN—FEEREBETASR - BRSSP BHXE
BB YR NANZF+ - AESHREFEAZNE R
M XBRT R - RELERTB A RS &EE Kk
XEEMEHAMAEEE - RELTERA REBRFFTHED
rEHBENRFABEINE -

BEREE([REE] © 5557 —NELAZ TR A%
RERBIIENTES - f&)‘fﬁﬂi T%*F?,\ BKE - RE
ZEEKENRFWEZEGKE - RATERERME REEL
BEA - REEABR0FEERALR  BRXRHTESR
%Hﬁi‘?&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’&ﬁﬁé‘é% CGHE - AREERLETRAGHE - M
HEAEPREBRER  HE - BF  TE  25E  RER
EMEZETE

BELEB -_ZE-N\FHLARETERCEEEAR AR (R
xﬁﬁi’fbﬂ:m ~El (RS - 1748)) REZZ—NFL AR
EEMMNBABERSMRND BRI (RBRPAER EHATF]
(Beta 5% - 2500)) MBI IFAITES »

EMAGELZA - BARESINRZZZLFAAEZ—=
FRARZZE—ZFRAZZT - \F_ARBEZMER
TR ETRIRAEA  UR_TTRAFTAZZTTAF
T AEAREEREERDLE  AERTEBIRETEINA
B WERRAFEANFESR  c BRAER_TTTFNAZ
ZETREZ AR R M TR ERIRER -

BREER-NNEFEARNERRLZIEFIERRRGIEE T2
i R=NNNFRARBERBESEEMRLEFTE - %
ER-ZEZFTAREBRR_ZZ=F T - ARERE X
B ATERS R AN ER o LB —NNN\F I ALK R
ARG AEERER  YE-NWN=FUARKAETEE

NS

TR A M EETAD o

RESBERERAA 2019F#

23



24

Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
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Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred (“Mr. Sum”), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 26 July 2019. He is the chairman and
member of remuneration committee and member of audit committee and nomination
committee of the Company. He is the Head of Corporate Finance, Equity Capital
Markets and Debt Capital Markets Department of BOCOM International Holdings
Company Limited (“BOCOM”). He had been with BOCOM from September 2008 to
September 2016 and re-joined in March 2017. Between 2002 and 2008, Mr. Sum
had been with Taiwan Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited (now known as KGI
Capital (Hong Kong) Limited). After leaving BOCOM in September 2016 and before
re-joining in March 2017, he worked in CEB International Capital Corporation Limited
and Celestial Capital Limited.

Mr. Sum was admitted as Certified Practising Accountant of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants in 1997 until 2008. Mr. Sum obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree from The University of East Anglia in England in 1986 and a Master
of Commerce degree from The University of New South Wales in Australia in 1992.
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For the period from 1 July 2019 to 24 July 2019, The current board
of Directors of Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (the
“Board”) and the joint and several liquidators (the “Former Liquidators”)
were only able to obtain incomplete books and records of the Company
despite having taken all reasonable steps. Due to absence of information
and the non-cooperation of the former directors of the Company, the
Report of the Directors was prepared in accordance with the best
knowledge and the limited information available to the current Directors.
Accordingly, the Board submitted its report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019.

References are made to the circular dated 27 April 2019 (the “Circular”)
and announcement of annual results for the year ended 30 June 2019
of the Company dated 30 September 2019 (the “Announcement”)
respectively. Unless otherwise stated, capitalised terms used in this
annual report shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
Circular and the Announcement.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiary are investment holding and general
trading and export up to the Acquisition Completion and has been
changed into provision of corporate finance advisory services and asset
management services from 25 July 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the six-month period from 1
July 2019 to 31 December 2019 and a discussion on the Group’s future
business development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and
Business and Financial Review on pages 4 to 18 of this annual report.
Possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out
in the Business and Financial Review on page 17 of this annual report
and the Corporate Governance Report on pages 38 to 54 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Group are set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 55 to 60.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company itself is an investment holding company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Group’s operations are carried out by its operating subsidiary,
Yu Ming. Yu Ming is licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong
Kong, and is subject to applicable laws, regulations and codes of relevant regulatory
authorities in Hong Kong, such as the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”) and Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance
(Chapter 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the reporting period and up to the
date of this annual report, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong in all material respects relating to
the business operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES AND CLIENTS

The key relationships of the Group with its employees and clients are discussed in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 55 to 60.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

Following the retirement of all former directors on 12 June 2019, the Company has
no director up to 24 July 2019. Accordingly, the audit committee has not been
maintained from 1 July 2019 to 25 July 2019. The current Directors were appointed
on 25 July 2019 and 26 July 2019 and the Board has set up an audit committee on
26 July 2019.

The audit committee has reviewed the annual results for the six-month period from 1
July 2019 to 31 December 2019.

The figures contained in the financial information set out in pages 68 to 151 of this
annual report have been audited by the Company’s auditor, BDO Limited (“BDQO”).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the six-month period from
1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 amounted to HK$20,000 (year ended 30 June
2019: Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the top five
customers together accounted for approximately 65.7% (year ended 30 June
2019: N/A) of the Group’s revenue and the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 20.0% (year ended 30 June 2019: N/A) of the Group’s revenue.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the principal activities of the
Group. None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns 5% or more of the issued Shares)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The financial performance of the Group for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019 and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 151.

No dividend is declared or recommended for the six-month period from 1 July 2019
to 31 December 2019 (year ended 30 June 2019: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during the six-
month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019 are set out in Note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 31
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 32
to the consolidated financial statements. As at 31 December 2019, details of the
distributable reserves of the Company are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

There is insufficient information for the Company to ascertain whether there were
any reserves available for distribution as at 30 June 2019.
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In accordance with the laws of the Cayman Islands and articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), the Company’s share premium account is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 152.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the reporting period and as at the date of this report were:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren (Managing Director) (appointed on 25 July 2019)
Mr. Lam Chi Shing (appointed on 25 July 2019)
Ms. Li Ming (appointed on 25 July 2019)

Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Chi Kong (Chairman) (appointed on 25 July 2019)
Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao (appointed on 23 December 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Sze Chung (appointed on 26 July 2019)
Mr. Suen Chi Wai (appointed on 26 July 2019)
Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred (appointed on 26 July 2019)

Biographical details of Directors of the Company are set out on pages 19 to 24 of
the annual report.

In accordance with the article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lee Wa Lun,
Warren, Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”). Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao
was appointed as Director by the Board and who will hold office until the AGM. Each
of the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
AGM.

The Company has received confirmations of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange from all current independent non-executive directors of the Company, and
considers them to be independent.

Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited Annual report 2019

RERASHSENRAQRMABERZMA (TEMEEAR]) -

WRBREERYERREE B  ARRERENEEERFEBF
R Z B 0 BIARRRIMRRD S ERR T AREAR BB R DK
A8 o

T BEE
BRAEEBEREVRFEz£EREEHABEREHNE
1528 °

BE

RIBEIRRARE AR EER -

BTES:

TRG S (FFRLE) (CE-NFLA-+RBERE)
MRS (CE-NFLA - TRAREN)
Tkt (CF-NELA-TRABE(D)
FHTES:

FERKEEE) (=
BARELE(ZE—

—“NEFELAZTHAEZD)
hi-}—_ﬂ_ﬂ—:m%é&)

BYFHTES:

REBEELE (CE-NFEAZTRAEEZD)
FEREE(CE-NFELAZTRAEED)
ZEREEE(CE-NFELAZTRAEZE)

AAREENERFHBHNFRFE19AEHE24E -

RIBABEIZAMANE1081F  FEREL  REEXERSE
HEARENARRRERRBERSG ((RRBFAE)) LW
BRE - BARELEEEZSZEREZRBWZEHEERR
BEFRERIL - F DUREESTAEBABEREREF K
g LERE(E -

ARABCWEI AR RIMARIEE L IFNTE R A R EH AT
BEETRBN( ETRRNDE3AMGE Bt 2 R - R



DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren, executive Director, has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of five years commencing from 25 July 2019,
which shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Mr. Lam Chi Shing and Ms. Li Ming, the executive Directors and Mr. Li Chi Kong,
a non-executive Director, have entered into service agreements and a letter of
appointment with the Company respectively for an initial term of three years
commencing from 25 July 2019, which shall continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice, three months’ notice and one
month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other respectively.

Each of Mr. Chan Sze Chung, Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred, the
independent non-executive Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 26 July 2019, which
shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by not less than one month’s
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao, a non-executive Director has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 23 December
2019, which shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by not less than
one months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the current Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, all the current non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) were appointed for a specific term of three
years which shall continue thereafter but subject to the relevant provisions of the
Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall
vacate or retire from their office.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emolument of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in Notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, SHK Hong
Kong Industries Limited (“SHK”), of which Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren is a director,
is obliged to pay a management fee of HK$8,123,000 receivable by the Group in
accordance with a management agreement signed between the Group and SHK.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, or its
subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director of the Company or his connected
entities had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
period or at any time during the period.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESSES

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Board is
not aware of any Directors of the Company being considered to have interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

The interests and short positions of the Directors of the Company in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2019, which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company were deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to be and were recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Interests in shares of the Company
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RAEQB R R

% of the total relevant

Nature Number issued shares as at

Name of Directors Capacity of interests of shares held 31 December 2019

RZB-NF

+=ZRB=+—HtEH

EsnR 27 EEME FERGEE ERITROBHEEDL

Lee Wa Lun, Warren Beneficial owner Personal 227,250,000 19.95%
Ty BEREEA fEA

Lam Chi Shing Beneficial owner Personal 17,800,000 1.56%
PR BEREEA fEA

Li Ming Beneficial owner Personal 17,800,000 1.56%
4R BEREEA fEA

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the six-month period from 1 July
2019 to 31 December 2019 was the Company, its subsidiaries or its associated
corporations, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the Chief Executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against
the Directors of the Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Board, the following persons (not
being former directors or the current Directors or chief executive of the Company)
had an interest (long positions) or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company, other than
the interests of the current Directors as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Associated Corporations”:

FERR2EHFER

REZZ-NF+A=+—8 HEREEMA  THALQL
FARBHNEE  REEERERTRAR) RREZES L
B 5 { 5 3361RA 1T B B R M A A2 BB 1) 2k AE B A 0 o
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Bz tEm (B R) AR - B RS ENMERRRIBRA S
EMSENAE—IER TRARBBRERERE LREZHE
5% A s (R [EENAR R MARBHER 2 0 - HHE
o RfEF 2 Em kR —BP R ENREESNERIN

% of the total relevant

Name of Nature Number of issued shares as at
Substantial Shareholders Notes Capacity of interests shares held 31 December 2019
RZE-NF
+=ZB=+—HtEH
TERRER ME 545 EEME BFERGHBE CRTROEHEIL
First Steamship Company 1 Interest of controlled  Corporate interest 331,055,000 29.05%
Limited (“First Steamship”) corporation
SRHAFGMEE AT
First Mariner Holding 1 Interest of controlled Corporate interest 331,055,000 29.05%
Limited (“FMH”") corporation
SRHAFGREE AT
First Steamship S.A. (“FSSA”) 1 Interest of controlled  Corporate interest 331,055,000 29.05%
corporation
REHI A B OER NIl
Cheung Kit Shan Susanna 2 Interest of a spouse Family interest 227,250,000 19.94%
SRR iRkt ENIY
Lau Yau Cheung (“Mr. Lau”) 3 Interest of controlled ~ Corporate interest/ 75,605,000 6.64%
Rzt (T815c 4D corporation/ Personal interest/
Beneficial owner/ Family interest
Interest of a spouse
ZEGARGER  ArERS
BEnlAAN BN
[k e NS 3
BH Equities Limited (“BH Equities”) 3 Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 75,590,000 6.63%
BEREEA BEamEm
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Note:

1. Heritage Riches Limited (“HRL”) and Mariner Far East Limited (“MFE”) hold
234,065,000 shares and 96,990,000 shares of the Company respectively. HRL and
MFE are wholly-owned by FSSA and FMH respectively. FSSA and FMH are wholly-
owned by First Steamship. Therefore, First Steamship, FSSA and FMH are deemed
to have an interest in the said shares in which HRL and MFE are interested.

2. Ms. Cheung Kit Shan Susanna is the spouse of Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren. By virtue of
the SFO, Ms. Cheung Kit Shan Susanna is deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren.

3. BH Equities holds 75,590,000 shares of the Company. BH Equities is wholly-owned
by Mr. Lau. Therefore, Mr. Lau controlled 6.64% interest in the Company (inclusive of
Mr. Lau’s and his spouse’s personal interests) and is deemed to have an interest in
the said shares in which BH Equities is interested.

4.  Reference is made to the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in
Securities” in the Report of the Directors set out in 2018/19 Annual Report and the
public offer prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2019, the percentage level of
beneficial interests of Perfect Gate Holdings Limited (“Perfect Gate”) in the Company
(interested in 230,000,000 shares of the Company as reported in its notification of
disclosure of interest dated 8 December 2017) might be diluted from around 23% to
even around 2% after Completion of the Capital Reorganisation, YM Subscription,
the New Placing and the Public Offer and therefore ceased to have a notifiable
interest. Although no notice about cessation or change of notifiable interest in the
Company has been received from Perfect Gate, it is reasonable not to include it in
the list of substantial shareholders above and in future until further notice has been
received.

The information stated in Note 4 above is based on the public information and the
available books and records of the Company provided by the Former Liquidators.
No representation is made by the Company as to the accuracy and completeness of
the information.

Save as disclosed above, the Board is not aware, as at 31 December 2019, of
any person (who are not directors and chief executive of the Company) who had
an interest (in long position) or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Old Share Option Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) of the
Company held on 19 June 2013. The Old Share Option Scheme was terminated
and a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by
the Company pursuant to a resolution passed at the EGM of the Company held on
22 May 2019. The New Share Option Scheme has a remaining life of approximately
9 years.

The New Share Option Scheme was adopted for the primary purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their contribution to the Group, which
will expire on 21 May 2029. Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to any participant (“Participant(s)”) which includes (1) any
employee (whether full-time or part-time) of the Group and any entity in which
the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”); (2) any director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors) of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (3) any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (4) any customer of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (5) any consultant, adviser, manager, officer or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity;
or (6) any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group or any Invested Entity eligible for options under the New
Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
New Share Option Scheme must not exceed 113,933,019 shares, being 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of resumption of trading (i.e. 26
July 2019). The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to a Participant in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of the individual limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval.
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Options granted must be taken up within 21 business days from the offer date, upon
payment of HK$1.00 per offer of grant of an option. Option may be exercised after
it has vested at any time during the period to be notified by the Board (as defined in
the New Share Option Scheme) at the time of the grant of the option but shall end
in any event not later than 10 years from the offer date, subject to the provisions for
early termination of the New Share Option Scheme. The Subscription Price shall be
determined by the Board (as defined in the New Share Option Scheme) and notified
to a Participant and shall not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the offer date,
which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five consecutive business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 and the year
ended 30 June 2019, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed
or outstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option
Scheme.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed shares during the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transaction are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Board

is not aware of any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
made for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
The Company has no pre-emptive rights existing.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available, as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A detailed Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 38 to 54 of the Annual
Report.

Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEgHRE(E)

RIHE R AN BB EE B NEER - YN E
MRHEREZO1.00BTNER - BEREATNERER - £
BEEE (Ex RMBRIE ) REBRER NS0 RN ER
BT - HEREAIERT - REH BB0FRER - LAR
BABEXRFRILFTEREAS - RBEEHEES(EER
BRI EE - YHEREE - ENFER TIEED
EeE | @NEH S WAREXR)BRAE R RERMR
PRADITHE ¢ (0) BRI AT R EEE L X AT AR
BERTREN FHRTE © RORMHEE -

KB hELA-BEE-T-AET=A=t—ALAME
ASERBE -2 NEAASTALEE - B EARRE
RIS IR S B R AT AR ST BUBIE ) - 1768 - BE8H - S
HMKITE -

BE HEIEEARLQT LHES
R-B-NELA-ARE-B-AET=A=T—AILXME
AR - ARATSHEARBELVEERE - HEIREAL
AUEA LT -

BB LRX5

HEREA L Z RS MFIEER RS IS RRMFESS

BREXS
K-Z-NF+A—BRE-E-NF+=A=+—HI~ME
AR - EREATAER B NELA—BRE=B—A
F+= A=+—BINE A BET S EARER S SR
%5

BrBEE
RGN AR  ARTLRFEELBEE -

RBEER

1

RBAIESHER - RARERH  ARFCHEBRR AR

ABERBERERAA 2019F %

35



36

Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEgHR&E(E)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Impact of Novel Coronavirus Outbreak to the Group

Since January 2020, the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) has dealt a
big blow to the global business environment. Up to the date of this annual report,
COVID-19 has not resulted in material negative impact on the Group. In view of the
development and spread of COVID-19 subsequent to the date of this annual report,
further changes in economic conditions for the Group arising thereof may have
negative impact on the financial results of the Group, the extent of which could not
be estimated as at the date of this annual report. The Group will keep continuous
attention to the situation of the COVID-19 and react actively to its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.

AUDITOR

BDO was appointed as auditors of the Company on 25 November 2019 upon the
retirement of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI ANDA”) with effect from
that date. ZHONGHUI ANDA was the auditor of the Company for the financial years
ended 30 June 2017, 2018 and 2019.

The accompanying financial statements for the six-month period from 1 July 2019
to 31 December 2019 were audited by BDO who will retire and, being eligible,
offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for its reappointment as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the AGM.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE
COMPANY’S CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD
FROM 1 JULY 2019 TO 31 DECEMBER 2019

As disclosed in sections headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” in independent auditor’s
report contained on pages 61 to 67 of this report, the auditor of the Company
issued a disclaimer of opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 in relation to (1)
deconsolidation of companies; (2) convertible bonds; (3) limitation of scope of
work on certain liabilities; (4) gain on debt restructuring; (5) warrant reserve; and (6)
comparative information.
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THE VIEW OF THE MANAGEMENT OF THE
COMPANY, THE AUDIT COMMITTEE AND THE
BOARD ON THE AUDITORS’ OPINION

As disclosed in section headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” in Independent Auditor’s
Report on the Group’s Consolidation Financial Statements for the six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 on pages 61 to 67 of this Annual Report,
the auditor of the Company issued a disclaimer of opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31
December 2019 in relation to (1) deconsolidation of companies; (2) convertible
bonds; (3) limitation of scope of work on certain liabilities; (4) gain on debt
restructuring; (5) warrant reserve; and (6) comparative information (collectively, the
“Audit Modifications”).

It should be noted that the Audit Modifications were related to the financial
information on or before completion of the group restructuring which took place on
25 July 2019.

As advised by BDO, the independent auditors of the Company, the Group’s financial
information of the corresponding period (six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31
December 2019) will be required to be disclosed as comparative figures (2019
Comparative Figures”) in the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ending 31 December 2020. BDO expects to issue qualified opinion on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2020 on
the comparability of the related 2019 Comparative Figures and current year’s figures
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash
flows and the respective disclosures of the consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 31 December 2020 arising from the audit scope limitations on the audit
of consolidated financial statements for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019. In addition, since there will be no 2019 Comparative Figures
contained in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December
2021, the qualified opinion in the independent auditors’ report will be removed in
respect of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31
December 2021.

Based on the above-mentioned information, the management of the Company, the
audit committee of the Company and the Board agree with the view of BDO that the
Group’s affairs on or before completion of the Group’s restructuring which led to the
Audit Modifications have no on-going effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
information in future reporting periods.

By order of the Board
Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited

Lee Wa Lun, Warren
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRERMSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The joint and several liquidators (the “Former Liquidators”) were appointed on 17
August 2015 pursuant to an Order of the High Court of Hong Kong. Since the
appointment of the Former Liquidators, it was found that certain books and records
of Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries cannot be
obtained and accessed during the period from 17 August 2015 to 25 July 2019 (the
“Corporate Governance Period before Resumption”). The current Directors were
appointed on 25 and 26 July 2019 and 23 December 2019.

The current board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) believes that corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and has adopted various
measures to ensure that a high standard of corporate governance is maintained.
With effect from 26 July 2019, the Company has applied the principles (the
“Principles”) and adopted code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”)
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own
code on corporate governance practices. The current practices will be reviewed and
updated regularly to follow the latest practices in corporate governance.

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, except for the
Corporate Governance Period before Resumption, the Company has complied with
the Principles and the Code Provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for the
following:

(@ Given the winding up and restructuring of the Company, all former directors
retired on 12 June 2019. The current Directors were appointed on 25 and 26
July 2019 and 23 December 2019. Accordingly, the Company has no director,
thus has no chairman and no chief executive from 1 July 2019 to 24 July 2019.
Since the Company has no director from 1 July 2019 to 24 July 2019, the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee have not been
maintained from 1 July 2019 to 25 July 2019 and therefore the Company was
unable to comply with relevant Code Provisions under Sections A, B, C, D, E
and F of the CG Code.

(b)  An issuer must include at least three independent non-executive directors,
with at least one of the independent non-executive directors having
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise, and the number of independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the Board pursuant to the
Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of Listing Rules. Based on the information
available, following to the retirement of Ms. Zhao Jianhua on 12 June 2019
and the resignation of Mr. Li Yik Sang on 18 June 2014, Mr. Cheung Ka
Yue on 14 November 2014, Mr. Zhang Shaosheng on 19 November 2014
and Mr. Wong Kin Tak on 9 February 2015, there was no independent
non-executive director on the Board from 1 July 2019 to 25 July 2019.

Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited Annual report 2019
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(c)  The audit committee should comprise non-executive directors only pursuant to
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Following to the winding up of the Company, the
Company has only one independent non-executive director who retired on 12
June 2019. The Company has no directors from 1 July 2019 to 24 July 2019
and therefore the audit committee has not been maintained from 1 July 2019
to 25 July 2019.

(d) An issuer's management should ensure the external auditor attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies
and auditor’s independence (under code Provision E.1.2). The management
had requested the representative of auditors to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”) held on 25 November 2019. However, the
representative of auditor was absent from the AGM as he passed away on the
same date.

The exceptions (a) to (c) above occurred during the Corporate Governance Period
before Resumption.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Company
had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Due to the non-
cooperation of the former Directors of the Company, the Company was unable
to confirm whether the former Directors of the Company had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code for period from 1 July 2019 to 24 July
2019.

Having made specific enquiry of all current Directors, the Company confirmed that all
current Directors have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code during the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, except
for the Corporate Governance Period before Resumption.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

For the period from 1 July 2019 to 24 July 2019, the Company has no director. All
executive directors, Ms. Chen Xiao Fang, Mr. Zhang Liang and Mr. Xu Jiangtao and
independence non-executive director Ms. Zhao Jianhua retired on 12 June 2019.
After the Resumption of the Company, the current Directors were appointed on 25
and 26 July 2019 and 23 December 2019.

Except for the Corporate Governance Period before Resumption, during the six-
month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the roles of the Chairman
of the Company and the Managing Director of the Group are not exercised by the
same individual.
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Subsequent to the Resumption of the Company on 26 July 2019, the Company
has adopted a system of corporate governance. The Company has observed the
CG Code and appointed three independent non-executive directors and two non-
executive directors constituting not less than one-third of the members of the Board
upon Resumption. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren (Managing Director) (appointed on 25 July 2019)
Mr. Lam Chi Shing (appointed on 25 July 2019)
Ms. Li Ming (appointed on 25 July 2019)

Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Chi Kong (Chairman) (appointed on 25 July 2019)
Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao (appointed on 23 December 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Sze Chung (appointed on 26 July 2019)
Mr. Suen Chi Wai (appointed on 26 July 2019)
Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred (appointed on 26 July 2019)

The independent non-executive directors comprised top-notched professionals
(one lawyer, one accountant and one senior investment banker) who are capable of
safeguarding the corporate governance of the Company and protecting the interest
of all shareholders. Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out
on pages 19 to 24.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) between any members of the Board and in particular, between the
Chairman and the Managing Director.

All Directors have access to the services of the company secretary who regularly
updates the Board on governance and regulatory matters. Any Director and member
of the audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company may take independent professional advice if they so wish at the expense
of the Company, as arranged by the company secretary.

The Board has had regular Board meetings in accordance with the CG Code.
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Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings for the six-month period from 1
July 2019 to 31 December 2019:

Number of regular meetings

EHEBRRY
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Executive Directors

HITEE

Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren (Managing Director) (appointed on 25 July 2019)

FEMBELE(EFHLE) (CE-NFLATEREED

Mr. Lam Chi Shing (appointed on 25 July 2019)
MEREE(CE-—NFLAZTHAEEST)

Ms. Li Ming (appointed on 25 July 2019)

FHEZL(CE-NFLAZTHBEEERD

Non-Executive Directors

HHITEE

Mr. Li Chi Kong (Chairman) (appointed on 25 July 2019)
FERSEER) CE-NFELAZ+HRBERZE)
Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao (appointed on 23 December 2019)
FAZEE (ZE-NFTZAZT=AEEE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BUFHITEE

Mr. Chan Sze Chung (appointed on 26 July 2019)

RBREE(CE-NFELAZ T AEZD)

Mr. Suen Chi Wai (appointed on 26 July 2019)
FEEEE(CE-NFLAZHARZD)

Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred (appointed on 26 July 2019)

ZEELE(CT-NF AT NAEEZE)

2/2 100%
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N/A N/A
@R TNEM
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2/2 100%

2/2 100%

Due to change of financial year end from 30 June to 31 December as announced
by the Company on 10 October 2019, 2 regular Board meetings had been held
for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 at approximately
quarterly intervals. At least 14 days’ notice of a regular Board meeting is given to all
Directors to provide them with an opportunity to attend and all Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. Board papers
are despatched to the Directors at least 3 days before the meeting to ensure that
they have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the
meeting.

(a) Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and
Management

The Board is responsible for running the Group and drawing up the strategies
to be adopted. It ensures that proper risk management and internal control
systems are in place and that the Group’s business conforms to applicable
laws and regulations.

The Board may delegate any of its powers, authorities and discretion to
committees consisting of such Director or Directors and other persons as
the Board thinks fit, and it may from time to time revokes such delegation
or revokes the appointment of and discharge any such committees either
wholly or in part, and either as to persons or purposes, but every committee
so formed must, in the exercise of the powers, authorities and discretion so
delegated, conforms to any regulations that may from time to time be imposed
upon it by the Board.
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During regular meetings of the Board, the Board discusses and formulates the
overall strategies of the Group, monitors financial and investment performances
and discusses and approves the annual results, discusses and decides on
other significant matters, if necessary.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.

Director’s training is an ongoing process. During the six-month period from 1
July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the management had provide all members
of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties under the Listing Rules. The Company had funded training
courses during the period and will continue to arrange and/or funding training
opportunities in respect of the roles, functions and duties of Directors upon
requested by Directors. The Company had received record of trainings from
each Director relating to development and refreshment of their knowledge and
skills. The participation by individual Directors in the continuous professional
development during the period is recorded in the table below:

#ﬁ% Hemlt EFenRhk/AREGIERE
fi - %%Eﬂ%&&éﬁ%ﬁ ﬁm&?ﬁkﬁiﬁ%é B
%ﬁ&i)&%ﬁﬁ@iﬁ%lﬁ(ﬁu?ﬁ) °

AAFEHARFEZLEABENTEFLEZE 2R
Rk o

SRRV RFELITHBE - Z-NEFLA—HE
E-E-NFF A=+ Eixdlﬂ HE - EEED
RESE2ENERIEAEN  FARFAZRA K
ARETSEH FEREZEEOFMTE - "‘%%A
BRERSREFRELMARABITERL - AQF
B E B IR ﬁD%%EFﬁ ' $’“ﬁﬁ%%i§§m
R/SEBDEBEFZAC MR RBBENEIIRS
ARRCEESR ﬁ%ﬁ%@é’*@&%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%&&&m%%
FEsx e TRIMBEREFENHN2EFBEFTEERYN
RO

Attending expert

briefings/seminars/

conferences relevant

to the business or

Reading regulatory directors’ duties or
or monthly updates/  risk management or

attending in-house taxation or
Directors briefings financial reporting
SHERAEERES
RMELRGEHENAS BEIRBREERHG
BRAEHERHE RYBHERZER
= ABENE @NEERE2E
Executive Directors
HITEE

Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren (Managing Director) (appointed on 25 July 2019)
FEMEEEFELE) CT-NFELA-THREERD)

Mr. Lam Chi Shing (appointed on 25 July 2019)
MEREE(CE-NFLAZTHEERD)

Ms. Li Ming (appointed on 25 July 2019)

FHREUT (CTE-NFLAZTHEBREZD)

Non-Executive Directors

HHTEE

Mr. Li Chi Kong (Chairman) (appointed on 25 July 2019)
FERLEE(ER) CE-NAFLAZ+RAEZD)
Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao (appointed on 23 December 2019)
PARSE (CE-NF+-A=Z+=BEZD

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUHHTEE

Mr. Chan Sze Chung (appointed on 26 July 2019)
BREHELEE CE-NFEAZ T BEZE)

Mr. Suen Chi Wai (appointed on 26 July 2019)
HEREEECE-NFLAZT A BEED)

Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred (appointed on 26 July 2019)
BEREEE(CE-NFLAZTBEZE)

4 v
v v
v v
4 v
- v
4 v
v v
v/ _
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(b)

All responsible officers and licensed representatives of Yu Ming Investment
Management Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, three of
which are Executive Directors of the Company, are also required to undertake
a sufficient number of hours of continuous professional training in order to
maintain their Securities and Futures Commission licences to carry on regulated
activities.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as required under the CG Code. The major roles and functions of the Board in

respect of the corporate governance are:

—  to develop and review the Company’s policy and practices on corporate
governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

—  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

—  toreview the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board had considered the following corporate governance matters for the
six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019:

—  adoption of relevant policies and procedures after the Resumption;

- review of all policies and practices adopted by the Company including,
inter alia, shareholders communication policy, etc; and

- review of the compliance with the CG Code.
Chairman and Managing Director

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and effective
running of the Board.

The position of Managing Director is delegated with the authorities to manage
the Group’s business in all aspects effectively, implement major strategies,
make day-to-day decision and coordinate overall business operation.
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(c) Terms of appointment and re-election of Directors

Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors) of
the Company have a specific term of appointment for three years, subject to
retirement and re-election in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.

The Company has formal letters of appointment or service agreement for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment.

Board Committees

The Board is supported by three sub-committees, namely the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee to assist the Board in
discharging its responsibilities and to enhance the Group’s corporate governance
framework. Each committee has its own defined terms of reference which clearly
states the corresponding roles and responsibilities.

Audit Committee

An audit committee of the Board has been set up with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary
duties of the audit committee are mainly to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor, review financial
statements and oversee financial reporting system and internal control procedures
of the Company. The term of reference of the audit committee has been published
on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange on 25 July
2019.

The audit committee consists of Mr. Chan Sze Chung, Mr. Li Chi Kong, Mr. Suen
Chi Wai, Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred and Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao. Mr. Chan Sze Chung has
been appointed as the chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and

has access to independent professional advice according to the Company’s policy if

considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the audit committee are:

(@) torecommend to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and to consider any questions of resignation or dismissal

of the auditor;

(b) to consider and discuss with external auditor the nature and scope of each
year’s audit;

(c) toreview and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity;

Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited Annual report 2019

(c) EEZZFFRREEZEEF

ARRZFFATESR (BREBUIFNTES) BRZERB=
FZEEEH  HARBAARNABERMAAERERE
REE - NEERFAFASL  ER=02— /\%ﬂ(z
BEH(WEABALIF == B8 REAETPR=

2 ABERERT HEREFRELE E%Ef{f
R e
ARABERAZERZEELREHZE  FTABHEE
2 E BRI

ExZET

EXgRIET=AZEgXH  IEREES FHEESR

REZBRE  UBPESSRTEBREMEFAAKRELXER
BE - EREGTHRTEAGNBERE - 25 EHRERE
BIs M E

ERERES

RARERS  EESERLZESCERETRAF3211ER
ETRIGIRTEHBERE - %Vxﬁﬁﬁﬁixﬁﬁfi%@%
PR ENZREMERIMNERBOMANESSREES 25
MR ME B AR RIS BB EIE R NIRRT - B
BENBESECN T NFLtA-ThBTENAR AR
Uk B B ZX AR UL o

ERZBEERERBIBAL  FERIKLE  BEELEE %<§

%?ﬁi&;ﬂ/\%?ﬁi REBELCEZEREREZR

B o

BERZBGRRHEFTMERABITERY - WAHEARRBE
EEFRERSIBUEXER -

BEREZBEZTEMAG R
@) MEEFSRUZFFBIBRBMZIZME ERERER

B - LARHLESNE XD 2 Hr BN R B B R X EE
B R BENFHE R FOR AR BN 2 F &

b) ZERESNEZBE RS FRB I E R

0 I REZINEREE 2B REEMN



to review the interim and annual consolidated financial statements before
submission to the Board;

to discuss any problems and reservation arising from the interim review and
final audit, and any matters the external auditor may wish to discuss;

to review the external auditor’s management letters (if any) and management’s
response; and

to review the Group’s financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems.

The works of the audit committee during the period under review included:

(@)

reviewing annual results for the year ended 30 June 2019;

discussing with the management of the Company and the Former Liquidator
over the completeness, fairness and adequate accounting standards and
policies of the Group in the preparation of the annual financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2019;

reviewing and discussing with the external auditor over the financial reporting of
the Company;

reviewing and approving the 2019 audit scope and fees;

recommending to the Board, for the approval by the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”), of the appointment of the external auditor;

appointing the internal audit adviser and setting its audit scope and fee; and

reviewing the arrangement (including investigation and following up action, if
any) under the whistle blower policy.

As at 31 December 2019, the arrangement for employees of the Group to raise

concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control and

other matters through whistle blower policy is in place. No reporting had been

received by audit committee during the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31
December 2019.

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the audit
committee members met 1 time with external auditor. Each committee meeting

was supplied with the necessary financial information of the Group for enabling the

members to consider, review and assess matters of significance arising from the

work conducted.

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

tERERHSE (H)

@ RPRREFESMEBREXESSALITEN

@ BWEATHEHRFRECMELZEARNERRES
B RINEZEEREN 2 EAEE

() EHISNSZBEDBERE 2 T (A RERE 2 [E
53

© BEAKEZHBERE AREDERNBPEERG -

FHEEEREBNN 2 TIERIE

@ BMAREZBE-T-ASAASTHLFERTR
&

b EREBE-T-AFAASTALEEHBRES
SR D AR RATER A HAKEZ &EEAREK
HETRE  DFREH

(0 BSNEEREBMEHRNBAABZHBREEE

@) BEARME-—Z-NFERDBERER

@ MEESRBECINELBET - WEA
ot

RABER(TBER])

) ZEABNEBERITEEAEZHERER R

(0 THEBRPERZz LU (BEASREETY  W0A) -

“E-NFTZA=T R CERBREBBE LN &
ZIKEEEITEJEEM%iﬁi C AR R AMBIEAIGEFED
HZRRHBIZHME - R_E-NFLA-RRE_T N
FH-A=+— EIJLJIHHEF? FEZZBEWEREFFE
o

- NELA—BEE-T-NE+-A=+—RI1~AE

Sy

ﬁﬁﬂfﬁ ERZEGKEEIINEZEMABH—REH - BIR
ZESERYEREVACAEBENKER - #HKEZEE -

BRI RARTERSRZEREE °

ABERBERERAA 2019F %

45



46

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EEERRSE (E)

Attendance of individual members of audit committee at audit committee meetings
during the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019:

Number of meetings

ERRY

REE-NFLtA-BRE-Z-NF+-A=+—RHIKE
AREzZEeea@RERZ B el BNHES

Mr. Chan Sze Chung (Chairman) (appointed on 26 July 2019)
RBIEEE (ER) (ZE-NEFLAZTAEED)

Mr. Suen Chi Wai (appointed on 26 July 2019)
REREE(CE-NFLAZTRBEET)

Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred (appointed on 26 July 2019)
SRELEE(CE-NFLAZTRBEET)

Mr. Li Chi Kong (appointed on 23 December 2019)
FEREECE-NAF+AT=AREMD)

Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao (appointed on 23 December 2019)
BAZEE(CE-NF+-A-+=AREMD)

1M 100%
1M 100%
1M 100%
171 100%
N/A N/A
ANE A N diE P

* by invitation

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee of the Board has been set up with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The
primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all directors and
senior management of the Group, review and approve remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, and ensure none of the
directors or any of their associates determines their own remuneration. The term of
reference of the remuneration committee has been published on the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange on 25 July 2019.

The remuneration committee consists of Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred, Mr. Chan Sze
Chung, Mr. Li Chi Kong, Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao. Mr. Sum Wai Kei,
Wilfred has been appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee.

The remuneration committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties and has access to independent professional advice according to the
Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the remuneration committee are:

(@ to recommend to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management;

(b) to recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives approved by the Board from time to time;

(d) to review and approve the compensation payable to Executive Directors
relating to any loss or termination of their office or appointment;
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(e) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct; and

() to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, 2 remuneration
committee meetings were held with 100% attendance rate in the presence of
Mr. Li Chi Kong, Mr. Chan Sze Chung, Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Sum Wai Kei,
Wilfred. The Remuneration Committee had discussed and reviewed remuneration of
Executive Directors and Directors’ fee of all members of the Board; and reviewed the
remuneration of a candidate to be appointed as a new non-executive Director; and
made recommendation to the Board as well as the Group remuneration policy, etc.

The remuneration committee adopted the model under Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii).
Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Company is to ensure that all employees, including
Directors, are sufficiently compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the
Company and remuneration offered is appropriate for their duties and in line with
market practice. No Director, or any of his associates, and executive is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

Nomination Committee

A nomination committee of the Board has been set up with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the nomination
committee are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, identify
qualified individuals to become members of the Board, assess the independence of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The term of reference of the nomination committee has been published
on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange on 25 July
2019.

The nomination committee consists of Mr. Li Chi Kong, Mr. Chan Sze Chung, Mr.
Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred. Mr. Li Chi Kong has been appointed as
the chairman of the nomination committee.

The nomination committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties.

The major roles and functions of the nomination committee are:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition (including the skill, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship;
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(c) to assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of the Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee has formulated and set out the nomination policy
(“Nomination Policy”) in its terms of reference. The objective of the Nomination
Policy is to ensure that the Board should have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as well as plans in place
for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including periodical review of such
plans. The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual
vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for
decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
nomination committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified shall be his
or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company
and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective carrying out
by the Board of the responsibilities. Further details of the selection criteria and the
procedure are set out in the terms of reference of the nomination committee which
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, 2 nomination
committee meetings were held with 100% attendance rate in the presence of
Mr. Li Chi Kong, Mr. Chan Sze Chung, Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Sum Wai Kei,
Wilfred to (i) review the structure, size and composition of the Board, (i) assess the
independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors, (jii) review the re-election of
retiring directors at the annual general meeting held in 2019, (iv) review the board
diversity policy, (v) nomination of a candidate to be appointed as a non-executive
Director; and (vi) make recommendations to the Board.

In considering the nomination of appointment of new non-executive Director and
re-appointment of retiring Directors, the nomination committee, based on the
Nomination Policy, assessed the relevant candidates on criteria such as integrity,
experience, skill, professional qualifications, independent mind and ability to commit
time etc, and made recommendation to the Board for approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The board diversity policy of the Company sets out the objectives and principles
regarding board diversity for the benefits of achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives with a view of having a balanced diversity of both skills and experience
and of perspective. Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will
be considered against measurable objectives, taking into account the Company’s
business and needs.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, knowledge,
professional experience and skills. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
the contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the Board.

The Directors will consider and review the diversity of the Board and to set up, if
appropriate, measurable objectives according to the Company’s own business
model and specific needs.

Dividend Policy

The Company’s dividend policy aims at providing reasonable and sustainable returns
to its Shareholders whilst maintaining a position of financial stability which allows the
Company to take advantage of any investment and expansion opportunities that
may arise from time to time.

The Board may declare or propose dividend on an annual basis and/or may declare
interim dividends or special dividends. Proposal or declaration of dividends by the
Board is subject to consideration of the Company’s and the Group’s operating
results, accumulated and future earnings, gearing, liquidity position, capital
commitment requirement and future expansion plan as well as general economic
conditions and external factors that may have impact on the financial performance
and position of the Company and the Group. In addition, as the Company is a
holding company, the Board will also consider the dividends received from its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures as the ability to pay dividends by the
Company is dependent on the dividends received from those subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures.

The Board will regularly review the dividend policy and will amend and/or modify the
dividend policy if necessary.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The Executive Directors are closely involved in and are directly responsible for all
activities of the Group. The Board considers that the senior management comprise
the Executive Directors.

Particulars regarding senior management and other Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 111 to 112.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

BDO Limited was appointed as the external auditor of the Company with effect
from 25 November 2019. BDO Limited had issued a disclaimer of opinion on the
consolidated financial statements for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019. The responsibility of the external auditors with respect to
the financial reporting and details of the disclaimer of opinion are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 61 to 67 of this report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the fees
payable to the external auditors are set out as follows:

BEETI &

—NFEA-HBRE-T-NF+-A=+—HINE
Hﬁﬂf‘aﬁ  ER TONERERE AT BN BRI T

HK$'000
FHET
Audit fees payable 510
EREEA
Non-audit services Nil
FEE RIS i3
Total 510
“aEt
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

The former company secretary, Mr Tong Hing Wah, resigned on 10 February 2015
and no company secretary was appointed since then. Based on the information
available, the Board are unable to confirm whether Mr. Tong Hing Wah had
performed his duties diligently in accordance with the Listing Rules to assist the
operations of the Company and maintain the relationship between the Company and
its Shareholders or complied with relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

The Company appointed Mr. Lee Hon Sang as the company secretary of the
Company on 26 July 2019. He is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. The company secretary of the Company has complied with
the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication policy and shall
review it on a periodic basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company communicates with the Shareholders mainly in the following
ways: (i) the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meetings (“EGM”), if
any, which may be convened for specific purposes and provide opportunities
for the Shareholders to communicate directly to the Board; (i) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports, circulars on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange; and (jii) the availability of latest information of the
Group on the website of the Company.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for substantial issues,
including the re-election of retiring Directors.

The Company’s notices to the Shareholders for the AGM are sent to the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days or 21 clear days whichever is the
longer and for EGM at least 10 clear business days or 14 clear days, whichever is
the longest.
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Certain Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, chairman and members
of the audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee were
available at the AGM held on 25 November 2019 to answer questions from the
Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board explained the procedures for conducting a
poll during the meeting. All resolutions proposed at the AGM were voted separately
by way of poll. All the votes cast at the said meeting were properly counted and
recorded. The representative of the retiring auditor, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
had not attended the AGM as he passed away on that date.

Attendance of individual Directors at general meetings during the six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019:

Number of meetings

ERRE

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

tERERHSE (H)

ETE=(BEESEIR %%’Fi,\ 2 REREE MM
i,\EZIf&ﬁXE)i’Jﬁ&}*EA hWEFE+—A=Z+HH
TZBEBFRE - UEE Hx%Z}EFﬁ cEBRRLIFERAE
HﬁFﬁEﬁﬁ%Lﬁ}xKZEF PERBFAE LIREZFAER
BEHNBIRETARR - RERAFARE L2 RS
BCEE B E Mas - RERBEPIELZESHMEHIER
RAZRKRRERRBERGEMENE AEFLE -

—NFLA— El»ti_iﬁ 7L¢+ A=+—HI1ERAE
ﬁ ;HHFaﬁHx%ji@ BRI E R HE

AGM
BREBFAE

Executive Directors

BHITEE

Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren (Managing Director) (appointed on 25 July 2019)
FEMLA(EFLEE) CE-NFEAZTHBESD

Mr. Lam Chi Shing (appointed on 25 July 2019)
MEREE(CTE—NFEAZTRAKEE)

Ms. Li Ming (appointed on 25 July 2019)
FHAT(CE-NFLAZTEREZE)

Non-Executive Directors

HHITEE

Mr. Li Chi Kong (Chairman) (appointed on 25 July 2019)
FEMAE(ERE) (CE-NFLAZTHBAEERE)
Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao (appointed on 23 December 2019)
FAZEE (CE-NFTZAZ+=AEEE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUHHITESE

Mr. Chan Sze Chung (appointed on 26 July 2019)
RBREE(CE-NFELAZTAEERD)

Mr. Suen Chi Wai (appointed on 26 July 2019)
REREECE-NFLAZ T AEEZD)

Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred (appointed on 26 July 2019)
BEELEE(CE-NFELAZ T AEED

01 0%
1 100%

11 100%

11 100%

N/A N/A
TEm TNER

11 100%
11 100%

11 100%

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 29 May 2020 and resolutions
to be proposed thereat will be voted separately by way of poll.

CONVENING AN EGM OF THE COMPANY BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Any one or more Shareholder holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings can convene EGM by depositing or sending a written requisition
addressed to the Board or the Company Secretary for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting within 21 days of the deposit
of the requisition, then the requisitionist(s) himself/themselves may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board will be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a Shareholder
should lodge a written request, duly signed by the Shareholder concerned, setting
out the proposals at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the Company Secretary. The request will be verified with
the Company’s branch share registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will pass the request
to the Board. Whether a proposal will be put to a general meeting will be decided by
the Board in its discretion, unless the proposal put forward by a Shareholder is (a)
pursuant to a requisition by a Shareholder to convene an EGM referred to above or
(b) forms part of ordinary business to be considered at an AGM as described in the
Articles of Association.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

Enquiries by shareholders and the investment community to be put to the Board can
be sent in writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong.
For share registration related matters, shareholders can contact the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATION

The Company releases all necessary disclosures and corporate communication
through the website of Stock Exchange in order to keep Shareholders, the public
and any other stakeholders informed of all major developments that affect the
Company.

The AGM provides a valuable forum for direct communication between the Company
and the Shareholders. The AGM circulars are distributed to all Shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the meeting. Separate resolutions are proposed at
general meetings on each separate issue and voting of which are taken by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules. Any results of the poll are published on the Stock
Exchange’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the articles of association of the Company during the six-
month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019.

The memorandum and the articles of association of the Company are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTIONS

The Group has engaged an independent professional adviser (the “Internal Audit
Adviser”) to carry out the internal audit functions by performing an independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. The Internal Audit Adviser has conducted an annual
review and made recommendations to improve the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.
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The Internal Audit Adviser is independent of the Group’s daily operation and carries
out appraisal of the risk management and internal control systems by conducting
reviews, walkthroughs and tests of operational effectiveness.

An internal audit plan has been approved by the Board. According to the established
plan, review of the risk management and internal control systems is conducted
annually and the results are reported to the audit committee and then in turn to the
Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group’s systems of risk management and internal control involve the operation
and/or supervision of the Board, the audit committee and the internal audit adviser.
The main features and the key processes that have been established in reviewing
the adequacy and effectiveness of such systems are stated below.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s systems of risk management
and internal control. However, such systems are designed to manage the Group’s
risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve the business objectives of the Group. Accordingly, it can only provide
reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
of management and financial information and records or against financial losses or
fraud.

The Board has overall responsibility in monitoring the process of corporate reporting
and control system throughout the Group. It delegates the duties of proper and
regular reviews on the deployment of resources and financial reporting systems, the
corporate governance practices and compliance with the Listing Rules, the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance and other applicable regulations to the top
management. The top management reviews and briefs the reporting systems with
the audit committee at least annually.

The Board, through the recommendations from the top management, has established
an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group and this process includes updating the systems of risk
management and internal control when there are changes to business environment
or regulatory guidelines. The effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management
and internal control systems are reviewed annually.

Excluding the Corporate Governance Period before Resumption, the Board,
through the audit committee with the assistance of internal audit adviser and the top
management of the Company, reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group (including the consideration of the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function) for the period
from 26 July 2019 to 31 December 2019. The controls within these systems were
considered effective and adequate. No significant areas of concern that may affect
financial, operational, compliance controls, internal audit, risk management and
internal control functions of the Group were identified.
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The Board implements the Board’s policies and procedures on risk and control by
identifying and assessing the risks faced, and involving in the design, operation and
monitoring of suitable internal control to mitigate and control these risks.

The key processes that have been established in reviewing the adequacy and
integrity of the systems of risk management and internal control include the
following:

o The Executive Directors ensure the effectiveness of the daily operations and
that the operations are in accordance with the corporate objectives and
strategies.

e  The audit committee reviews risk management and internal control issues (if
any) identified by Internal Audit Adviser, external auditor, regulatory authorities
and top management, and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The Internal Audit Adviser checks for compliance with statutory requirement, internal
policies and procedures. They assess the operating effectiveness and efficiency of
the risk management and internal control systems in the course of their audit. The
audit scope and frequency are determined by the level of assessed risks and have
to be reviewed and approved by the audit committee.

The Group has already established the Inside Information Policies. They depict
clearly the decision trees to distinguish inside information and the necessary actions.

Employees are required to keep all inside information in strict confidence. Once the
inside information needs disclosure, the manner must be equal, timely and effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING AND
REPORTING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The current Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the six-month period from 1
July 2019 to 31 December 2019.

Details of the view of the management of the Company, the audit committee and the

Board on the auditors’ opinion are set out in the Report of Directors on page 37 of
this Annual Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

APPROACH AND STRATEGY

Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) believes in delivering long term,
sustainable value creation to our shareholders. In doing so, we recognise that the
choices we make will have an impact on the communities in which we carry on our
business and we should make such impact a positive one. We are committed to
contributing to the sustainable development of society and the environment, and
endeavour to embrace these principles as part of our practice and governance. The
Company has adopted a Sustainability Policy in November 2019 which covers our
principles in the area of employment and labour practices, business integrity, the
environment and the community.

This report outlines the sustainability initiatives and selected Key Performance
Indicators (“KPI”) of the Company and its subsidiary (the “Group”) that are material
to the Group and its stakeholders on Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
issues for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019. This report
supplements information disclosed in this Annual Report.

REPORTING SCOPE

The subject areas and aspects are presented based on the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) for listed issuers
published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT AND STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT

Amongst various environmental and social issues based on the ESG Reporting
Guide, the following is the list of issues that are considered to be material and
relevant to the Group. The priorities are set based on management’s view as well as
certain conclusions from our stakeholders’ engagement. Based on management’s
view, the aspects and KPIs relevant to this report’s disclosure are set out as follows:

Material and relevant issues:

Supply chain management (Aspect B5) general disclosure, KPI B5.1, B5.2
Anti-corruption (Aspect B7) general disclosure, KPI B7.2

Other relevant issues:

Emissions (Aspect A1) general disclosure

Use of resources (Aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.1

The environment and natural resources (Aspect A3) general disclosure, KPI A3.1
Employment (Aspect B1) general disclosure

Health and safety (Aspect B2) general disclosure

Development and training (Aspect B3) general disclosure, KPI B3.1, B3.2
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Labour standards (Aspect B4) general disclosure LT AR (EHEB4)— M=
Service responsibility (Aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI B6.2, B6.5 fRiEE T (EHEB6)— M # F - BIREBUEIRB6.2 - B6.5
Community investment (Aspect B8) general disclosure, KPI B8.1, B8.2 HERE (EEB)— R - BiRESUEEBS.1 - B8.2

All other KPIs not mentioned above were considered not relevant for detailed YRR RREAME BRESIEEN R AE R AEEE -
disclosure.

The following ESG issues are presented based on the classification of provisions by TR EZEENIRBREEREIESIND BIERET -
the ESG Reporting Guide.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES A BERE
The Group’s Sustainability Policy encompasses our general approach towards AEENAFEERBREERMERREEN 8BS
environmental issues. We endeavour to: &t o BB -
- observe relevant laws and regulations and aim to go beyond minimum —  ETHEBERENERT BN BEREEN

requirements;

-~ prevent/minimise air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into - B/ EmERPBEREBEREER - MK
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste; 5 ANREEBEREESEEY)

- make efficient use of resources, including energy and water; — BARFABER  BEERREK

- minimise the impact of the Group’s activities on the environment and - BERIHRERAABRMEEENAEEE
natural resources; and R

- engage our staff and partners to promote environmentally sustainable — BERMANBEIRAERHEHREMAIFELR
business practices and constantly re-assess our processes to minimise B TEHEMNTEEMANORE  UEERDER
environmental impact. BERE -

Emissions (Aspect A1) By (BEA1)

The Group is not involved in any manufacturing activities. Emissions produced AEBEWEL2BEMBEEED SEETERLZHE

are mostly on a “second degree” basis as incurred during occasional business FREEREMBEMMER EBRIRERIZE -

travels.

In line with our policy to minimise air and greenhouse gas emissions, major AERMBERVEIARBEREBRNECK  T2L

operations are equipped with audio conferencing facilities to minimise the need EHEMWHBRELEEGEARE  URERLEESER

for face to face meetings and keep business travelling to a minimum. 2 BERRFEREKTF o

There are no relevant laws and regulations applicable to our business on this TEH A EERARBMIESOERERE AR -

aspect.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2) and The Environment
and Natural Resources (Aspect A3)

We place a high priority on the efficient use of resources. With only 19 staff
across the Company, we consume limited amounts of electricity and paper.
Water consumption is not material to our business as it relates only to the
personal consumption of our staff for their personal hygiene.

Environmental protection guidelines in relation to energy savings and reduction
in paper consumption are circulated to all staff. For instance, staff are reminded
to switch off lights and equipment after work, during lunch break or during
the time working outside the office and wherever possible. Energy efficient
office equipment is always preferred in making purchase decisions. During the
period, the Group’s total electricity consumption was below 5,000 kwh.

Throughout the Group, the following business processes were implemented
whenever possible to improve efficiency and to reduce paper usage:

—  Electronic bank and broker statements

—  Recycling schemes of office equipment and supplies

—  Internal electronic administration and communication platform
Recycling scheme for paper has been launched within the Group.

Except for the abovementioned, the Group’s businesses have no direct impact
on the environment and natural resources.

SOCIAL ISSUES

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour
Standards (Aspect B1, B2, B4)

Being in the financial services industry, our people are our most important assets
that drive the long-term development and sustainability of the Group. The
Group’s policy on employment is as follows:

—  observing relevant laws and regulations;

- being an equal-opportunity employer, implementing fair practices relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits for our staff;

- providing a safe, healthy and quality workplace and protecting employees
from occupational hazards;

- promoting a good work-life balance for staff;
— investing in training and professional development of our staff for the

purpose of improving their knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work; and
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—  maintaining an open dialogue with our staff, facilitating a transparent two
way communication.

In Hong Kong, the Group’s employment of staff is governed by the Employment
Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance, as well as the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance. The Group has no known non-compliance with the
above relevant regulations.

Our compensation and benefits (including working hours, rest periods, welfare)
need to be competitive with other peers in the financial services sector and in
general exceeds the minimum as required by the relevant regulations. Owing to
the nature of our businesses, work related injuries, occupational health issues
and the incurrence of child labour are not significant risk factors.

The Group endeavours to provide a safe and pleasant working environment
for our staff. On top of this, for community service purposes, the Group also
participates in various donation activities organised by Hang Seng University of
Hong Kong and Hong Kong International School Association Limited.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has a total of 19 staff (including Directors).
By gender, 79% is male and 21% is female. By age group, 5%, 21%, 37%,
16% and 21% are between age groups of below 25, 26 to 35, 36 to 45, 46 to
55 and over 56 respectively.

Development and Training (Aspect B3)

The Group is committed to fostering a culture of continuous learning in our
organisation. Heavy emphasis is placed on staff training which is tailored to
equip our workforce with the necessary knowledge and skills relevant to their
work, as well as to build our talent pool. During the six-month period from 1
July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Group had funded its staff to join relevant
training programmes that meet the demands of the work place.

Supply Chain Management (Aspect B5)

The Group interacts with a number of business partners such as law firms,
securities brokers, tax advisers and consulting companies. These are not
considered to pose significant social risks for our business and procurement
decisions are based on pricing, suitability as well as the reputation of suppliers.

Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited Annual report 2019

— HERMNBTAMHE  REEHMERNESE -

EEE  AREBAEIHFZ(ERED)  (REIEK
D) B (R B E R PRI o AEE W AEBER R
s AR OB

HIOF R AR A (B TIRESE - REINGERN) FESR
RIBEERDAB—EOHF N - AAE—RBERTE
BEREARENZEER - ARNRMNEFEE - T
B BEREEEREEIEAETINBENLIFEARR

AEEBRNAEIRMULZZHFENTIIFERE - Rtz
oh - BRERBLE  ARENR2EBEEBERER
Hong Kong International School Association Limited 4844

R ERRUES) -

RZZE—NEF+A=+—8B AEEL£E19EE8T (B
BEDR) - REREID - 79% BB - M21%BZIE < &
FEHE 5% 21%  37% ~ 16% 21% 5 Bl A255% A
T - 2652355 * 362 455% * 4651 2555 M 56FR A
J: °

R K%Y (EHEB3)

FEERNRYHESEL  BHREAETREE
AU - S R ERRRR R A R -
BEEAT - RZB-NELA-BEE-T-NE
+ZASt—RIAEABENAEEEEHHE TS
AR RIL AR TR HE -

e EE (BEB5)

AEBERMELA - FHEL BB REARF
SETEGRHEED - RMAUTRARESHRMN
EBEREAT AR - W AREARRIRBHERER
EE - AEEREEL -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Service Responsibility
Service Quality

The Group’s business is regulated by the Securities and Futures Commission
(the “SFC”) and Yu Ming Investment Management Limited (“Yu Ming”) is
a licensed corporation under Securities and Future Ordinance. As at 31
December 2019, all professional employees of Yu Ming were properly licensed
and registered with the SFC. 3 employees were Responsible Officers and 5
were Licensed Representatives. All Responsible Officers have more than 10
years of relevant experience.

The Group gains new business through marketing initiatives, referrals from
existing clients and professional firms and the personal connections of directors
or employees of the Group. In this regard, the Group places great emphasis
on building clients’ loyalty by providing them with prompt, competent and
unbiased professional services.

Throughout its operations, the Group conforms to the requirements of the
rules and regulations of the HKSAR, the SFC, the Stock Exchange and other
regulatory authorities, such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, the Code
of Conduct for Persons Licensed by or Registered with the SFC, the Corporate
Finance Adviser Code of Conduct, the Guidelines on Competence, and the
Hong Kong Sponsor Due Diligence Guidelines. When conducting the Group’s
business activities, all employees are required to be aware of the Group’s
reputation and act with the highest level of integrity and professional ethics.

Privacy of Client Information and Data Protection

The Group respects and values the privacy of all client information. In
compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the Group collects
and uses client information in a responsible and non-discriminatory manner,
restricting the use of the client information as required by the confidentiality
clause included in the mandate. All employees are required to maintain strict
confidentiality about the affairs of the Group. Employees are not allowed to
disclose to other individuals or third parties, directly or indirectly, exploit or use
confidential information concerning the Group and its clients.

During the period, there have been no cases or complaints in relation to
violation of relevant confidentiality laws.

Client Feedback Handling

Feedback and suggestions from clients provide an opportunity for the Group
to enhance the quality of its services in a sustainable manner. The Group is
committed to responding and resolving all clients’ enquiries and comments
promptly and with care in order to maintain and improve our reputation in
the corporate finance advisory industry. In compliance with the Group’s
internal guidelines on complaint handling procedures, the Group is required to
investigate each case, work out a solution and provide a written response to
the complainant promptly upon receipt of a complaint.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RE -#HERERHRSE (&)

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, Yu Ming
did not receive any material complaints regarding the services it provided.

Anti-Corruption (Aspect B7)

A Whistle Blower Policy has been established to facilitate the Company’s
employees’ direct reporting of any unlawful conduct, any incident of corruption,
avoidance of internal control, incorrect or improper financial or other reporting
to senior management. This policy is either circulated in the Company’s
employees periodically or placed on the corporate electronic platform of the
Group to facilitate their easy access and reporting.

Community Investment (Aspect B8)

We strive to excel and undertake the responsibility of a good corporate citizen
contributing to the community by encouraging our staff to enroll in charity and
social services.

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Group
sponsored the activities organised by Hang Seng University of Hong Kong,
and Hong Kong International School Association Limited because we share
the similar missions with these organisations. Everyone deserves to be treated
equally no matter their gender or background. Hang Seng University of Hong
Kong nurtures future professional leaders with integrity and a strong sense of
social responsibility in pursuit of providing quality undergraduate education.
Hong Kong International School Association Limited provides educational
excellence with a difference, emphasising compassion and community service
across all grades.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the Shareholders of Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 151, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the
“Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we have not been
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other
respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
1. Deconsolidation of companies

As set out in Note 11 to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31
December 2019 (“December 2019 Consolidated Financial
Statements”), the Group lost control over certain companies
from 1 January 2014 and therefore the Group deconsolidated
those companies (“Deconsolidated Companies”). Upon the
deconsolidation, the Group’s investments in the Deconsolidated
Companies were recognised as available-for-sale investments
and measured at fair value in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. The directors of the Company considered the fair
value of the investments was of HK$0 upon initial recognition on
1 January 2014. The Group’s investments in the Deconsolidated
Companies were reclassified as financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income on 1 July 2018 upon
adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9 “Financial
Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”). The directors assessed the fair value of
the investments was HK$0 on 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 and 25
July 2019.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIAGHMKRSE (F)

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

1.

Deconsolidation of companies (Continued)

Pursuant to the creditors’ scheme under the Group’s restructuring (the
“Creditors’ Scheme”), as detailed in Note 11 to the Company’s December
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group has effectively disposed
of its entire interests in the Deconsolidated Companies on 25 July 2019.

Due to limitations on their scope of work on the Group’s conclusion of
loss of control over the Deconsolidated Companies and other audit scope
limitations, the predecessor auditor of the Company disclaimed their audit
opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2019 (“June 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements”). The
limitation on audit work on the Group’s conclusion of loss of control remained
unresolved in our audit of the Company’s December 2019 Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The directors of the Company did not provide us with their assessment
details and related supportings as the basis for their conclusion that the
Group had no control over the Deconsolidated Companies since 1 January
2014. The Company also did not provide us with their assessment details
such as valuation method and key assumptions in their estimation of the
fair value of the Group’s investments in the Deconsolidated Companies as
at 1 July 2019 and 25 July 2019. There were no alternative procedures that
we can perform to satisfy ourselves that the Group’s conclusion of its loss
of control over those companies since 1 January 2014 was appropriate
and the carrying amount of the Group’s investments in the Deconsolidated
Companies was fairly stated as at 1 July 2019 and 25 July 2019.

Any adjustments found necessary might have effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial position as at 1 July 2019 and on its consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and presentation
in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-month period from 1
July 2019 to 31 December 2019 and the respective disclosures, including
the segment information and the related party disclosures, in December
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements. Our audit opinion on the December
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements is also modified for the possible
effects of the predecessor auditor’s disclaimer of audit opinion on June
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements on the comparability of the current
period’s figures and the corresponding figures.

The Group’s investments in the Deconsolidated Companies, together with
other assets and liabilities were effectively disposed of on 25 July 2019 under
the Creditors’ Scheme. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of these
investments as at 25 July 2019 would have impact on the Group’s gain on
the disposal. Details are in Point 4 of this report.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

2.

Convertible bonds

As at 30 June 2019, the carrying amounts of the liability component of
the convertible bonds issued by the Company and the convertible bond
equity reserve were HK$701,099,000 and HK$164,169,000, respectively.
As set out in Note 11 and Note 31(j)c to the December 2019 Consolidated
Financial Statements, upon the effective of the Creditors’” Scheme and the
Company’s capital reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”) on 25 July 2019,
the Group’s obligation under the convertible bonds were discharged. On 25
July 2019, the carrying amount of the liability component of HK$701,099,000
was derecognised and the carrying amount of the convertible bonds equity
reserve of HK$164,169,000 was transferred to the Group’s accumulated
losses.

The predecessor auditor of the Company was not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy themselves as to whether the carrying
amounts of the liability component and the equity reserve of the convertible
bonds as at 30 June 2019 have been appropriately accounted for in the June
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements. Together with other matters, the
predecessor auditor of the Company disclaimed their audit opinion on the
June 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements.

The predecessor auditor’s limitation in audit work on the convertible bonds
remained unresolved in our audit of the Company’s December 2019
Consolidated Financial Statements. In our audit of the December 2019
Consolidated Financial Statements, the directors of the Company did
not provide us with the supporting documents related to the convertible
bonds and the details of the assessment and measurement of the liability
component and the equity reserve of the convertible bonds. There were
no alternative procedures that we can perform to satisfy ourselves that the
liability and equity balances of the convertible bonds as at 1 July 2019 and 25
July 2019 were free from material misstatement.

Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of the liability component of the
convertible bonds issued by the Company and the convertible bond equity
reserve as at 1 July 2019 and 25 July 2019 found necessary would have an
impact on the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
and the respective disclosures included in the December 2019 Consolidated
Financial Statements. Our audit opinion on the Company’s December
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements is also modified for the possible
effects of the predecessor auditor’s disclaimer of audit opinion on June
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements on the comparability of the current
period’s figures and the corresponding figures.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIAGHMKRSE (F)

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

2.

Convertible bonds (Continued)

The Group’s convertible bonds, together with other assets and liabilities of
the Group were effectively disposed of on 25 July 2019 under the Creditors’
Scheme. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of the liability component
and the equity reserve of the convertible bonds as at 25 July 2019 would
have impact on the Group’s gain on the disposal. Details are in Point 4 of this
report.

Limitation of scope of work on certain liabilities

Listed below were the balances of certain liabilities of the Group as at 30
June 2019 (Liabilities Group A).
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HK$'000

FHIT

Accruals and other payables FEETE A R E M IR 27,618
Borrowings 1‘5“5 7,358
Corporate bonds NAEfEH 45,000
Taxation payable FEAS R IE 6,678
Amounts due to Deconsolidated Companies R TBiRATERARRIE 136,097

The predecessor auditor of the Company had limitations on their audit work
on Liabilities Group A as at 30 June 2019. Together with other matters, the
predecessor auditor of the Company disclaimed their audit opinion on the
June 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements. The predecessor auditor’s
limitations on audit work on Liabilities Group A remained unresolved in our
audit of the Company’s December 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements.

In our audit of the December 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements, the
directors of the Company were unable to provide us with the details and
related supportings of Liabilities Group A and certain other liabilities of the
Group included in accruals and other payables with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$2,003,000 as at 1 July 2019 and 25 July 2019 (together
with Liabilities Group A, refer to as “Liabilities Group B”). There were no
alternative procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to
whether the carrying amounts of Liabilities Group B as at 1 July 2019 and 25
July 2019 were free from material misstatement.

Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of Liabilities Group B as at 1
July 2019 and 25 July 2019 found necessary might impact the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 and the
respective disclosures included in the December 2019 Consolidated
Financial Statements. Our audit opinion on the Company’s December
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements is also modified for the possible
effects of the predecessor auditor’s disclaimer of audit opinion on June
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements on the comparability of the current
period’s figures and the corresponding figures.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

3.

Limitation of scope of work on certain liabilities
(Continued)

Liabilities Group B, together with other assets and liabilities of the Group were
effectively disposed of on 25 July 2019 under the Creditors’ Scheme. Any
adjustments to the carrying amount of Liabilities B as at 25 July 2019 would
have impact on the Group’s gain on the disposal. Details are in Point 4 of this
report.

Gain on debt restructuring

Pursuant to the Creditors’ Scheme as detailed in Note 11 to the December
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements, on 25 July 2019, the Company
transferred to scheme companies (a) the convertible bonds mentioned in
Point 2, (b) Liabilities Group B mentioned in Point 3, (c) its investments in the
Deconsolidated Companies mentioned in Point 1, (d) its entire equity interest
in all the subsidiaries and (e) a cash payment of HK$80,959,000.

Upon effective of the Creditors’ Scheme, the Group’s liabilities under items (a)
and (b) were discharged and its ownership of items (c) and (d) was lost. As a
result of the debt restructuring, the Group recognised a gain of approximately
HK$844,894,000.

Due to the limitations on our scope of work as mentioned in Points 1 to 3
above, we are unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether the gain on debt
restructuring was fairly stated. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of
items (a) to (c) as at 25 July 2019 would have impact on the gain on debt
restructuring and the related disclosures included in the December 2019
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Warrant reserve

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s warrant reserve amounted to HK$449,000.
As set out in Note 31(i)c to the December 2019 Consolidated Financial
Statements, upon the effective of the Capital Reorganisation on 25 July
2019, the entire amount standing to the credit of the warrant reserve account
of HK$449,000 was applied to eliminate an equivalent amount of the
accumulated losses of the Group.

The predecessor auditor of the Company had limitation in their scope of work
on the warrant reserve as at 30 June 2019. Together with other matters, the
predecessor auditor of the Company disclaimed their audit opinion on the
June 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIAGHMKRSE (F)

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

5.

Warrant reserve (Continued)

The predecessor auditor’s limitation of scope of work remained unresolved
in our audit of the December 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements. The
directors of the Company were unable to provide us with the warrants issue
documents. There were no alternative procedures that we could perform to
provide us sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the accounting for the issue
of warrants including measurement of the warrant reserve as at 1 July 2019
and 25 July 2019.

Any adjustments to the Company’s accounting for the issue of warrants,
including the measurement of the warrants reserve, that are necessary might
impact on the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December
2019 and the respective disclosures included in the December 2019
Consolidated Financial Statements. Our audit opinion on the December 2019
Consolidated Financial Statements is also modified for the possible effects of
the predecessor auditor’s disclaimer of opinion on June 2019 Consolidated
Financial Statements on the comparability of the current period’s figures and
the corresponding figures.

Comparative information

The predecessor auditor of the Company did not express an audit opinion on
the Company’s June 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements due to matters
mentioned in Point 1 to Point 3 and Point 5 above and limitations of scope of
audit procedures on the balances with related parties of the Group as at 30
June 2019, existence and completeness of the disclosures of commitments,
contingent liabilities and related party transactions and accuracy and
completeness of the disclosures in relation to the financial risk management,
share option scheme and statement of financial position of the Company
included in the June 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements. In our audit
of the December 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements, the predecessor
auditor’s limitation on audit procedures detailed in this point remain
unresolved. Our opinion on the Company’s December 2019 Consolidated
Financial Statements is also modified because of the possible effect of these
matters on the comparability of the figures and disclosures of the current
period and the preceding period.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June

2019, were audited by another auditor who expressed a disclaimer of opinion on

those statements on 30 September 2019.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibility
in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

However, because of the matter described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping

Practising Certificate Number P05412
Hong Kong, 26 March 2020

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEEGERHEMEEWNER

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
REZ—NFLtA-—BRE_T-NFT+-A=T—HIEAHHE

Six-month period

from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
RZZB-—IF
tA—BEE
—E-NF
+=A=+—H HE-Z—hF
1R {E A B NAZTRHILFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M FHET FHETT
Revenue & 6 46,793 =
Other net income Hb WA F5E 6 83 =
Other net financial income H b B iU A F 58 8 556 =
Employee benefit expense EERFRX 9 (14,105) =
Administrative and other expenses TR RE MRS (12,154) (12,625)
Gain on debt restructuring B E AR 11 844,894 =
Restructuring expenses EFER (20,132) =
Finance costs RUE AR 12 (177) (1,291)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETER AR, (E8) 13 845,758 (13,916)
Income tax expense FRSHFIST 14 (3,424) -
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive NERE FE
income/(expenses) for the A (R R
period/year (Note) 2EWE (B B (M) 842,334 (13,916)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the A2 B#EE ABEER (restated)
owners of the Company (HK cents) B, (B8) GEl) 15 (&=5)
- Basic —HAR 83.92 (13.89)
(restated)
€= l))
— Diluted —#e 83.92 (13.89)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other COmprehensive Income (Continued)

For the six-month perlod from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
NWF+=ZA=+—H1EEAHE

o

“E-NFEA-HBRE-Z—

Note: FfzE -
Six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=-B—h%F
+tHA—BAEZE
—E-NF
+=A=+-—H HE-Z—hF
1758 A AR NA=THLEFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
For illustration purpose only [EXEEL
(Non-Hong Kong Financial Reporting CEEBMBREAER
Standard (“HKFRS”) Measures): (IERHHHEER]IFE) :
Profit and total comprehensive income S AR A K
for the period ey L 842,334 =
Less: Gain on debt restructuring W B EARE (844,894) =
Add: Restructuring expenses e BAERAX 20,132 -
Profit and total comprehensive income after —NFLtA—BRE=Z
adjusting net of restructuring gain and expenses & += A =+—H 1L73{@ A #5RE
from the restructuring for the six-month period ~ FIBr EA RS KFTFHEARE 2 N/A
from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 EF R 2 Ek e 17,572 TEA
& The Company believes that the adjusted financial measures provide useful & RRARRE  KABRMBHERNEZAREEREERE

information to investors in understanding and evaluating the Group’s
consolidated statements of profit or loss in the same manner as they helped
the Company’s management, and that the Company’s management and
investors may benefit from referring to these adjusted financial measures
in assessing the Group’s financial and operating performance from period
to period by eliminating impacts of items that the Group does not consider
indicative of the Group’s operating performance. However, the presentation
of these non-HKFRS financial measures is not intended to be considered
in isolation or as a substitute for the financial information prepared and
presented in accordance with HKFRS. You should not view the adjusted
results on a standalone basis or as a substitute for results under HKFRS.

This note does not form part of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

- ﬁ%ﬁﬁgﬁﬁ ﬁZETT%&%ﬁ$%@mF
SEREK - BRAARRERERIREELR LKA
W%ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ$§lfﬁ1#g@$ﬁhﬁzﬁ
MFE  AREMMEAKE TR RN R E

ﬁ oA LL£WZ#E%Wﬁﬁ%£%W%#EH
ETNEBLE BIERREREV B RS ENRENZ
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UEF REY B BER A B R E R R A —&/b D ©

RESBERERAA 2019F#

69



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GEMBRRAR

As at 31 December 2019
RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H

As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
RZB-IF RZZE—NF
+=—HA=+-—8 ~NA=+A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FExT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y5 E 16 387 =
Goodwil EES 17 302,965 =
Intangible assets T EE 18 97,746 =
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 19 1,891 =
Other assets HtEE 20 50 =
403,039 -
Current assets REVEE
Contract assets BREE 21 150 -
Trade and other receivables, deposits paid and & 5 R EMEWFRIE « BEff1Re A
prepayments REIE 22 16,466 174
Amount due from a related company e — R REES A RIFOB 23 4,902 =
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ?ﬁ@$@ﬁ)\?ﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁ§@$@§+]\?§
(“FVPL") m]) WS EE 24 1,093 -
Cash and cash equivalents BERREEEY 25 39,875 3,001
62,486 3,175
Current liabilities REEE
Contract liabilities AHBE 21 16,200 =
Other payables and accrued expenses H b e3R8 KBRS 26 10,575 35,764
Lease liabilities HEaE 19 1,520 =
Taxation payable FERHIIE 4,191 6,678
Borrowings BE 27 = 39,288
Corporate bonds NAEfEH 27 = 45,000
Amounts due to deconsolidated companies BT BiEREFTEARIZKIE 28 = 136,097
Convertible bonds AT ES 29 = 701,099
32,486 963,926
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(AFE) FHE 30,000 (960,751)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBEE 433,039 (960,751)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 19 390 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEE E 30 16,128 -
16,518 -
Net assets/(liabilities) BE /(AR FE 416,521 (960,751)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

GEMBMRAE (F)
As at 31 December 2019
RZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=Z-NIF RZZ—NEF
+=HA=+-—H NA=+H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Pt FET FHT
EQUITY fEm
Equity attributable to the owners of the RATEE AES
Company R
Share capital (&N 31 113,933 100,177
Reserves it 32 302,588 (1,060,928)
Total equity/(deficit) 3 (BB AR 416,521 (960,751)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 151 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) on 26
March 2020 and is signed on its behalf by:

Lee Wa Lun, Warren
THEy
Director

EF

FEESEIS1EMGAMBHRER ST F=A=-+AEX
AREFE((EFg)IERSEETE  YHUATESKER
2.

Li Chi Kong
ZE
Director

EBF

RESBERERAA 2019F#

71



72

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GREDEEXR

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

TE-NFEA-RBRECE-NFT A= BN EARME

Convertible Total
Share Share  bond equity Warrant  Accumulated (deficit)/
capital Premium reserve reserve losses equity
(Note 31) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 32)
ARRES RRER (B18),/
e R4 B8 BRRE wE ZHER BEAHE
(PfzE31) (PfaE32) (PfaE32) (PfE32)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
At 1 July 2018 R-E-NEtA-H 100,177 453,352 164,169 449 (1,664,982) (946,835)
Loss and total comprehensive expenses AEEFER2EE
for the year XAHE - - - - (13,916) (13,916)
At 30 June 2019 and REB-RERAZTAR
1 July 2019 —Z-h&EtA-H 100,177 453,352° 164,169° 449" (1,678,898) (960,751)
Capital reorganisation RASE (90,159 (4583,352) (164,169) (449) 708,129" -
Issue of shares upon restructuring REARRTRAG 103,915 431,023 = = = 534,938
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ AHEERR2E
for the period W - - - - 842,334 842,334
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AF+=A=1+-H 113,933 431,028’ - - (128,435)" 416,521

The aggregate amount of those balances of HK$(1,060,928,000)

and HK$302,588,000 represents the reserves in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019 and 31
December 2019 respectively.

As a result of the capital reorganisation, share capital, share
premium, convertible bond equity reserve and warrant reserve
included in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
totally approximately HK$708,129,000, were transferred to the
accumulated losses of the Group.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEHEERER

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

Six-month period

from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=-Z—hF
tHA—BAEZE
—E-NF
+=HA=+-—H HE-_ZT-NF
1758 B AR NA=TAHLEEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FHET FHTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHREBRERNE
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRFTSHATE R (E518) 845,758 (13,916)
Adjustments for: FIEE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BEREETE 16 88 -
Amortisation on intangible assets R B ERH 18 6,303 =
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 19 756 =
Fair value gain on financial assets at FVPL BATEFABRZUBEE 8 (384) =
Finance costs BE R A 12 177 =
Gain on debt restructuring B EARE 11 (844,894) =
Interest income from bank deposits RITFR TN BWA 8 (172) =
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital BIBESBEATCEEF]
changes (&18) 7,632 (13,916)
Increase in contract assets AHEBEEM (54) =
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables, B 5k EMEKZIE - EMNIRE KR
deposits paid and prepayments BRI GE ) R (7,921) 2
Increase in amount due from a related company  FE{< — I BA s A RIFIAIE AN (828) =
Increase in contract liabilities AHEEE M 1,017 =
Increase in other payables and accrued expenses  E il fE{~38 & fE 5B S 12 0 2,916 751
Cash generated from/(used in) operations ER (FTR)BEE 2,762 (18,163)
Bank interest received BUHERITHE 172 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating mssEBETS (A E S
activities R 2,934 (13,163)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBRBRENE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEME  BEEXE 2 -
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition WE—MHBARMELEZRER
of a subsidiary S 38 (387,193) =
Net cash used in investing activities TEFREFTAR&FE (387,195) -
Cash flows from financing activities RETHMERERE
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BT BTSSR 31 534,938 =
Repayment of principal portion of the lease EERERSBH (737) =
Interest paid BEFLE (177) =
Net payment to the creditors’ scheme BEREART BT RFRE 11 (80,959) =
Repayment of borrowings HEEE (31,930) =
Proceeds from borrowings BERTS KA - 14,654
Net cash generated from financing activities BAEB SR EFE 421,135 14,654
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BERESEEYILMTFHE 36,874 1,491
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of REHE, EENZESR
period/year REZEEY 3,001 1,510
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/ RAHE FEAZRER
year BEEEY 25 39,875 3,001

ABRERERERAA 2019F K

73



74

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A = ol —
GEMBRERME
For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 9 September 1999. The address of
the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of
business is Room 1801, 18th Floor, Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiary, Yu Ming
Investment Management Limited (“Yu Ming”), (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is a licensed corporation under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance and principally engaged in activities including dealing in
securities, advising on securities, advising on corporate finance and asset
management.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

Completion of the restructuring of the Group and
resumption of trading in the shares of the Company

At the request of the Company, trading in shares of the Company had been
suspended since 18 September 2014.

On 11 November 2014, a winding up petition against the Company was
presented to the High Court of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“High Court”). On 9 February 2015, the Company was ordered to be wound
up and the official receiver was appointed as the provisional liquidator of the
Company. On 17 August 2015, Mr. Stephen Liu Yiu Keung and Mr. David
Yen Ching Wai of Ernst & Young Transactions Limited were appointed as
joint and several liquidators (“Liquidators”) of the Company to take control the
affairs of the Company.

Since then, the Liquidators had commenced restructuring the Company.
On 24 August 2016, a resumption proposal had been submitted to the
Stock Exchange seeking its approval for the resumption of trading in the
shares of the Company. The resumption proposal included, inter alia, (i) a
very substantial acquisition (Note 38); (ii) capital reorganisation (Note 31);
(iii) subscription and new placing (Note 31); (iv) public offer (Note 31) and (v)
creditors’ scheme (Note 11) (collectively the “Group Restructuring”). Details
of the Group Restructuring are set out in the circular of the Company dated
27 April 2019. On 25 July 2019, the Group Restructuring was completed and
the Liguidators were discharged.

Upon the grant from the Stock Exchange, trading in the shares of the
Company was resumed on 26 July 2019.
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Notes to the Con

solidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

RZZE-NF+rA-—BREZZ—NAFTZA=+—HIE/NE R HH

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
(Continued)

Change of year end date

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board on 10 October 2019, the
Company’s financial year end was changed from 30 June to 31 December
each year. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements for the current
period cover the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
whilst the comparative amounts shown for the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes
cover the 12 months from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019. The comparative
information may not be comparable with amounts shown for the current
period.

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on
1 July 2019

In the current period, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new/revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are relevant to and
effective for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning on 1 July 2019.

HKFRS 16
HK(FRIC) — Int 23

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9  Prepayment Features and Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtaiiment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12

and HKAS 23

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle

The adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs has no significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

RZZE-NF+A—BREZZ—NAFTZA=+T—HIL/NER M

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on

1 July 2019 (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12, Income
Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect the effects of
uncertainty in accounting for income taxes. Under the Interpretation,
the entity shall determine whether to consider each uncertain tax
treatment separately or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume
the tax authority will examine amounts that it has a right to examine
and have full knowledge of all related information when making
those examinations. If the entity determines it is probable that the tax
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity
determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty in the determination
of tax is reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the “expected
value” approach, whichever better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with negative
compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income if specified conditions are met —
instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 19 — Plan amendments,
Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement
of a defined benefit plan, a company should use updated actuarial
assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for
the period. Additionally, the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded
when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is
dealt with separately in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBHREME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
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S —

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on

1 July 2019 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 - Long-term Interests
in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-term interests
(“LTI”) in associates or joint ventures which form part of the net
investment in the associates or joint ventures and stipulates that
HKFRS 9 is applied to these LTI before the impairment losses
guidance within HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which
clarifies that when a joint operator of a business obtains control over a
joint operation, this is a business combination achieved in stages and
the previously held equity interest should therefore be remeasured to
its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 11 which clarify that
when a party that participates in, but does not have joint control of,
a joint operation which is a business and subsequently obtains joint
control of the joint operation, the previously held equity interest should
not be remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1

3.2

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on
1 July 2019 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify that all
income tax consequences of dividends are recognised consistently
with the transactions that generated the distributable profits, either in
profit or loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
Costs

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23 which
clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to obtain a qualifying asset
which remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready
for its intended use or sale would become part of the funds an entity
borrows generally and therefore included in the general pool.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s

consolidated financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material'
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs 3.
(Continued)

éﬁ?%ﬁﬂ/@f@ﬁé%ﬂﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂ

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but 3.2

are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Definition of a
Business

The amendments clarify that a business must include, as a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs, together with providing
extensive guidance on what is meant by a “substantive process”.
Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs, whilst narrowing the
definition of “outputs” and a “business” to focus on returns from selling
goods and services to customers, rather than on cost reductions.
An optional concentration test has also been added that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 -
Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation of “material”,
aligning the definition across all HKFRS Standards and the Conceptual
Framework, and incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1
into the definition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS
7 — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the uncertainties
caused by interest rate benchmark reform. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the potential
impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the Board so far concluded
that the application of these new/revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRMAE

(mﬁ)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1

4.2

Statement of compliance and basis of
measurement

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 151 have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, which collective term includes
all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements
include the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for financial instruments classified
as financial assets at FVPL which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting policies
below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are
used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are described
in Note 5.

Basis of consolidation and business
combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Group made up from 1 July 2019 to 31 December
2019 for the current period and from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 for
the preceding period.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are excluded from consolidation from
the date that control ceases. The results of the subsidiaries acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of the disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses
on transactions between group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised losses on
intra-group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s perspective.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.2

Basis of consolidation and business
combination (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the measurement
period (@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about the
fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRMAE

(mﬁ)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Basis of consolidation and business
combination (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest; and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are investees over which the Group is able to exercise
control. The Group controls investees if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investees, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investees, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investment in a
subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment loss (Note 4.18)
unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in a disposal group.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date.
All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited Annual report 2019

4,

B BERHE ()

4.2

4.3

mEREREHZEEE)

BARKBERAMBEARESE - BEBRA/AT
MEZZR  (\BRERERHEEEAREER

RFEZHEE  RVEE (BREHE) BEKREE
S B A A M EMIHERE R R B AR - T
REM2ERmTERENE QR AR 2R I
HRZAAR - BEREELABEDLHE -

W% - JEERE R (IR Z B R Rl A
) 2 RHERZEE N LR 2 R
M EBRAIEERERELESEEEE ZHD -
ENfE e BRI IR A AR - 2
Was B RS BN A MIEE R -

Cop NG

MBARAARRERITEEGE I ERET © H
AT =ER=ZZEH e - NREEZEHRERE
73 BB 2 RERRES ATEER
Z BB EMAEE N EZE R OR
B - BREEERIENARMEAZEEHE =R
BEHEREEN - EHIESWERS

ERRRIMBIRRERS - %Mﬁ%’“ﬂz%ﬁﬁuﬁi
ARERDREEE (FTE4.18) AR - B
TFEHER B R EHEARIT AR - AR
Hié%?:i&iﬁ%EW&%H&H&%T’EHWE“TZ
FEAR - MACHERE T mEERELE R Z
W RTSRARE R - RAR A Z B ARER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.4 Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the
aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after
re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs”) that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU is
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount with
its recoverable amount, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial period, the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that financial period. When the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on
the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEUBHREME(E)
For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.5

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful lives as
follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation expense
is recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative and other
expenses.

Investment management agreement 29 months
Backlog 3 years
Tradename 20 years
Securities and Futures Commission Indefinite

(the “SFC”) licences

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment when there
is an indication that an asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment by comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts (Note 4.18).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
R-B—AF+tA—RBRE-_E—NE+-A=+—H81-<EA K

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4. EXRSTHHERHE@E

4.6 MEBRE

4.6 Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKS”),
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except

which is also the functional currency of the Company
when otherwise indicated.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined and are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency, have been converted
into HKS. Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses have been
converted into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at average rates over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRMAE

(mﬁ)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

R-F—

hFEtA—BRE_ZT—

NF+ZA=+—H 1N E A HiE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of
property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and the
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off their
cost over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum.

Office equipment
Leasehold improvements

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds and its
carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBHREME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

RZZE-NF+rA-—BREZZ—NAFTZA=+—HIE/NE R HH

S —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 a Leases (accounting policies applied from 1 July

2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance leases)
are required to be capitalised in the statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-
value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months. The
lease payments associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: () the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability
(see below for the accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i)
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (i) any initial direct costs incurred by
the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for right-of-use asset that
meets the definition of an investment property or a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRMAE

(mﬁ)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

R-E-NFLtA-BEEZ

T-NF+ZA=+—HIEREABRE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

48a

48D

Leases (accounting policies applied from 1 July
2019) (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date
of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (i) amounts expected to be payable by
the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Leases (accounting policies applied until 30
June 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integrated
part of the total rental expense, over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
—E-NFtA-HBREZZE-NFT+_A=T+—HILNEAHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant
financing component) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirely when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
rate method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”): Assets
that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Debt
investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using the effective interest rate method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

RZZE-NF+A—BREZZ—NAFTZA=+T—HIL/NER M

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVPL: Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at
FVPL, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria
for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at FVOCI,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated at FVPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for
trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in other comprehensive income.
This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value. Dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments
are classified as FVPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and

interest income are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (“ECL”)
on trade receivables, contract assets, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the 12-month
ECLs. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when: (1)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non-credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEUBHREME(E)
For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

4.11

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amount of cash, and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks and other financial
institutions, including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost, are initially measured at fair value,
net of directly attributable costs incurred and subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

4.12 Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share capital (net of any related income tax benefits) to
the extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EAEIHEHE@E)
POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition 4.13 W=SHER
Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised services W IR AR P ER TR RSN S EBRER - Mk
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which SRERMERBEARZERGRBMANRE - &
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. BimE - ANEES|ARERKG 2 AESE

Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customers FE—F  BRRBRFITLZEH

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract FE2H  BRIEAPHNEHORE

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price F=N EBETRHE

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price FOY  DERHE

Step5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a FRY  R(EE)BRTNRAE TRFRERIE

performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation NEBREHNETERTEAIEBEHNEET TR

is satisfied, i.e. when “Control” of the services underlying the particular TSR 4E | R T R iUk o

performance obligation is transferred to the customers.

Control of the services may be transferred over time or at a point in AR A 422 ) 4 B D — ER B R W Bl A 3 — B P B

time. Control of the services is transferred over time if: % o AT BB RFS 12 e A — ER PR FE] OB

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the = REEEERANARES I EEERE
benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity B AIFT IR AL A RIS ¢
performs;

- the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that = NEERBNSEIERINBRE R ENEER
the customer controls as the Group performs; or BT SIMEE 5 5

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an = NEBRBATNSAIERRAER S EMA
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable WEE » BAREBEEHIZSTHRNBANIK
right to payment for performance completed to date. 7 Al R FITTAYIER o

If control of the services transfer over time, revenue is recognised ARSI S| fE E —ER PSR N EERE - WS TIRE 4

over the period of the contract by reference to the progress complete H2REHETEERmTTKAERMER - B8 Ik

satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is AR EEUS ARFES I | E O RS R BhFERR

recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEUBHREME(E)
For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(0

(i)

Aavisory fee income and related services

Advisory fee income from providing specified financial advisory
and acting as independent financial are recognised over time as
services are performed if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to payment for all services provided through the end of
the contract or termination date. For other advisory contracts in
which the Group does not has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date at all times throughout
the duration of the contract, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the services for the transactions are completed
under the terms of each engagement and the revenue can be
measured reliably, as only that time the Group has a present
right to payment from the customers for the service performed.

Advisory fee income from provision of services under retainers
is recognised over time based on contractual terms specified
in the underlying agreements, as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits providing by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs and the revenue can be
measured reliably.

Commission based and other services are recognised at a point
in time when the services for the transactions are completed
under the terms of each engagement and the revenue can be
measured reliably, as only that time the Group has a present
right to payment from the customers for the service performed.

Management fee income

Management fee income from provision of investment
management services is recognised over time based on
contractual terms specified in the underlying investment
management agreement, as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits providing by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs and the revenue can be
measured reliably.

Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited Annual report 2019

4,

B BERHE ()

4.13 WEER (&)

()

(i)

B BEWA R AGRE IR

AN S LA ISR 1 A HIRT S AR
HHFA RS ZF A AR LA &SI TR
R - R E R R IR 5
ARG S ASBSL B 75 5 10 17 F T IS H R
MERAZBERERER - HREEESH
iR - AREEAR ERREIRITMHES
R R B RN TN AR S
HME - BRERZRBRERZENGF
HEERABER] SErt BT IER - REREE
LR - ANERE T B ER T PR ATERHAY
AR EHAIHK -

RIBRHIEBRURBOERERARR
R AERA h 5 15 BA B A GRS — BR B ) 0 e
R DERFHEEERENNREES R
HEREBBAMEHAN B assesn

iR -

REBREMRBRR 5 RERESERE
GRS K — RSB e - BIEssEn
SRt E - DEAREKENZEE R B
FhPTHR G A AR A% 2 P B A3K

EHEEWA

RIS B R E R BB ANRIERE
BRI A B ek 15 A & A IR A — ER B ]
WEER - TIAR P HEE BRI R &
BREBEERBRBAMEHAT A fkasse
SR SERtE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Performance fee income

Performance fee income based on the performance of the
investment company (i.e. the customer) is a form of variable
consideration in its contract with the customer to provide
investment management services. Performance fee income is
earned based on the performance of the investment company
during the period, subject to the achievement of high water
mark, in accordance with the respective terms set out in the
investment management agreement. Performance fee income
will not be recognised as revenue until (a) it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur, or (b) the uncertainty associated with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis
using the effective interest method, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on the initial recognition.

4.14 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through a defined

contribution plan.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme

under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF

Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in the

MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the

employees’ basic salaries.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as

employees render services during the year. The Group’s obligation

under this plan is limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

RZZE-NF+A—BREZZ—NAFTZA=+T—HIL/NER M

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.14 Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitiements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

4.15 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.
Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations
to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They are
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including existing
taxable temporary differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

4., SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.
POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if, and
only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in
net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

0] the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.17 Related parties

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related

to the Group if that person:

U)

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

U)

(i)

)

(v)

(vi)

(i

(viil)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRMAE

(mﬁ)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

R-F—

NEFLA-BRE-Z-AF+ - A=+—HLLXEAHHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.17 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

4.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment in a
subsidiary are subject to impairment testing.

It is tested for impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent from those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a CGU). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some
are tested at CGU level.

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs are charged pro rata to the
assets in the CGU, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value in
use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no
impairment loss had been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBHREME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the steering committee that makes strategic decisions.

4.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRMAE

(mﬁ)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

R-F—

NEFLA-BRE-Z-AF+ - A=+—HLLXEAHHE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

(@) Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

Deconsolidation of companies

It is determined that the Group lost the control over certain companies
on 1 January 2014. The results, assets and liabilities and cash
flows of these companies were deconsolidated from the financial
statements of the Group since then. Significant judgement is required
in determination of control of an investee based on HKFRS 10
“Consolidated Financial Statements”.

Deferred taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
deferred taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the deferred taxes in the period in which such determination is
made.
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5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, other key sources of estimation uncertainty that have
a significant risk of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within next financial year are as
follows:

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
4.18. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined
based on value in use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates about future cash flows and discount rates. In the
process of estimating expected future cash flows management makes
assumptions about future revenues and profits. These assumptions
relate to future events and circumstances. The actual results may
vary and may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
goodwill within the next financial year. Determining the appropriate
discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment for
market risk and for asset specific risk factors. Details of the estimates
of the recoverable amounts of CGUs containing goodwill are disclosed
in Note 17.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at each reporting date. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or CGU and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.
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5. AESSHHABRMETTIREREZENE
ERR ()

(b) fEFTFRERRZEEZRIR
BEBIRA MWK T FTRBEERS -
BAMERH T EM B ENEER A ENREE
fEHEARBZ EXRR G TRERRZH
fEERRMT -

BBl

REBEGFERBHTTEA18FTRETER « A
BELREEMRE - ReELEMNATEENE
BORBEREEAEEE - ZFEAERY
RFRERE MR RN o EfEFITEHIARK
RemENBRER - E18EHARRKE KRFE
HRER  ZFRBERREMFGRSLAAR
MERAIREGEMTRE - WRIBEE B T — AR IR
FEAHBENREEFELEARE - BEEEE
RIREIR P K BT 5 R B e A E R R R R Y
EE AL - REELEM(BEREMN
A S B 2 R MR 7R R o

/\/T\

HHBEERE

AEERSERSE BB E2MEMBEERS
BEEMRETR - BRFH 2 BVEERSFR
WEEZIR 2 BB EETTRER - EiIE
M EENE PR REER LR
TTRERR - BEREAEEREER - AhFE
EFRTELETZARRRRSRE - URAE
BRABEZIRE - UHERSREZRIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment allowances of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose.
This includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis.
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HBEERERE

IRIB 278 B 765 i 5 AR 1| 58 OS5k 39 P 8 J ) e B 75
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

GEMBHREME (F)

RIB-NFLA-BREZZE-NFT-A=+—HIEXEAHH

REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from contracts with customers for the
six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019.

W am R EAb WA R R

KB NFLA-BRE-E-AF+=A=+—A
LEAMELA S - A RIS S REF AL -

(a) Disaggregation of revenue (@) ZiFdE
Six-month
period from
1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
RZZ-NIF
tA—BEE
—E-hE HE-_Z—hF
+=A=+-—H ~NA=+AH
17518 A E IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Type of services R 3% %851
Advisory and related services B8R R AR RE AR TS 37,428 -
Asset management services BEEEERE 8,123 =
Sundry income FEEWA 1,242 =
46,793 -
Type of customers EFER
Listed companies NN 31,353 -
Non-listed companies and others JEEM AR REAM 15,440 =
46,793 -
Timing of revenue recognition W FERR R
At a point in time A (E RS R 2h 23,190 =
Transferred over time R—BRREAER 23,603 -
46,793 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

6. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 6. W&HRkEMWAEEEGE
(Continued)
(b) Transaction price allocated to remaining (b) PEEHTEBINEENRZE

performance obligations

As of 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of the transaction
price allocated to the performance obligation that is unsatisfied (or
partially unsatisfied) is approximately HK$47,700,000. The Group
expects to recognise the amount as revenue when the performance
obligations are satisfied in coming 12 months, depending on the

contract terms. The following table shows the time band for remaining =

performance obligations to be satisfied.

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—0 SEERHE
ENR S EBEL TR (EH S TIEE) - AR
47,700,000/ 7T ° A& E TR AR KA 2{E A E
R B R B A BFORMER AR - BURRA
KIS = TRIVRAG R AR T B AR EH RS R %

HK$000
FHET
Remaining performance obligations expected to be satisfied during: FEEIF A T B i ERR M8 TR EE -
the year ending 31 December 2020 HE_T-TF+-A=1+—HIEFE 47,700
(c) Other netincome (c) HMWAZFEHE

Six-month

period from
1 July 2019 to Year ended

31 December 2019

30 June 2019

R=—B—h&F
tA—HEE
—E-NE HE-T—NEF
+=A=+-8 ~A=+A
1E7{B A HARS IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHIT
Exchange gain, net B 5 e F 58 83 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the CODM, being the Directors of Company, for the

purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance

focuses on type of services provided. No operating segments identified by

the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of

the Group.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments are as follows:

@)

Corporate finance services, investment and others — provision of
corporate finance advisory services including financial advisory
services, services incidental to financial advisory, compliance advisory
services, placing agency and/or underwriting services, investment
business and others.

Asset management services — provision of asset management services
including investment advisory services.

Segment revenue and results

GEMBHEEME ()

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
—E-NFtA-HBREZZE-NFT+_A=T+—HILNEAHE

7. oEHER

RERSERIESBRABOTMALIBLLREA
(BN AV ) B SR ARHE R R FTIR AL AR H0IER
B RE AFTRAI 0SS S B e B A B
AT e SR ERSELD o

REBO AR AL LD ERINT

@ ERERE  RENEM-RECERERRH
BR% - BREMEERRY - B EEREEAR
% ERERRE  BEERERHBHRE
PA -~ B R R EAD o

o) AEEERY-RUEETERY (RERAE
RIARE) -
P LIS E S

Corporate finance
services,
investment Asset management
and others services Total
TEMERYE
RERHM EEETERE #ct
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FHER FET
Year ended 30 June 2019 #HZE—ZT—hFAA=TALFE
External segment revenue and MNEB5 ZBUL &5 B
other income (Note) E AN (B 5E) - = =
Result S
Segment profit ban= 1yl - - -
Loss before income tax MRS R AR =
For the six-month period R=Z—-NFtH—HEE
from 1 July 2019 to —E-hE+=A=+—H
31 December 2019 WEREAHA F'i
External segment revenue and #4554z
other income (Note) Hppdg A (ﬂﬁ ) 38,067 9,365 47,432
Result ES
Segment profit 2255 | 17,267 3,729 20,996
Gain on debt restructuring B EAEWE 844,894
Restructuring expenses FHAY (20,132)
Profit before income tax BRET1S B A= £l 845,758
Note: Net financial income generated from proprietary trading included in external ek : HEZZT—NFARA=ZTHLEFE — &

segment revenue and other income under corporate finance services,
investment and others for the year ended 30 June 2019 and for the six-
month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 were Nil and
HK$639,000 respectively.

tA—ARE-ZT—NAF+= H—ﬂ—fam\tlﬂ
HAR - AE AN RS R ERMERE R - 1&E
REMETOEMBANEEEEELENTBRA
FED B AT 639,000/ T
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBEEME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Segment assets and liabilities

2 ERE R (&)
THEEREE

Six-month period

from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=ZB-—NF
tA—HEE
—E-hE
+=HA=+—H HEZZT—NF
1R {E A B NAZTRHILFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Segment assets PBEE
Corporate finance services, investment and others ERMERT - BEREAM 412,667 =
Asset management services BEEERY 52,858 =
Total assets BEERE 465,525 =
Segment liabilities PEIEE
Corporate finance services, investment and others ERERE - REREM 30,123 -
Asset management services BEEERSS 2,205 -
Total segment liabilities DEPBEREE 32,328 =
Other payables and accrued expenses and taxation — H A fER FRIE R EAF S &
payable FERFRIR 16,676 =
Total liabilities BERE 49,004 =
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and allocating MEEEDPERIE LS LE DI EBRME -
resources between segments:
- all assets are allocated to operating segments; and — FBEEENIMERKLENE : &
= all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than other — FEABOIMEKLENE » WHEHMENRIENLIE

payable and accrued expenses and taxation payable.

Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited Annual report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

No=—

N—=

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Major customers information
Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted to 10% or more of

Group’s revenue for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December
2019, is set out below:

GEMBHREME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
NFER—BREZZE-AFTZA=+—HIEAHH

2 EEF (&)

FEEFER
REFERFR&E(FEEAERR=_Z—NFLtA—
AE—F—-hAF+-A=+—HIiEABHR%KE
10%3K A _E) EFIEAT «

Six-month period

from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R-ZB-h%F
tA—HE=E
—B-NEF HE_Z—NF
+=A=+—8~ ~NA=+A
17518 A LLEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TR
Customer A' BEEA' 9,365 -
Customer B EFB? 7,597 -
Customer C? &PC 5,000 -
1 Revenue from Customer A is attributable to asset management services. 1 REZEAKERERNEESER
2 Revenue from Customers B and C are attributable to corporate finance 2 KEAZEBRCHWRERRDERERG  BER

services, investment and others.
Geographic information
The Group’s operations after completion of the Group Restructuring are

mainly located in Hong Kong and all the Group’s non-current assets are
located in Hong Kong.

ity o
HIEER

TREEEAR  AREEBELTBEFTBETEA
SEMBFRBEERAREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
REZ—NFLtA-—BRE_T-NFT+-A=T—HIEAHHE

8. OTHER NET FINANCIAL INCOME 8. HMHBWAFE
Six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=ZB-—NF
tA—HEE
ZE-NF
+=HA=+-H HE-_ZT-hF
1E75fE B EARS NAZTRHILFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Interest income from bank deposits SRITIFERZFBWA 172 -
Fair value gain on BAFET B
financial assets at FVPL WS EE 2 A ERE 384 -
556 -

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9.
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BERINAX (BEESHE)

Six-month period

from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=ZB-I%F
tA—HRBE
—E-NF
+=A=+-—H HE-_ZT—hF
1758 A HA RS ANA=TRALFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Salaries, other benefits, incentive fee and Directors’ fee & » HibEFl - BEREFHE 13,922 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRIREFIET B 183 =
14,105 =
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10. DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBHREME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

10.1 Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were as follows:

10. EXFMR O RBRSZHMEA 25 M

10.1 EEEEA

ENRENESHMOT

Retirement
benefits
Directors’  Salaries and Bonus scheme
fees other benefits payments contributions Total
HER RAEH
=0 HitER LA ARREN IR @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THERT TR TR TR
Six-month period RZZ-NFtA—BEZE
from 1 July 2019 to “T-NF+ZA=1+-H
31 December 2019 LE7R1E A HAfE]
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren FERERE
(Managing Director) (Note) (E@rE) (i) 26 - 6,622 = 6,648
Mr. Lam Chi Shing (Note) PRI (BT 26 575 820 27 1,448
Ms. Li Ming (Note) Figdt () 26 667 820 31 1,544
Non-Executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Li Chi Kong (Chairman) FEBEEER) 26 - - - 26
Mr. Kuo Jen-Hao* BAREE 1 - - - 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BV #EH7EE
Mr. Chan Sze Chung BREmEE 26 - - = 26
Mr. Suen Chi Wai REREE 26 - - - 26
Mr. Sum Wai Kei, Wilfred BEELE 26 = = = 26
183 1,242 8,262 58 9,745

Note:

Appointed with effect from 23 December 2019

In respect of the term of employment, Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren,

Mr. Lam Chi Shing and Ms. Li Ming are entitled to a discretionary

bonus. The amount of the discretionary bonus is at the discretion

of the Board taking into account of the performance of Yu Ming. No

salary was paid on payable to Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren during the

period.

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed

to waive any remuneration during the period/year.

The executive directors’, the non-executive directors’ and the

independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services as Directors of the Company or its subsidiary.

KRB NF+_A-+=BEZHE

SLERIGRN S - FEMELE - MEKRE
ERFHLTEREFEIETA - BIFE
AeBAREETSLARBARRE A
E - BN TEHFSIHENTFE
Rk o

REIRFERN - BIRESHERRBREER

o

EXFIRITES  SFRMITESR BV IFNTE
EHMEZERNREERRARRENBRRE
SRR -

ABRERERERAA 2019F K

111



112

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEUBHREME(E)
For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

10.2 Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included 3 of the Directors for the
six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, details of
whose emoluments are set out in Note 10.1 above. The emoluments
of the remaining 2 highest paid individuals are as follows:

10. %ﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ@iﬁkZﬁM
IIE

10.2 A2 BESHHEA

RZZE-NFELtA-BRE=ZT—-ILF+=A
=t+—HIEXNEANE AEEaFHEAAR
B=HEF  ABEEFZTMFBIRR EXHE
10.1 < A TR T B EABFEEIIAT

Six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019

R=ZZB—IF
tHA—BEZE
ZE-NF
+=A=+—8H
1ERME A HAR
HK$’000
FTHET

Salaries and other benefits
Bonus payments
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

e REAEF 1,021
TEATER 685
RRERFTEIHR 47

1,753

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

WENFHBR N THE

Six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019

R=ZB-1F
tA—BEZE
—Z-hF
+=BA=+—H
ER{EA SR
HK$’000
THET

HK$800,001 to HK$850,000
HK$900,001 to HK$950,000

800,001 7T £850,0007% 7T 1
900,001 7T £ 950,000/ 7T 1

2

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBHREME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

RZZE-NF+rA-—BREZZ—NAFTZA=+—HIE/NE R HH

GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING

The creditors’ scheme under the Group Restructuring (the “Creditors’
Scheme”) was approved by the requisite statutory majorities of the creditors
at the meeting of Creditors’ Scheme held on 5 July 2019. The Creditors’
Scheme was also sanctioned by the Grand Court of Cayman Islands and
High Court of Hong Kong on 16 July 2019 and 22 July 2019 respectively.
Accordingly, the Creditors’” Scheme became effective on 25 July 2019.

Pursuant to the Creditors’” Scheme, the Company transferred its claims,
rights to claim, rights to any assets and the entire equity interests of its
subsidiaries (the “Subsidiaries”) to the Creditors’ Scheme on 25 July 2019,
the effective date of the Creditors Scheme (the “Transfer”). Accordingly, the
companies which were deconsolidated by the Group from 1 January 2014
(the “Deconsolidated Companies”) and classified as financial assets at FVOCI
were disposed through the Transfer. The major Deconsolidated Companies
were shown below:

B R 2 ER £ E AR A FFujian Agrotech Holdings Co., Ltd*
@IEREYRIZ A R A B]Fuzhou Agrotech Crop Science Co., Ltd.*
RIS mAEY TIRFIT AR A A]Fujian Agrotech Bioengineering Co.,

8z

&)

Ltd.”

@ T 7 R 2 R B BR A &lJiangxi Haolun Agrotech Co., Ltd.*

G)  HEEREERAR A FHunan Haolun Agrotech Co., Ltd.

6) IEEREERBARAFJiangsu Haolun Agrotech Co., Ltd.*

7 BEEREEREAER A FHainan Haolun Agrotech Co., Ltd.*

®) IWFERTITE ANAEY T2 F 2 AR A 7Shanxi Astrowood
Bioengineering Development Co., Ltd.*

© BB BT ER2ARJinan Yinong Chemical Co., Ltd.*

(10) WwERE=FEm4eEZERER2AFFujan Sanming Agrotech

Landscaping and Plant Protection Co., Ltd.*
BEEME T BERYESMR A AlFujian Agrotech Oriental Import and
Export Co., Ltd.*

LB R 2 2 R A R A RlShandong Haolun Agrotech Co., Ltd.*

an

(12)

*

The English name is for identification purpose only.

The Directors considered that Group lost control over the Deconsolidated
Companies from 1 January 2014.

After the Transfer, dividend distributed by the Subsidiaries and the
Deconsolidated Companies (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Excluded Companies”) or recovery from the Excluded Companies, if
any, would be distributed to the creditors under the Creditors’ Scheme
(the “Scheme Creditors”) subject to adjudication. In addition, on the same
date, a cash payment of HK$80,000,000, being partial proceeds from the
Subscription and New Placing as defined in Note 31 was transferred to the
Creditors’ Scheme and all the claims of the Scheme Creditors against, and
liabilities of, the Company discharged and compromised in full other than the
payables in relation to professional fees for the Group Restructuring.

11. EREHRS

AEBEABETHERAGE ([BERAGEDREZZ
—NEtARARETHNEEAGTEEZ LBEEEMEZ
ZYEREARE - EEAGTEITRZZE—NEFELA T+
BRZZE—AFtA-Z+-BHRIERSEE AR KR
ERREERAE - At - EREAGTER=ZZ— &+t
BA-+HBAE -

RIZERARE - RARRREEA B LB R E
R BRE - THEEENRN-_F-NFLtA-thH
REMBAR (TMBAR) M2 MAE(THE]) - B
bt B=F—MF— A -BRAKER IR ARZA
Al ([T HEaFEARD A HEARAFEF AR ME
HEMEEED BB ELE - TETHEAFHEA
AIEEAT

BEEREXMEEEBRAR
BHERIEVMRIBERATF

~N =

(@) BEEREVIEEMERAR

4 IEERBREREAERAF

() HEEREREREARAR

(6) IIEEREEREARAR

(7)  EFEEREREREARAR

8 HAXRTERENIEZRZEERAR
© EE—REIARAR

(10) BEE-FAMEREEBRERAR

M) BERERRITERMEARRRR

(12)  WLWEREREENMEZERAT

* RXEBEREBS

EER/E_T MF A HEERRETBHEA
HRRIRIRGE -

NEE% - WEARRTBREFTEREATHES
[BRINAEL) Fr o Rsk B BRINA B EIEI AR B (10 ) 1
DIRTEEAGEE THERA ((GHEIEEAD FH
FE) ° kAN - AR - B2 {E80,000,000/%8 7T (BIFRHE
BELHEE (T&RMES)NIBLAERE) BEEA
ERAGEIRARAREFEIERANERRRAR
(B SEEHE BXEERARMNRBRIN G- ERR
K AfE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

11. GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING (Continued)

Therefore, a gain on debt restructuring under the Creditors’ Scheme
of approximately HK$844,894,000 (year ended 30 June 2019: Nil) was
recognised during the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December
2019, being calculated as follows:

11. EHEHKRE (B

Et - EEAGTEIIE T 2 B E Y 25 4)844,894,000
BLTEEZZE-HNEANA=ZTELEE : D ER-Z
—NEEtA-—BRBEZT-—NF+ZA=+T—HIE~HE
PR - BRI Tt E -

Six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to

Note 31 December 2019
R=ZB—L&F
tA—HEZE
ZE-NF
+=BA=+—H
FisE LEREA
HK$’000
T
Assets transferred pursuant to the Creditors’ Scheme: REBEAGECEREESE
Financial assets at FVOCI, representing equity interests in BEATHEF AR MEEN S MBEE
Excluded Companies (REPBRINA R Z BhEtEzs) -
Cash Re (i) (80,959)
Liabilities discharged pursuant to the Creditors’ Scheme: RIZEE AT EIRREE :
Other payables and accrued expenses HAnfE B R BT 29,621
Borrowings BE 7,358
Corporate bonds NG 45,000
Taxation payables FERFLIE 6,678
Amounts due to Deconsolidated Companies ENTBERETEARNRIE 136,097
Convertible bonds AR E 5 701,099
925,853
Gain on debt restructuring B E A W 844,894
Note: s

(i) Cash outflow arising from debt restructuring

N EBEARELEZRER

Six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019

RZZ-—NF
tA—HEE
—B-AF
TEREr=E
17518 B 2R
HK$’000
THET

Cash payment to the Creditors’ Scheme

SN FEEAGENRENR 80,959
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
MR- NWFLtA—BRE_T-NF+-A=T—HIEAZHE

FINANCE COSTS 12. BERAE
Six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=-TB—hF
tB—HEZE
—Z-NF
+=A=+-—8H HE-_T—hF
1E75E A HA RS NAZTHILEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
Interest on other borrowings HibaEFS 131 1,291
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 19) HEBEF S FEE19) 46 =
177 1,291
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 13. BRFTEBASR (EB)
Six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=Z—hF
tA—HBEZE
—E-NE
+=-A=+-—H HE-_ZT—NF
1758 A HA RS NA=TALEEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after BRETERIATE R, (B518) B HNBRA T
charging: FIRRES
Amortisation on intangible assets EmR A ESE 6,303 =
Auditor’s remuneration (2 GlE=AT) 490 450
Depreciation of AT Z i E
— Owned property, plant and equipment —BBEYE - BENKEHE 88 =
— Right-of-use assets —EREEE 756 -
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ EERAAS (BIEEE
emoluments (Note 10)) (Note 9) B (BftsE10)) (Ff7E9) 14,105 =
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFS 46 =
Impairment losses on trade receivables & 5 REWFIE 2R EEE 149 =
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRMAE

(mﬁ)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

14.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the ‘Bill’) which introduced the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018
and was gazetted on the following day.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime (the “Regime”), the first HK$2
million of profits of qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of corporations not
qualifying for the Regime will be continued to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Regime only allows a group of connected entities to nominate one entity
to apply the reduced tax rate for a given year of assessment. The others
would not qualify for the two-tiered profits tax rates.

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019, Hong Kong
profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits of the subsidiary of the Company and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million of that subsidiary. For the
year ended 30 June 2019, no Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits.

14. Fr8FHiAx

RZZ-NE=A-+—0 BELLIEBB_FT—+
FEBEUERD) (BT EPIER(MEPIER]) - 5| AF
SERMARS - EHIEERN _—_Z-N\F=A -+ /\REXK
ERRER  YNBAEBHRTE -

BEMNEHMAHN ([ZHG])  AEREEEREES
2,000,000/ 75 F K B 28 58.25% + M #2352,000,000
B TTE TR B16.5% ° A B HIHEE A)HE T
TS HE B 1216.5% AT — T R EH o

ZREIER T EAEERREE —REERERNFE
ANIERARERE - HMEREITEEBEARRTIE
B o

—hWE+tA—BRE-_T—NF+=-A=1+—8H

Mlﬁl HiR - AN A — R B A M b ET e R EOE F

# 52,000,000/ T128.25% T H BB TSR - A AR

2P BB A Bk 51 FE SR A A AP B #8 2,000,000 7T B &6

DIR16.5% A HBBFIEN - BEZT—NF A=

HIEFE - ARARE N EEETERTORR - BOr&EaT
REBNER -

Six-month period

from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019

R=ZB—NF

tA—BEE

ZE-NF
+=—HA=+—8 HEZZT—NF
LR {E A B NAZTRILEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Current tax BNEARIR

— Hong Kong profits tax —BATEM 4,464 -
Deferred tax (Note 30) JRIERIE (T 3E30) (1,040) =
Income tax expense PRS2 3,424 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14. FTSBiRAX ()

PSR AR R EN SR, (BB 24

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) at

applicable tax rates is as follows:

BRINK :

Six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019

Year ended
30 June 2019

R-TB—hF

tB—HEZE

—Z-NF
+=A=+-—8H HE—_Z—hF
1E75E A HA RS NAZTHILEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSRATEF (E518) 845,758 (13,916)

Tax calculated at the applicable Hong Kong profits tax 3238 f &8 RIS B8 R st E e R

rates (2018: 16.5%) (ZZ—\F : 16.5%) 139,550 (2,296)
Income tax at concessionary rate RERMEAEZEH (165) =
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERMBAZ BB E (139,780) -
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR 2 B 2 3,501 2,296
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised AERER U EBIRETE (58) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised RIERARBATR G EE 2 DG 2 376 =
Income tax expense FRiSRi 3,424 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
REZ—NFLtA-—BRE_T-NFT+-A=T—HIEAHHE

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 15. KA RBEEARBEEREF, (&E)
TO THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable to RARHE ABESRERNREERT(BE) THIR
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: T 8RR E ¢

Six-month period

from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=ZB-NF
tA—BEE
—ZT-hF
+=A=+-—H HE-_ZT—hF
LE7E A HAR NAZTRHLEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHIT
Earnings/(loss) BF,/ (&8)
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of basic and diluted M EEREAREERT,
earnings/(loss) per share (profit/(loss) for the period/ (&518) 2 &7F|/ (E518)
year attributable to the owners (RN REVEE AREALRE,
of the Company) FEZmN,/ (B8)) 842,334 (13,916)
(restated)
Gt 7))
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in T EEREARETRT
issue for the purpose of basic and diluted (E18) 2 BEBITERR
earnings/(loss) per share R hnAE S5 £k 1,003,788,407 100,176,521
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year ended 30 June ENEHE—T-NFANA=THIEFEZEBRNETF
2019 was restated to reflect the Capital Reduction (Note 31) and the Share BHEURBN ZT—NFEA=+H B ZKZRAERE
Consolidation (Note 31) completed on 25 July 2019. (FI3E31) RAR1DE BF (FT5ES1) o
There were no dilutive potential ordinary share in issue for the six-month RZE-NFLtA—BRBREZZT—NF+=A=1+—8H
period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 and for the year ended 30 IEAEASPEURBEZS—NFAA=THILFE
June 2019. Accordingly, the diluted earnings/(loss) per share presented are WEEBHTHSEELER - At - SREFEF
the same as the basic earnings/(loss) per share. (E518) SR EAZRF]/ (B518) 48R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BMERRE
Office Leasehold
equipment improvements Total
MAERE HEWEES #ct
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET
Cost A
At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 and RZZE-—NFtA—H ZZT—I&F
1 July 2019 NA=+HBR=-ZE—hFELA—H - - -
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary B E — B RATRE 458 15 473
Additions NE 2 - 2
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-NF+=A=+—H 460 15 475
Accumulated depreciation e

At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 and

R=ZF—N\FtA—RB ZF—NF

1 July 2019 ANA=TARZZE-NF+A—H - - -
Depreciation e 85 3 88
At 31 December 2019 R-B-hE+=A=+—H 85 3 88
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 June 2019 R=_F—hFA=+H - - -
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-AE+=A=+—H 375 12 387

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset, arising from acquisition of a WE—FNBARIMEMLAEE BB ZSEN
subsidiary, is as follows: T
HK$000
FHT
Cost RRA

At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019
and 1 July 2019

R-Z—\FtA—A - —E—AF~A=1+AH
E=Z—hF+tHA—H =

Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary EBWE B ARIRE 302,965
At 31 December 2019 R=-ZT—h&+=-A=+—H 302,965
Accumulated impairment HiPRE

At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 and
1 July 2019

R-Z—N\FtA—H —ZE—AFA=1+AH
E=F—hF+tHA—H =

Impairment loss REEE -
At 31 December 2019 R=B-hF+=A=+—H -
Carrying amount BRTEE

At 30 June 2019 RZE—NFA=1H =
At 31 December 2019 R=-Z—h&+=-A=+—H 302,965
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

17. GOODWILL (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the CGU as
follows:

17. BE (@)

BRERHTS  AESRERSELSEMANT ¢

As at As at

31 December 2019 30 June 2019

R=-Z-I%F RZT—NF

+=HA=+-—8 ~NA=+A

HK$000 HK$000

FHET FHT

Corporate finance services, investment and others ERMERT - BEREAM 268,373 =
Asset management services BEEERY 34,592 =
302,965 -

Impairment testing on goodwiill

The recoverable amounts of the CGU has been determined from value in
use calculations based on cash flow projections from formally approved
budgets covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3%,
which does not exceed the long-term growth rate for the advisory and asset
management industry in Hong Kong. The cash flows are discounted using a
discount rate of 16.0% and 16.4% for segment of corporate finance services,
investment and others and asset management services respectively. The
Directors concluded that the CGUs demonstrates sufficient cash flows that
justify the carrying value of the goodwill and hence no impairment of goodwill is
necessary as at 31 December 2019.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculations of the CGUs for 31
December 2019. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Discount rate (corporate finance services, 16.0%
investment and others)

Discount rate (asset management services) 16.4%

Operating margin 65.4%

Growth rate within the five-year period 5.0%

The discount rates used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU.

The operating margin and growth rate within the five-year period have been
based on past experience.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
N—T—

E-NFLA-BRE-T-AF+ - A=+—HILAEAHHE

S —

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Investment
management
agreement Backlog  Trade name SFC licences Total
REEEHSE RE BEE  BEERR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
Cost BA
At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 and RZZ-\$tA—H ZT-I&F
1July 2019 NAZHRR-Z-hE+A-A . - . . .
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary ~ EBYE—HIBARRE 15,560 15,705 69,044 3,740 104,049
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+=A=1+-H 15,560 15,705 69,044 3,740 104,049
Amortisation and impairment BHRAE
At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 and RZE-/\$tA—B ZB-N&F
1 July 2019 NAZTRRZZ-NEFtA—H - - - - -
Amortisation B 2,683 2,181 1,439 - 6,303
At 31 December 2019 R=B-h&E+=A=+-H 2,683 2,181 1,439 - 6,303
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2019 R=ZF-NFXB=1H - - - - -
At 31 December 2019 R=2-hE+=A=+-A 12,877 13,524 67,605 3,740 97,746
19. LEASES 19. HE
(@) Right-of-use assets (a) FEREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the NEEE A EENREERR IR FE R
movements during the period/year are as follows: T -
Premises
L/ES
HK$000
FHT
At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 RZZE-NFtA—HB ZZE—1F
and 1 July 2019 NA=tBAER=ZE—NFtA—H -
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary BBWE B ARIRE 2,647
Depreciation e (756)
At 31 December 2019 R=-B-hE+=-A=+—H 1,891
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

RZZE-NF+A—BREZZ—NAFTZA=+T—HIL/NER M

19. LEASES (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the

19. #HE (&)
b) HEEE

AEBEHEEENREERNBEFEANZEH 0

period/year are as follows: ™
Six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=ZB-—NF
tA—HEE
ZE-NF
+=BA=+-H HE-_ZT-hF
1E75fE B HARS NAZTRHILFE
HK$000 HK$000
FHT FHTT
At 1 July 2019/ R=T—h&FtA—R8/

1 July 2018 —E-NFtA—H - -
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary FRKE—FHNBARRNE 2,647 =
Accretion of interest recognised during the RHIRE,FERE R

period/year FS IR 46 =
Payments 3R (783) =
At 31 December 2019/ R-_Z—h&E+-A=+—8"

30 June 2019 —Z-NEFRA=TH 1,910 -
Analysed into: PR

Current portion mENER S 1,520 =

Non-current portion FERENE D 390 -

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in c) REETHERIANEEEBEREN
relation to leases are as follows: T
Six-month period
from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019
R=ZB—IF
tA—HEZE
ZE-NF
+=A=+-—H
LE7x B B HA R
HK$000
FHT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBREME 46
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 756
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RBmFERNE ST 802
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

20. OTHER ASSETS 20. Hitv&=E
As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R-B—h%E RZZE—hIF
+=A=+-—H ~NA=+A
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Dealer deposit with the SFC BESRIHEEE 50 =

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. EHEEREHNEE
LIABILITIES

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract assets and AEBECHERA NGBS NEERANERE -
contract liabilities.

As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=Z—heE R=Z—h%
rEHEr—=1E ~NA=1A
HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET
Contract assets AREE 150 -
Contract liabilities aHakE 16,200 =
The timing of revenue recognition, progress billings to customers and WEHIERAERE  ENEFEERNMCKEELNREEY
payments received from customers would affect the amount of trade YRR RPRRE BPERROE S EWFE - &
receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities recognised as at the NEENEHBENSEE -
reporting date on the statement of financial position.
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets is as AXNBETEETREIKEERENT -
follows:
As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=Z-NIF RZE—NF
+=-A=+-—8 ~NA=+A
HK$000 HK$000
FERT FAT
Within one year —FR 150 =
The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance consideration received EHEEFZHBREFPRERH -

from customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEUBHREME(E)
For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Movements in the contract liabilities during the period/year are as follows:

21. ENEERENREGE

RER FEAR - AREENESHIT

Six-month period

from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019

R=Z-h#F

tA—RAEZE

—Z-hE
+=A=+-H BE_T—NF
175 E A ER ANA=THRILEEE
HK$000 HK$000
FBx FHT

At 1 July 2019/ R=Z—NFtA—R8/

1 July 2018 —T-N\FtA—H - -
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary FRKE-—EREARRE 15,183 =
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract RERY FENFAGNA ERESHZ

liabilities balance at beginning of period/year B R (6,883) =
Increase due to cash received, excluding amount RER/ FEMRE KRS (T eIEER

recognised as revenue during the period/year AWER R 2 F8) g 7,900 =
At 31 December 2019/ R-TE-—hF+-A=+—8/

30 June 2019 —E-NAFARA=TH 16,200 -

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
PAID AND PREPAYMENTS

22 BERHEMEWFTE  EeNEERA
INE/SC:]

As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=ZB—-I%F RZE—NF
+=A=+-—AH ANA=1A
HK$000 HK$000
FHExT FHT

Current Asset REBEE
Trade receivables (Note) B 5 EWEIE (M) 15,672 =
Other receivables H At R IE 164 -
Prepayments B FIE 289 174
Rental and utility deposits HEPkERS 341 -
16,466 174

Note: The Group normally applies credit terms to its customers according
to industry practice together with consideration of their creditability,
repayment history and years of establishment. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management.

The Board considers that the fair values of trade and other receivables which
are expected to be recovered within one year are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because these balances have short maturity periods
on their inception.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 22. EZREMEWFIE - SfERERTE

PAID AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) A FIE (5
The ageing analysis of Group’s trade receivables as at the reporting date, AEEE S EIGIENHRE B HEREE R BHRRER S
based on invoice dates, is as follows: FanE
As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R-B—h%E RZZ—NF
+=A=+-—H ~NA=+A
HK$000 HK$000
FET FAT
Within 30 days 30BA 7,174 -
Over 30 days but within 60 days #BHB30HEM60R A 6,413 -
Over 60 days but within 90 days #BiE60H{ER90H A 296 -
Over 90 days but within 365 days #RiE90 H1E /365 H A 1,333 =
Over 365 days HRim365H 456 -
15,672 =
At each reporting date, the Group reviews trade receivables for evidence of NEHEEE  AEEEME S EWRIE - LAERI &G
impairment on both individual and collective basis. BIEEHS R LA RMERE -
As at 31 December 2019, loss allowances of HK$149,000 were made RZZE-NE+-A=1+—08  stBIEKFEEEE
against the gross amount of trade receivables. H S HE 7 55149,0007 7T ©
Movement in the loss allowances amount in respect of trade receivables RZZE-NFtA—HBHEBE_ZT—NF+_A=+—H
during the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 and year HEAEARYEMEEE—_TE—NAFENA=THLEFE
ended 30 June 2019 is as follows: B S RWGAEHE R EE 2 28T

Six-month period

from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019

R=B-—NF

tA—HEE

—E-NF
T=EETr=E HE-ZT-NEF
1E751E B NA=THIEFE
HK$000 HK$000
FTERT FHT

At 1 July 2019/ RZZE—nFtA—8/

1 July 2018 —Z-N\FtH—H - =
ECLs recognised during the period/year RERRE,FEARRNEHREEEE 149 -
At 31 December 2019/ R=ZZT-nF+=ZA=+—H0/

30 June 2019 —ZE-NEFESA=FH 149 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
REZ—NFLtA-—BRE_T-NFT+-A=T—HIEAHHE

23. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY 23. FER—EREE A TFIE
As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R-Z-I%F R-TE—hF
+=A=+—8 ~NA=+A
HK$000 HK$000
FET FAT
Trade in nature BoME 4,902 =
The amount due from a related company is unsecured, interest free and Bl — R ARNIEAEER RERAREXKE
repayable on demand. o
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL 24, BATFEFABENUKEE
As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=-TB—hF R=ZT—hF
+=—B=+—H ~NA=+H
HK$000 HK$000
FEx FHT
Financial assets MBEE
Equity securities held for trading HIEEE 2 RAFE 5
— Listed in Hong Kong —REBLT 1,093 -
Financial assets at FVPL are denominated in HKS. BAFEFABSENHBEENETTHE -
Fair values for these instruments have been measured as described in Note ZEMBTANRATERHETE - AMTFE40. 757l ©
40.7.
These financial assets are subject to financial risk exposure in term of price FLEN A ERAER S RERER 2 AR -
risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

GEMBHREME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

RIB-NFLA-BREZZE-NFT-A=+—HIEXEAHH

25 BERBELEEY

As at As at

31 December 2019 30 June 2019

R-B—h%E R_ZT—N&F

+=A=+-—H ~NA=+A

HK$000 HK$000

FExT FET

Cash on hand and at banks FHERBTRE 2,019 3,001
Short-term time deposits 52 HATE BT X 37,856 =
Cash and cash equivalents BEMREEEY 39,875 3,001

Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group is HK$901,000 (30 June
2019: Nil) and HK$1,000 (30 June 2019: Nil) of bank balances denominated
in United States dollar (“‘USD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”) respectively. The Group
did not have significant exposure to foreign currency risk at 31 December

2019 and 30 June 2019.

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

FAREERNE S RASEEY DR ANUET(FET))
RARE (TARE]) FHERIRITHEE2901,000% 7T (=
T-hEXNA=1H8 : &) %1,0008T (=T —LEAX
A=+8 &) R-_T—hh&E+-_A=+—AK=-F
—NEXNA=TH  AEEWEEBRERERIINER

o

26. HttENREREEX

As at As at

31 December 2019 30 June 2019

R=-B—hE R-ZT—N4&

+=A=+-—H NA=+A

HK$000 HK$000

FHT F#T

Accrued charges FEETRISL 10,575 25,516
Due to a director (Note 34) B —RESRE (FI7E34) - 10,248
10,575 35,764
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

27. BORROWINGS AND CORPORATE BONDS

28.

27. BERDEES

As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R-ZB-N%F R=ZZE—hF
+=A=+—8 ~NA=+A
Notes HK$000 HK$000
M FHERT FHT
Unsecured bank borrowings EEIRIRITIEE (@) - 7,358
Corporate bonds NRIESH (b) - 45,000
Other borrowings repayable within one year ZBRA—EREEHHMEE (©) - 31,930
- 84,288
Notes: Bff3E
(@) At 30 June 2019, the effective interest rates of the bank borrowings are at (@) R=ZZT—NEXA=+H RITEENBERERR
1.07% per annum. £1.07% °
(o)  Asat 30 June 2019, the Group has eight unlisted straight bonds issued to b RZF-AFERA=1+RA AKEBEN\HELT
eight independent investors in an aggregate principal amount of HK$45.0 TBEFBRTTNRBUREE A RER
million (the “Bonds”). The Bonds are unsecured, arranged at fixed interest 45,000,000 T ([ZEEH]) - ZEBEFRHER
rates of 6% to 7% per annum and immediately due because of the A REEFHERENET%TE + BERNAREE
liquidation of the Company. MmZARNERHEE -
(©  Other borrowings as at 30 June 2019 are denominated in HK$, unsecured © RZZE-AFRA=TH EMEENETHE
and bear an interest charge at 6% per annum. R RIZTFO%THFEAX
() On 25 July 2019, the above liabilities were discharged pursuant to the (d) REZZ—NFLAZ+HEB  LHEBEREEEA
Creditors’ Scheme (Note 11). STEIARRR (PHaE11) o
= = =] %
AMOUNTS DUE TO DECONSOLIDATED 28. B FB&#&EEARNKIEA

COMPANIES

The amounts due to Deconsolidated Companies are unsecured, interest-free

and has no fixed term of repayment.

On 25 July 2019, the above liabilities were discharged pursuant to the
Creditors’ Scheme (Note 11).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29. AIARES
The carrying value of the liability component of the convertible bonds is as ARREFAESSMRmENT
follows:
As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R-B—h%E RZZE—hIF
+=A=+-—H ~NA=+A
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
At 1 July 2019/ R_ZT—h&+HA—8/
1 July 2018 —ZT—N\FtA—H 701,099 701,099
Liabilities discharged pursuant to the Creditors’ BIREE AT SRR AE
Scheme (Note 11) (FHE11) (701,099) -
At 31 December 2019/ R=Z—h&F+=A=+—8"
30 June 2019 —ZT-NEFRA=1H - 701,099
30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 30. EELEHIEEE
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under the B IE RS EARR AR TR Em et
balance sheet liability method using principle taxation rate of 16.5% for the H -MRZE—hNFLtA—ABE-_F—-NF+=A
six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019. The following is =t+—HIENERAHEEANTFEREA16.5% AT
the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group and the movements HIAEFECDEANTEREEHEBEREBNEE) -

thereon during the period.

Adjustment on intangible
assets arising from
acquisition of a subsidiary
BB —ERE QR

EENEREEFLAR
HK$’000
FT

At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 RZZE—N\FtA—H —E-NFA=1+H
and 1 July 2019 ;r=—F—hFLtH—H -
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary EBWE B ARIRE 17,168
Credit to profit or loss for the period (Note 14) sFASIRERS (MEE14) (1,040)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZ-NF+=A=+—H 16,128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B
Number of shares Amount
RHEHE -}
HK$'000
FAT
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRR0.10E T2 EiBAR
At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 RZZE-N\FEtA—H ZT—NF
and 1 July 2019 NAZTBER=_ZE—NFtHA—H 3,000,000,000 300,000
Increase in authorised share capital (Note (i)) VETE BRI 1 (Bt (i)) 7,000,000,000 700,000
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-hE+=-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Number of shares Amount
ik 2 ¢E] kx|
HK$'000
FAT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR :
At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 RZZB-N\FtHA—H —ZT—NF
and 1 July 2019 NAEt+ARZZE-NAFEA—A 1,001,765,216 100,177
Capital Reorganisation (Note (i) A& A =48 (P 5E(7)) (901,588,695) (90,159)
Issue of shares pursuant to Subscription (Note (ii)) RIRRIE B IR BTG (FEa(i) 284,750,000 28,475
Issue of shares pursuant to New Placing (Note (i) AR RFAC & B TTRRAD (FIRE (i) 512,698,586 51,270
Issue of shares pursuant to Public Offer (Note (ii)) RIB AR B E BTG (FEk) 241,705,083 24,170
At 31 December 2019 R=ZZB-NAF+=A=+—H 1,139,330,190 113,933
Notes: PR -
[0) On 25 July 2019, a Capital Reorganisation (as defined below) became 0] REZZT—NFtA=-+HA  BAEAERERT

OER - BRERARRAR_ZE-AFAA-+-B&
TR RIS DRBMRFRIAZS - Hh

effective, pursuant to a special resolution passed in the Company’s
extraordinary general meeting on 22 May 2019, in which,
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issue was reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 (the “Reorganised
Share(s)”) by cancelling HK$0.09 from the paid-up capital of each
issued Share, with each such Reorganised Shares treated as one
fully paid new share with a par value of HK$0.01 (the “Capital
Reduction”);

every ten (10) Reorganised Shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
share capital of the Company immediately after the Capital
Reduction were consolidated (the “Share Consolidation”) into one
(1) new share of HK$0.10 each (the “New Share(s)”), the total
number of New Shares in the issued share capital of the Company
immediately following the Share Consolidation were rounded down
to a whole number by cancelling any fraction in the issued share
capital of the Company which arose from the Share Consolidation;

the entire amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account, convertible bond equity reserve and warrant reserve of the
Company on 25 July 2019 was applied to eliminate an equivalent
amount of the accumulated losses of the Company;
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a. the nominal value of each share of the Company (the “Share(s)”) in a.

AREBETEN (B ) SREEZEERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBHREME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

RZZE-NF+rA-—BREZZ—NAFTZA=+—HIE/NE R HH

31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

U

(i)

(Continued)

d. the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$300,000,000 Shares divided into 3,000,000,000 to
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 New Shares of
HK$0.10 (the “Authorised Capital Increase” and together with
the Capital Reduction and the Share Consolidation, the “Capital
Reorganisation”); and

G the credit arising from the Capital Reduction was transferred to the
contributed surplus account of the Company and was applied to
eliminate an equivalent amount of the accumulated losses of the
Company.

Subscription and new placing

On 28 December 2018, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren and certain employees of Yu
Ming (collectively “Subscribers”) for the subscription (the “Subscription”) of
a total of 284,750,000 new ordinary shares of the Company. On 25 July
2019, the Subscription has taken place and Subscription shares have been
allotted and issued to Subscribers at a price of HK$0.52 per share. The
Company received a net proceeds from the Subscription of approximately
HK$148,070,000, comprising share capital of HK$28,475,000 and share
premium of HK$119,595,000.

On 28 December 2018, the Company entered into a new placing
agreement with Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited for the placing
of 512,698,586 new ordinary shares (“New Placing Shares”). On 25 July
2019, all New Placing Shares have been allotted and issued to several
independent third parties at a price of HK$0.52 per share (“New Placing”).
Net proceeds of approximately HK$263,917,000 were raised, comprising
share capital of HK$51,270,000 and share premium of HK$212,647,000,
net of share issue expenses of approximately HK$2,686,000.

Public offer

On 28 June 2019, the Company proposed to made a public offer
of 241,705,083 offer shares at the offer price of HK$0.52 per share.
Subsequently, in July 2019, the Company has allotted 211,173,614 offer
shares to the public and 30,531,469 offer shares as reserved shares to
the qualifying shareholders under the preferential offering (as detailed in
the Prospectus of Company dated 28 June 2019 and announcement
of allotment results dated 25 July 2019), at the offer price of HK$0.52
per offer share. Net proceeds of approximately HK$122,951,000 were
raised, comprising share capital of HK$24,170,000 and share premium
of HK$98,781,000, net of share issue expenses of approximately
HK$2,736,000.

31. B (&)
s« (8
0] €)

d. #8222 BATE B 2N 1 300,000,000 7T (9 &
3,000,000,0000%) 1 Z= 1,000,000,0007% 7T *
4 /10,000,000,000 A% * A EEO. 1087
BFTARD (DEERRANIE AN - 38 AR AN B
RIRGBEH - SiBAIIRAEAR]) : &

e. HER A HRE ERE R E E AR AN B
BHRP - TARHHEARRNRABEZ

SEEHE -

(i) RBEBERHEE

RZE—NE+_A=+/\B KR AHEFERHG
EERBUETREE (GBAIRBAL TR
Wik - LR A A4S ££284,750,0000% % & i A%
(REFHE]) -R_B—hFLtA-+HB BB
HEDEBERDIEER0.528TT 2 BREE KRBT
FREA - NAF B RBEEBMATESRIEFELD
148,070,000/ 7T + B IEZN28,475,0007 7T & i (n
$#18119,595,000/8 7T

RZTE—NE+=-A=+/\B  AAFEFE
EREREERARLFESHE  UEEE
512,698,586 ¥ Ll (B ERMD]) - R=F
—hWEtA=-+FEA FEFEERNEERSR
0.52B T2 BHREEE KRBT TFETELE=1 ([
Bl ) - B &S558 FR847263,917,000/8 7T
BIERRAN51,270,00078 70 R AR 17 7% (B 212,647,000/
7T+ HIBRAR (5 2175 2 492,686,000/ 7T ©

DRABE

RZE-—AEXNAZ+N\B  RRBRBREBEE
FRR0.52/8 TIEE A8 5 241,705,083/% B & I%
B HE RZT—NEFtA  ARRCDKEE
BEREERMN0.52BITAAREE211,173,614
BREERDRBEBLIEERNESERROHEE
30,531,469 EERMIEATERB RN (FRAAA
B AT NAE AT/ \BNBEEEERAH
AR NFLtA-TRABEBNIEERAE) - B
EEFBHUEFEEEA122,951,000/8 7T © BIERA
24,170,000/ 7T & f 17 % 898,781,000/ 7T + kR
&7 21 TF X £92,736,000/8 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

32. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

32. f#fE
Group (@) A%£E
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein are AEBNRESEREZHINGAERZETHR
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. FEZ -
Company (b) Z&AF
Convertible
Share  Contributed  bond equity Warrant  Accumulated
Note premium surplus reserve reserve Losses Total
TRRES
i BAEE BaBs RERE RRERRE ZithiE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAT TAR TAL TAT
At 1July 2018 RZZ-\§tA-H 453,352 11,527 164,169 449 (1,524,299) (894,802)
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (13,911) (13,911)
At 30 June 2019 RZZ-NERA=TH
and 1 July 2019 RZE-N\FtA-H 453,352 11,527 164,169 449 (1,538,210) (908,713)
Capital reorganisation e (d) (453,352) (11,527) (164,169) (449) 719,656 90,159
Issue of shares upon restructuring REAREIRG 431,023 - - - = 431,023
Profit for the period BARF - - - - 669,345 669,345
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=A=1-H 431,023 - - - (149,209) 281,814

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group

and the Company

() AEERXLFRBEUHEERED

(i)

()

Share premium and contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued
by the Company and the net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired through exchange of shares pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 2000.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
share premium and contributed surplus are distributable to
shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
share premium and contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after
the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital account.
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32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RESERVES (Continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group
and the Company (Continued)

(i) Convertible bond equity reserve

Convertible bond equity reserve represents the net proceeds
received from the issue of convertible bonds of the Company.

(iii) Warrant reserve

Warrant reserve represents the net proceeds received from the
issue of warrants of the Company.

(d) As a result of the Capital Reorganisation, share premium, contributed
surplus, convertible bond equity reserve and warrant reserve
included in the statement of changes in equity, totally approximately
HK$719,656,000, were transferred to the accumulated losses of the
Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution
passed on 19 June 2013 was revoked, cancelled and terminated with effect
from the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) which was passed in the Company’s extraordinary general meeting
on 22 May 2019.

The Company operates the New Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons for their contribution
to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
or any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested
entity”). Eligible participants of the New Share Option Scheme include (1)
any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of the Group and any Invested
Entity; (2) any director (including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity; (3) any supplier
of goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (4)
any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (5) any consultant, adviser,
manager, officer or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity; or (6) any person
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group or any Invested Entity eligible for options under the New Share
Option Scheme. summary of the principal terms of the New Share Option
Scheme set out in the Appendix IV to the Company’s circular on 27 April
2019. The New Share Option Scheme became effective on 25 July 2019
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

GEMBHEEME ()

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

“E-NFEA-HBRE-Z—

32.

33.

NEFE+ZA=+—R 1N E A HiE

fit e ()

() *EERAQARBHEEREDN

(&)

(i) TRREZFRERRE
THBRES R ERREETARTT
SRRSO S B -

(iii) FRIRREE R
R B R A BT AR R EE
IRER P8 SOBB R -

(d) ERBAEE - RIGHE  EHRE  TRIEE

FEE LR R AR E L - 65
719,656,000/ 8 T H = AN FM RETEE ©

BREsE
ARTIRIER = — =65 A+ N B BB R
EORS AR BIE SR - BERHRARLE - SRRSO
&) ((HWBE ) - A BRNAAARNATE N
FHA=+ = AMBESHIAR LR -

ARRETERENS S ERB L REAERALHA
SEATEL R E BRI A B I R
BF5(E B MW 5| B A AN B sl AN R B35 8 EL AR AR A
EMER(HRARR)) ABENANER - FiBEEsT
EMAER2EEREN)ARE IR EBRNEM
BE (TR RBER) $$@&Eﬁ&§§ﬁ
MEES (BIERIT © JEHT ZifgngFiﬂ TEE) :
$%@Wﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%
BHER  OAKEREAREEZRBNENETS (5
Eﬂﬁ$%@&Eﬁ&éAPk ST ﬁ%&ﬁm&
mi%%@% MEAL K2 SEBENER X
%%iﬁ%%%%%ﬁaﬁ A BE S AR B A
&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬂ%ﬁa%ﬁﬁﬁ%%aﬁ%h%ﬁ
ZATHBRENEFRAL - ARAAMA-T—NFN
F = BB R Y % PO B R R A A R B A 2 AGRRAR
Z o BREREE T NFEATRBRER R
BRIERTTREHIUER] - HEZ BB 105G/ -

ABRERERERAA 2019F K

133



134

Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)

nVT

BB HREME ()

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

33.

34.

TE-NFEA-RBRECE-NFT A= BN EARME

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to
be granted under the New Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the New Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 business
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. An option may be exercised in whole or in part
by the grantee (or his/her personal representative(s)) at any time before the
expiry of the period to be determined and notified by the Board to the grantee
which in any event shall not be longer than ten (10) years commencing on
the date of the offer letter and expiring on the last day of such ten (10)-year
period subject to the provisions for early termination as contained in the New
Share Option Scheme. There is no general requirement on the minimum
period for which option must be held before the exercise of any option.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (1) the closing price of the New Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;
(2) the average of the closing price of the New Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five consecutive business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (3) the nominal value of a New
Share on the offer date.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

No share options were granted under the share option schemes for the six-
month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 and for the year ended
30 June 2019.

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amount due to a director, Mr. Wu Shaoning, was included in other
payables and accrued expenses (Note 26). The amount due to a director was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. On 25 July 2019, amount
due to a director was discharged pursuant to the Creditors’ Scheme (Note
11).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBHREME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

RZZE-NF+rA-—BREZZ—NAFTZA=+—HIE/NE R HH

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Saved as those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

had the following significant related party transactions during the period/year,

which were carried out in the normal course of the Group’s business:

35. BHMAXRS
RSB RR LT FREES - AR ERIRY/
EENATHEARBIRS - ERAEEE LB

TR -

Six-month period

from 1 July 2019 to Year ended
31 December 2019 30 June 2019

R-Z-hF

tA—BEZE
—Z-hE HE
+=A=+-H —T-hE
e 18 A #R ANA=THILEEE
HK$000 HK$000
FHT FAT

Received or receivable from SHK Hong Kong B KT TIRE AR AR
Industries Limited (“SHK”), a related company (I3 I)) (—FEIRREE A R]) 5/IE

Management fee income (Note (i)(a)) ER B (FiTaEi)(@) 8,123 -
Sundry income (Note (i)(0)) YA (PiTE() (o) 1,242 =

Notes:

UEY

An investment management agreement (the “Investment Management
Agreement”) was entered into by the subsidiary, Yu Ming and SHK, which
was approved by the shareholders of SHK on 12 September 2018. Under
the Investment Management Agreement, Yu Ming agreed to assist the
board of directors of SHK with the day-to-day management of SHK from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2021. Yu Ming is entitled to a management
fee equal to 1.5% per annum of the consolidated net asset value
attributable to the owners of SHK, calculated and payable in arrears on a
quarterly basis by reference to the arithmetical average of the published
consolidated net asset value attributable to the owners of SHK on the last
day of each calendar month during each quarter; and a performance fee
equal to 20% of the amount by which the audited consolidated net asset
value attributable to the owners of SHK of each year ending 31 December
exceeds the audited consolidated net asset value attributable to the owners
of SHK as at the end of the latest financial year in which Yu Ming was
entitled to a performance fee.

Yu Ming provided day-to-day management (including office administration
and operation) to SHK and fees were charged in accordance with the
management agreement.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the other transactions with the Group’s related parties mainly related to
the expenses paid by the Group on behalf of its related parties and net
advances made to the Group’s related parties.

The compensation of key management personnel of the Group for the
six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 are salaries,
allowances and bonus of HK$10,376,000 (year ended 30 June 2019: Nil)
and pension costs for defined contribution plan of HK$81,000 (year ended
30 June 2019: Nil).

MEBARSSGEF TV IREEE K (REEE
Wl AFIRRR-_ZE—N\EABT_B#t
o REREEEGZ  BURER =S —NF—
B—BE-Z-—#+-_A=+—AWphHIES
SUFTETAREER - BREEZHEERTT
BFEARGGABEFEIS NI EEEE (KL
EHIHE ARG TBGEAEEFERSTEL
EEAS®—BZFHOBUGTAERIMN k8
BRI IHEAEARBET-_RA=+—HI-REEHL
KEZGAEEFEBBT IHEBARGHEREE
BRBREBENSAVHTEREECERGEEET
BZER220% 2 RRE -

REMHTRHEAFTEE(BERAZTEERK
&) BRRBERHERR

BZSRa MBRREMMB T AREESN - BAE
BRI T ETHEMR 5 E R EANEERRELRY
77 A6 B A R [a) AN SR R B R 05 R KO R FUR RR R
7 -

(i

R-ZTBE-—hFE+tBA—BRE-_Z—NA&E+_A
=+—HUEANEABEAEEEZEE A SR
BEE 2B RIELI10,376,0008 T (HE—ZE—N
FRAZTHILEFE : 8) RAEHFKEGERKEK
781,000 T (HE=S—NFANA=ZTHILFE :
) o

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. 8B & RERM=
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) EXKBRERS

REFB-NEFLA-BARE_F-AF+=A
=t —RIEANEAHRE - AREEERNYRHE
BELBmEAEEE RAERBERNFRSIE M
7 /32,647,000/8 7T K 2,647,000 T (BE=F
—hENA=THLEFE 8§ -

During the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019,
the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$2,647,000 and HK$2,647,000, respectively, in respect
of lease arrangements for premises (year ended 30 June 2019: Nil).

(b) BMEEFBRELNABEZHIR

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
B8 HEEE st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2019 RZZE—hFEA—H 39,288 - 39,288
Changes from cash flows: WemEE
Lease payments HEMK - (737) (737)
Interest paid BEARFLE - (46) (46)
Repayment BN (31,930) - (31,930)
Total changes from financing BER SR
cash flows @5 (31,930) (783) (32,713)
Other changes: i
Interest expenses FMERZ - 46 46
Lease adjustment HEFARE - 2,647 2,647
Gain on debt restructuring ERSE AW (7,358) - (7,358)
Total other changes HE i@ B)iaza (7,358) 2,693 (4,665)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-NF+=A=+—H - 1,910 1,910
Borrowings
BE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 July 2018 RZE—N\FtA—H 24,634
Changes from cash flows: Re R
Proceeds from borrowings EEMEHIE 14,654
Total changes from financing cash flows &I &R e B 4% 14,654
At 30 June 2019 R-_ZT—NF~A=1+AH 39,288
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37. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

..v_\
For the six-month period from
—T-hFtA-BRE-T—

%5 R M R ()

1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
NWF+=ZA=+—H1EEAHE

37. ARTRETEMBRRFE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 are as follows: R-ZE—NF+_A=+—8 TZHNBARFED
T
Percentage of ownership interest
Directly
EERERBLEE
As at As at
Place of incorporation/ Issued and 31 December 30 June
Name of Companies registration paid-up capital 2019 2019 Principal activities
R=B—hF —TNEF
AR HRE A B S/ fA 3t 26 BOIRBERE +=HA=t+—H ANA=+TA XEEREH
Yu Ming Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% — Dealing in securities,
advising on securities,
advising on corporate
finance and asset
management
B EE 10,000,000/ 7T 100% - ﬂ%z% MEHRE
HER pEERE
?Ef,\i‘ﬁ&ktﬁ\éf?
=]
38. BUSINESS ACQUISITION 38. EKUWiE
On 25 July 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the equity interests of Yu T-NFELA-THA - REBEWEERH100%

Ming, a company whose principal activities are dealing in securities, advising
on securities, advising on corporate finance and asset management. The

o ZRREBEBRESFZS
tEEEH - WBEERASL

EERBERHEERRREHR

HESFREER B

acquisition was made with the aims to expand the Group’s business. The

KBTS -

X 5 LAEE 4 . {8400,000,00078 7T T R 4%

transaction was satisfied in form of cash consideration of HK$400,000,000. A

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree as at the date

of acquisition were:

PUE B BB SR M AT BRI EE R BENAFER

HK$'000
FHET

Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB REE 473
Intangible assets B EE 104,049
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,647
Other assets Hitn&EE 50
Contract assets EREE 96
Trade and other receivables, deposits paid and prepayments 2 5 &k H it EWFIE « B ik d RIER I8 8,371
Financial assets at FVPL BATHEFABRNIBEEE 709
Amount due from a related company FEM — I RRER R B 3IE 4,074
Taxation recoverable AT eI IR 273
Cash and cash equivalents HEe KRS EEY 12,807
Contract liabilities EHBRE (15,188)
Other payables and accrued expenses EAbfE IR R BT (1,516)
Lease liabilities HEAE (2,647)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEE & (17,168)
Fair value of net assets acquired BURBFEFEENATE 97,035
Cash consideration ReRE (400,000)
Goodwil kS 302,965
Cash flow: Ben :
Cash payment eI 400,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BWERE RREEED (12,807)
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — B AR FTEENER S ML FE 387,193
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMBHRRME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. & TR RE

COMPANY
As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R-B—h%E RZZ—NF
+=A=+-—H ~NA=+A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
gz FET FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HEMEARRE 400,000 =
400,000 -
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayment H A FE IR IE R T 5RIE 257 177
Cash and cash equivalents BEMREEEY - 2,419
257 2,596
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FERT & A R E A FE A FUE 499 33,103
Amount due to a subsidiary FEA — T A B RIE 4,011 =
Borrowings B8 - 31,930
Convertible bonds AR E S - 701,099
Corporate bonds TEEBH - 45,000
4,510 811,132
Net current liabilities BhREaE (4,253) (808,536)
Net assets/(liabilities) BEE/(AE) 395,747 (808,536)
Equity e
Share capital [N 31 113,933 100,177
Reserves fEtE 32 281,814 (908,713)
Total equity/(deficit) Wz, (E51R) 4258 395,747 (808,536)

ARG EMBRRER T _EF=A -+ ~BEEEEH
FERFHETE - WAL TEEREREE

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of on 26 March 2020 and is signed on its

behalf by:
Lee Wa Lun, Warren Li Chi Kong
=0 ZEMI
Director Director
EE EF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBHREME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. BiEREER AFETE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial instruments AEERERBEFBEPRNEREFDTEALR
in its ordinary course of operations and in its investment activities. The TEARERMBRR - HBRBREEMSRR(BEER
financial risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk KRR - FIXRRREREMERRR) - EERR LT
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. BEER -
Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s headquarters, BHREREERASERLEE  WEHHEEESER
in close co-operation with the Board periodically. The overall objectives in AE - BEREUBRARNEREZEAEBREENRSR™
managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s short-to-medium- HEERNERARE RENTEHRRERE - NEEE
term cash flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets. Long-term AR ZBBKEZERLT BEERASMIEENES
financial investments are managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable FEAER °
risk levels.
40.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 401 BIKEEREBZ2ER
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated statement of RE MR RF 2SN A RN T ERBEE
financial position relate to the following categories of financial assets E BEREREE
and liabilities:
As at As at
31 December 2019 30 June 2019
R=Z—hF R-T—IF
+=A=+-—H ~NA=+A
HK$000 HK$000
FHET FHT
Financial assets BBEE
Financial assets at FVPL BAFEFABENMBEE 1,093 =
Financial assets at amortised costs: TR SERR AT EN M IS EE ¢
— Trade and other receivables —B 5 R E A EYKRIE 15,836 =
— Amount due from a related company — FEY— A RRES R Bl kI8 4,902 -
— Cash and cash equivalents —BeRREEEY 39,875 3,001
61,706 3,001
Financial liabilities g =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: LB AFT EMITHAE -
— Other payables and accrued expenses —H M EFRIB M EA X 10,575 35,764
— Amounts due to deconsolidated companies ~— — Bt NEAR A FHE A BFIE - 136,097
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 1,910 -
12,485 171,861
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBEEME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Most of the Group’s transactions are carried
out in HK$. Exposures to currency exchange rates mainly arise from
the Group’s investments, which are primarily denominated in USD and
RMB.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities, translated
into HK$ at the closing rates, are as follows:

40. HIERABEER AT EE (@)

40.2 & [EL B

SNERBRIESRTAZ A HESRRARRERER
HNESTE R BB T 2 DR B RS © NEEAE D
R HAETHEST - EREXEREZREAER
HIRE  ZERETEURTRARKE -

AU T BE SR B B T 2 AN RHE 2 A T8 B
RAFEMT

As at 31 December 2019 uUsbD RMB
R=ZZB-AF+=A=t+—H ES AR
HK$’000 HK$000

FHT FHT

Financial assets MBEE 901 1
Short-term exposure 72 BR[| fax 901 1

A reasonable change in foreign exchange rate for USD and RMB in
the next 12 months is assessed to result in immaterial change in the
Group’s profit after tax, retained earnings and other components of
equity.

40.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk for changes
in market interest rates through its investments in debt securities.
Change in interest rates may affect the value of the debt securities and
therefore result in a potential gain or loss to the Group.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk for changes

in market interest rates through its deposits at floating interest rates,
which are subject to variable interest rates.
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R H 5 IR A

40.3 FIRE

MEEBRSRERTAZ A HESRSRER
TSN R E B E LR E R ©

AEEBBEBEBEFREMARZ TGN R EE)
ZAFEMERER o MEBE AR BEEES
BE - YRS HARENEE RS REE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

i

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s
profit after tax (and retained earnings) in response to reasonably
possible changes in the interest rates at variable interest rates as at
the reporting date.

BB R M ()

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
NFER—BREZZE-AFTZA=+—HIEAHH

i

40. MEEBEERR A FEE ()

40.3 R E B (1)

TRFHERER RS B A AT R 8 2 F &
iiTﬁEQ@ ANEERRF %5 T (RIRBEF) Z

As at 31 December 2019 As at 30 June 2019
R=ZB-AF+=A=+—H RZE-AFRA=TH
Increase/ Effect on profit Increase/ Effect on profit

(decrease) in
interest rate

after tax and (decrease) in after tax and

retained earnings interest rate retained earnings

(Note) (Note)
FlZgm, BRBE %R R FEE 0, FRA 1 A1l &
(M2 REBAZHE R REBBR 28
(=) (B 3E)
HK$000 HK$000
FHER FHET
Deposits T3 0.5% 199 0.5% 15
Deposits a2 (0.5%) (199) (0.5%) (15)
Note: PE

Positive figure represents increase in profit and retained earnings or
decrease in loss whereas negative figure represents decrease in profit and
retained earnings or increase in loss as appropriate.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk
at the reporting date has been determined based on the assumed
percentage changes in interest rates taking place at the beginning
of the financial period/year and held constant throughout the period/
year. The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observation of current market conditions
and represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next reporting
date. These are the method and assumption used in preparing the
sensitivity analysis included in consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2019.

40.4 Equity price risk

Equity price risk relates to the risk that fair values or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices.

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments classified as trading securities. All of these investments
are listed.

EHRFZ G RREBBFIEMKE RN, M EEK
RFEN RRB AT SERIEN

RIFER - REEFEEFXRRZ FEREIN
TR E BB E D LRI AR/ FENEE
YHRBERE/ FREAEFTEMEE - MEZ
BRREYHEBERRITTIHERRR SRR A

BEHIR 2 B WIEEEBHAREHEEE T
*1!#5@E%JLHHF?ZAEETE*EQ@E’]EWE ° It
ENERBREGHNBE_FT-NFRA=T
Hiiri?é\ﬁﬁi‘“#ﬁiﬁﬁﬁéﬁzmr DT FR A
GEID

40.4 REE

Bl ﬁ}&ilﬂlﬂz/&zﬁfﬁ&*miﬁﬁmé
ESARE R M 3R IR E) 2 Ak -

AEEEHIEERRE S BAREEL Z BB
HEBRAR - IARFRED R LT °
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBEEME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

i

NEFLA-BRE-Z-AF+ - A=+—HLLXEAHHE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.4 Equity price risk (Continued)

The Group'’s listed investments are primarily listed on Stock Exchange.
The portfolio is in accordance with the limits set by the Group.

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s
profit after tax (and retained earnings) and other components of the
equity in response to the reasonably possible changes in the relevant
stock market prices, to which the Group has significant exposure at
the reporting date.

In response to the reasonably possible change in the market price
of the listed equity securities, the Group’s investment in listed equity
securities has the following exposures:

As at 31 December 2019
REZB-AF+=HA=+—H

Increase/
(decrease) in
securities’
market price

Effect on profit
after tax and securities’
retained earnings

40. HIERABEER AT EE (@)

40.4 RERB (&)

AEEZ FHREZEZE FTHARBHARS
FRIERAR - HEMEARBRMLTIREBETE
D EVEDBIRE -

TRIIEERN RS A ANEEEEARR ZIHH
BEMERIERRERE) ﬁ'ﬁ%\@lzﬁ‘i@%ﬁ{ém
M (RREEN) KiEmEMD 2 A ES)

RELmEAESMEZSEAEES - NEE
REMBAESZLEBEATRR

As at 30 June 2019
R=ZF—NEXAZ+A
Increase/

(decrease) in Effect on profit
after tax and

market price retained earnings

(Note) (Note)

HHEHEEM BB EERR FHEMEEM BBt 18 F &

(R RERAZHE O REBBHZHE

(Bt =) (BR&E)

HK$000 HK$000

FHExT FHT

Hong Kong market ~ &BMH% 3% 27 = =

Hong Kong market ~ &BMH% (3%) 27) = =
Note: BT

Positive figure represents increase in profit and retained earnings or
decrease in loss whereas negative figure represents decrease in profit and
retained earmnings or increase in loss as appropriate.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to equity price risk
at the reporting date has been determined based on the assumed
percentage changes in the stock market price or other relevant risk
variables taking place at the beginning of the financial period/year
and held constant throughout the period/year. The assumed changes
represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes
in the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk variables over
the period until the next reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMBHREME(E)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. BiBEREER AFETE (&)

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.5 Credit risk 40.5 =E Rk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the terms of the
financial instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.

The credit risk for liquid funds is considered negligible as the
counterparties are reputable financial institutions with high quality and
credit ratings.

The Group adopts conservative investment strategies. Usually
investments are in liquid securities quoted on recognised stock
exchanges, except where entered into for long-term strategic
purposes.

The Group’s management considers that all the financial assets
that are not impaired for each of the reporting dates under review
are of good credit quality. The Group assessed the credit quality
of the counterparties by taking into account their financial position,
credit history and other factors. Management also regularly reviews
the recoverability of these receivables and follow up the disputes or
amounts overdue, if any. The Directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by counterparties is low.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other
credit enhancements.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.

FERBESBTACHFIRERERTAL
GRETERE  YERAKESEHBERZ
[

HRRBESRHSHF I HEERE - E&5
BABREEFENSREE  SHEREERR
HiE -

REERMBRTRERE - BERELRAES
RZFR 2 RENFES - R LEREIRIE IR
BRI -

AEEEERERR  MERTUBEEN SRS
BHIERES  HARFEREEER - AKEZER
stREF T 2SR - FERRSREMEET
HEEED X - BEENS TR 7S RUK
Rz AT E M & R AE A S R () - &
ERRYFHEDZEBRIE -

AR RO B 15 B BB DA S A5 R nse
YIERIESR -

REERISEREERZ RBEHZ AR - 75
AR EEFEZ BEREHREERAREL S
FEBELN - REMEEERBREEREZEM -
AEEKEENRE BB LR RREE
ERAMBRERNZEABETILE - ARTER
AIESZ AR RFFIERTREEER
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBEEME (F)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.5 Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. The Group
always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables
are estimated by reference to past default experience of
the debtor and current market condition in relation to each
debtor’s exposure. The ECLs also incorporate forward-
looking information with reference to general macroeconomic
conditions that may affect the ability of the debtors to settle
receivables. To measure ECLs, the trade receivables have been
grouped based on share credit risk characteristics and the
days past due according to the ageing as disclosed in Note 22.
Expected loss rate of current trade receivables are determined
as below as the trade receivables mainly represent amounts
due from the customers with high credit rating and no history
of default. There is no change in the expected loss rate for
trade receivables for the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to
31 December 2019 mainly due to no significant change in the
historical default rates of trade receivables based on which the
expected loss rate is determined.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix as at
31 December 2019:

40. HIERABEER AT EE (@)

40.5 FE =L ()

(i)

55%%@(

REERA BT EH BB RS 4R
EBOSKETHRTE 2 EE S BB IBE TR -
HAa#r¥ima g 5 R INaR A2 BAE
EiERE - AEE—ERBEEREHER
EEEBZSHETEE S EIRFIEZ R
BRE - BHRIRFEZ BIEEEET
K2EBHABTHERERERSEEAE
ERERR 2 & RITSANEET - FHEEEE
BIEEMEEER  W2ERRERER
BN EEBGRIBRE ) 2 — MR BB R
o RETEEAEEEE B2 RKFE
ERIRMI T 22FT 1K 75 2 AR IR (D5 B R

R B IR B D48 - B RTE 5 EIR
FIBZ BB BRI ER TEE - A
BHRUHIEFERERAEESEETR
BWERSENEFZRIE - RZT—N
FrtA-—BARE-_ZT-NAF+=-A=1+—
Eiﬂlﬂ HAR - B 5 e IE 2 TR
BEVELS  FEHREZEKREZ
WEE;J{UI (TEHIB IR B ILET) WES
KEE) o

TREJIX_Z-NFF+_A=+—RHAAK
%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 20 5B AGRN
EERREH

Gross
Expected carrying
loss rate amount ECLs

HHEER fREAE BHEEER

HK$000 HK$000

FHET FHT

Within 30 days 30HA 0.3% 7,197 23
Over 30 days but within 60 days #BB30HER60H A 0.7% 6,460 47
Over 60 days but within 90 days #BBE0HER90H A 1.3% 300 4
Over 90 days but within 365 days #BBO0HEMR365H A 1.8% 1,358 25
Over 365 days HBiA365H 10.0% 506 50
15,821 149
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.5 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Other receivables

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the management of the Group
takes into account the historical default experience and
forward-looking information, as appropriate, for example the
Group considers the consistently low historical default rates
of counterparties, and concludes that credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding other receivables is insignificant. The
management of the Group has assessed that other receivables
do not have a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and risk of default is insignificant, therefore the
ECLs for these receivables are not material under the 12-month
ECLs and no loss allowance provision was recognised during
the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019.

40.6 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or other financial assets. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of other payables and its financing
obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring
scheduled debt servicing payments for long-term financial liabilities as
well as cash-outflows due in day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are
monitored on a day-to-day basis. Long-term liquidity needs for 360-
day lookout period are identified monthly.

The Group maintains cash, short-term bank deposits and marketable
securities to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 30-day periods.
Funding for long-term liquidity needs is secured by the ability to sell
long-term financial assets.

BB R M ()

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
—E-NFtA-HBREZZE-NFT+_A=T+—HILNEAHE

i

40. MEEBEERR A FEE ()

40.5 EE =B ()

RERMB LR B RELAEINRR - A%
BB IR A R M S B AR IR R A RE 1
BROER) - PIMAEERBEFHE
SRR -ERE  THERA/TEER
WEIE bR FIR B EERRIL T E
j( c ARBERENGERRAS - BYIHE
LAXEWE%Z JIRTEARRSEER
 BRORBRIYAEK - Bt - ZERE
HSZ IR EHERERERE T —EARY
BIRENWREN  BR=ZE—NFtA—
REE—ZF-hF+-A=+—HLXE
FEAR A SRR R R o

40.6 B E S ES

mBEDRRS KA EERERITARNE S
&Etﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁém L BREREREZRRE
o AEEEBEEMENRIBRETREARE
ﬁEM&ﬁ&fﬁﬁ/ﬁiéﬁﬁ@%}%m@éf@ﬂ
%o ANEEZ BRAMITREE ZRBEENKT
NENEREORDESTZ -

REEEZEFE PR EEGIREMG 8 ENERSR
LRAEEBRERE  WERERBESRE -
TEBRBERARDERTER  ZBABER
HISBORMEHRBESHE -

AEBHEFRE  BHRTERAREGEZH AR
MARKZI0AHEZRBESHTE - ZBBLE
REMBEEZRNRERORDESTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEUBHREME(E)
For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—ARBEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEAHHE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual maturities for its
non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

40. HIERABEER AT EE (@)

40.6 B E £ EB ()

AT REAEER —"E—NF+-A=+—H
ZIRTERM B R EZ RERA KR -

Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years
BRARER —FRm BiB15FE
BREE RERBE RER D25
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FET FTHET
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—-—hF+=-A=+—H
Non-derivatives: FEDTAE -
Other payables and accrued E A R FRIB R
expenses FEET R 10,575 10,575 10,575 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,910 1,960 1,568 392
12,485 12,535 12,143 392

40.7 Fair value measurements

Financial assets carried at fair value

The following table presents financial assets measured at fair value
at the reporting date in accordance with fair value hierarchy. The
hierarchy groups financial assets into three levels based on the relative
reliability of significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of these
financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBHEEME ()

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NFtA—BARBREZTE-—NF+-A=+—HIEXEABHE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. BiBEREER AFETE (&)
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.7 Fair value measurements (Continued) 40.7 A FEFHE (#)
Financial assets carried at fair value (Continued) B FESAR & E (8R)
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial asset is AEEERDERE AT EFEMEBEAZH
categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is ABEBEREER  ZEHUBEELETERD
significant to the fair value measurement. oo
The financial assets measured at fair value in the statement of financial REBARRRANRZ AT EFEZVBEEES
position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: BUATHAFERZR

As at 31 December 2019
RZB-RE+ZA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
¥-F E=F E=E Foey
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET FHT BT
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVPL BRATEF A BN BEE
— Listed equity securities held —FEEEM LW
for trading R ESH 1,093 - - 1,093
Total fair value AT ERE 1,093 - - 1,093
There were no transfers between levels during the period. RN BRZEILEEE -
41. CAPITIAL MANAGEMENT 41. EXER
The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Group’s ability AEBZEAERBZABRASE RN AFELSE
to continue as a going concern and to provide an adequate return to the EEBERARRIRHE R SER -
shareholders.
The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure and makes ANEBETER I BB B & AN 4 I R FE A AR L §Jj
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic AREARGERE - AEE B EEER R AR
conditions. The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of debt to BREERE
equity ratio.
The debt to equity ratio at reporting date was as follows: RSB 2 B EERE RN
As at
31 December 2019
R=-ZB-"%F
+=A=+-—AH
HK$’000
FHT
Borrowings BE -
Total equity e 416,521
Debt-to-equity ratio B EEaR L K 0:1
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBERME

(%)

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

i

NFEA-BRE-T—

NF+ZA=+—H 1N E A HiE

41. CAPITIAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

42.

Yu Ming is registered with the SFC for the business it operates in. Yu Ming

is subject to liquid capital requirements under Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted by the SFC. Under
SF(FR)R, Yu Ming must maintain its liquid capital (assets and liabilities

adjusted as determined by SF(FR)R) in excess of statutory floor requirement

or 5% its total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. The required

information is filed with SFC on a regular basis and Yu Ming has complied

with those requirements during the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31
December 2019.

LITIGATIONS

1)

Mr. Lim Hang Young (“Plaintiff 1”) as the plaintiff filed a writ of
summons (“Writ 17) in December 2016 against (i) the Stock Exchange;
(i) Yu Ming; and (i) L & A International Holdings Limited (‘L & A
International”), its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange as the defendants under a legal proceeding
in High Court. Pursuant to the claims generally indorsed on Writ 1,
Plaintiff 1 sought, inter alia, for (i) a declaration against the Stock
Exchange that the Stock Exchange has acted in bad faith in the
vetting of the share subscription during the general offer period; (ii)
an order against Stock Exchange to rescind all listing approvals; (iii) a
declaration against Yu Ming that Yu Ming purposefully ill advised L &
A International to break various the Listing Rules, including assisting L
& A International in its multi-layer marketing scheme; and (iv) an order
against L & A International to apply for self-delisting. On 21 December
2017, L & A International announced that, inter alia, High Court Action
No. HCA 3325/2016 against L & A International was dismissed by
the High Court on the ground that the Plaintiff 1 failed to file and serve
statement of claim on L & A International.

The Directors, having obtained the legal opinion from the legal advisers
that no litigation has yet been commenced against Yu Ming up to the
date of this report, although Plaintiff 1 is entitled to serve a writ on
any defendant within 12 months of the issue of writ and to apply for
extension of the validity of the writ for a period of not exceeding 12
months from the expiry date of the writ and to serve the writ within
such extended period, the writ has lapsed since it has not been served
within such period, and no demand or claim has been received from
Plaintiff 1 in relation to any of the matters mentioned in the said writ,
considered that the ultimate outcome and potential obligation of this
case cannot be reliably estimated and determined that no provision
in respect of this case was made for the six-month period from 1 July
2019 to 31 December 2019.
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42.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

42. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

@

Mr. Kim Sungho (“Plaintiff 2”) as the plaintiff filed a writ of summons
(“Writ 27) in January 2017 against (i) Strong Light Investments Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the L & A International (“Strong Light”);
(i) FP Sino-Rich Securities & Futures Limited (“FP”); (i) Yu Ming; and
(iv) L&A International as the defendants under a legal proceeding
in High Court. Pursuant to the claims generally indorsed on Writ 2,
Plaintiff 2 sought, inter alia, for () a declaration against Strong Light
that Strong Light and its parties acting in concert has accumulated
over 30% of the outstanding shares in L & A International, thus
triggering the mandatory general offer; and (i) a declaration against
FP and Yu Ming that FP purposefully ill advised L & A International to
break various Listing Rules, including assisting L & A International in its
multi-layer marketing scheme.

The Directors, having obtained the legal opinion from the legal advisers
that no litigation has yet been commenced against Yu Ming up to the
date of this report, although Plaintiff 2 is entitled to serve a writ on
any defendant within 12 months of the issue of writ and to apply for
extension of the validity of the writ for a period of not exceeding 12
months from the expiry date of the writ and to serve the writ within
such extended period, the writ has lapsed since it has not been served
within such period, and no demand or claim has been received from
Plaintiff 2 in relation to any of the matters mentioned in the said writ,
considered that the ultimate outcome and potential obligation of this
case cannot be reliably estimated and determined that no provision
in respect of this case was made for the six-month period from 1 July
2019 to 31 December 2019.

GEMBHEEME ()

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
—E-NFtA-HBREZZE-NFT+_A=T+—HILNEAHE

42. FEA (&)

@ HWZZT—+%—H ' Kim Sungho &4 EA—F
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(i) B8R ¢ R (iv)4ET0 BIRR AT EE O AR 2tk ([1E 5
2ik2l) - BEMSMR2RB LBTE - Ri2gk
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H-BUTBA LE R5HER L0 BN EITEIMR
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m B EINER B 1 218 A #If R e R IR X E
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Notes to the COnsoIidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GEMBERME
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For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
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42. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

®)

On 8 May 2017 Yu Ming received a writ of summons (“Writ 3”) dated
5 May 2017 filed by China Health Group Limited (formerly China
Healthcare Holdings Limited) as plaintiff (“Plaintiff 3”) against (i) Yu
Ming; (the “Action”) (i\EHL4; and (ii)#¥1s as defendants under High
Court Action No. HCA1077/2017. Pursuant to the statement of claim
therein, Plaintiff 3 sought, inter alia, against Yu Ming a declaration
that the engagement letter entered into in March 2016 and another
engagement letter entered into in May 2016 between Plaintiff 3 and
Yu Ming are void and an order that Yu Ming do forthwith pay the sum
of HK$5,300,000, being the fees paid by Plaintiff 3 to Yu Ming under
the said engagement letters, to Plaintiff 3. Yu Ming has appointed
legal adviser to act for it in relation to the Action, and based on the
information and documents Yu Ming provided to it, such legal adviser
is of the opinion that Yu Ming has good prospect of successfully
defending the Action. Furthermore, Yu Ming has on 7 June 2017 taken
out an application to the court to strike out the Action on the ground
that it discloses no reasonable cause of action and/or is frivolous or
vexatious and/or is unnecessary and tends to prejudice, embarrass
or delay the fair trial of the action and/or is otherwise an abuse of the
process of the court. The hearing of the application scheduled to be
heard on 21 June 2017 has been adjourned by consent. Plaintiff 3 filed
and served its affirmation in opposition to the striking out summons
on 29 August 2017, and Yu Ming filed and served its affirmation in
reply on 1 November 2017. The hearing for the striking out summons
was heard on 19 June 2018 and the application was dismissed.
Plaintiff 3 filed its amended statement of claim (which amendments
are principally additional details which Plaintiff 3 averred support its
claims, but no amendments were made to the actual claims and reliefs
sought against the defendants in the statement of claim) on 30 August
2018, Yu Ming has filed its defence and counterclaim by 11 October
2018 and Plaintiff 3 has filed its reply and also served a Mediation
Notice on 4 January 2019. Yu Ming served its request for further and
better particulars of Plaintiff 3’s reply on 10 January 2019 and filed
and served an amended defence on 17 January 2019. Mediation took
place on 25 February 2019 but was unsuccessful and the parties
failed to reach any agreement. Plaintiff 3 filed and served answers to
the request for further and better particulars of Plaintiff 3’s reply on 18
April 2019.
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42. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

©)

(Continued)

The Group’s legal adviser is of the view that Yu Ming is entitled to
rely on the “indoor management rule”, which states that any person
contracting with a company and dealing in good faith with the same
may assume that acts within its constitution and powers have been
properly and duly performed and are not bound to inquire whether
acts of internal management have been regular. They are also of the
view that there are contemporaneous records and correspondence
evidencing Yu Ming’s work done for the plaintiff pursuant to the
engagement letters. Based on the information and documents
provided to it by Yu Ming, the Group’s legal adviser is of the
opinion that, the vagaries of litigation aside, Yu Ming is very likely to
successfully defend the Action.

The Directors, having obtained the legal opinion from the legal adviser,
considered that the ultimate outcome and potential obligation of this
case cannot be reliably estimated and determined that no provision
in respect of this case was made for the six-month period from 1 July
2019 to 31 December 2019.

43. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board on 26 March 2020.

GEMBHEEME ()

For the six-month period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
NFER—BREZZE-AFTZA=+—HIEAHH

7 (&)

(®)

AEBZEBERRAR  RREEKEIANERE
A BERREEMALTE-HARRLIAH
REZARAREETZZE  AIRRERER
BABZEREABITNEE - ATRNRERE
TREBEHETHOR - WETRAE - RHE
BREBEERRBRERE HHREMENT
& - IRIBER:AAEREMER XM - AEEDR
REMRR - WERFRNETZ(CREB A
BRAAFARKD IR

EEDEBEEBRRNEERER RAERMGZ
SRERRETEET A b - WHRERZ
E-NEFLtA-BARE_ZE-NF+_A=+—
HIENE A SR A BAR AR RS -

it R R R

ZEWBHRN _E_ZF=A -+ NREESEE
BRAETIE -

ABRERERERAA 2019F K

151



152

Five Year Financial Summary

LEMBME

Year ended 30 June

Six-month
period from

1 July 2019 to
31 December

2016 2017 2018 2019 2019
RZZB—IF
tHA—BEZE
ZE-NF
BEAA=THLEE +=A=+—8
—TREF —ZT—tF —ZN\#F —ZT-NEF 175 E A #E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FET FHET FTHET
Results:
ES
(Loss)/profit attributable to the owners of the Company
RRRGEE AEE (E1R), a5 (621) (17,391) (4,887) (13,916) 842,334
As at
As at 30 June 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2019 2019
RARB=t+H R=ZB-IF
—E—RF T —+F —T-N\F —T—-h& +=ZHA=t+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET THET
Assets and liabilities:
EERGME:
Current assets
MBNEE 1,751 4,545 1,686 3,175 62,486
Total assets
BERE 1,751 4,545 1,686 3,175 465,525
Current liabilities
mENEE 926,308 946,493 948,521 963,926 32,486
Total liabilities
BfERHE 926,308 946,493 948,52 963,926 49,004
Total (deficit)/equity
(F518) M m 4 (924,557) (941,948) (946,835) (960,751) 416,521
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